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Career Academy of South Bend Change of Authorizer Application to Education One, LLC

Proposal Narrative

Executive Summary

L. Provide a brief description of the school’s mission and vision.
The school’s mission statement, as stated in its charter, is:

The Career Academy’s mission is to prepare our students to become
productive and contributing members of society by combining core
academic courses with vocationally oriented education.

The rationale for the school’s approach is well documented in the Harvard Graduate School of
Education’s February 2011 report Pathways To Prosperity,' published shortly after the Career
Academy was conceived. The Pathways report provides a well-researched and documented case
for what the founders of the Career Academy, Larry Garatoni and Steve Hartz, concluded from
their own experience, including the following:

» The standard model for U.S. schools is divorced from the workplace world and as a result
fails to prepare students for the challenges they face after graduation
e Measuring success by whether students go to college is inappropriate:
o Only about half of U.S. students go to college; a system which treats not going to
college as failure is failing a large portion of its student population
o Many students who go to college drop-out; “going to college™ is not success
o Graduating from college with substantial debt or without realistic career prospects
commensurate with the time and money devoted to college is not success
o Many good jobs do not require a four year degree: many “middle-skill” jobs
require only an associate’s degree or occupational training/certification, and pay
well: 27% of such jobs pay more than the earnings of the average bachelor’s
degree recipient.’
» Post-secondary education should be strongly encouraged but should be based on a
realistic understanding of career opportunities and post-secondary options.*

2

' Pathways To Prosperity: Meeting The Challenge Of Preparing Young Americans For the 21st Century, Pathways
To Prosperity Project, Harvard Graduate School of Education, February 2011, available online at
http:/fwww . gse. harvard.edw/sites/defanlt/files//documents/Pathways_to_Prosperity Feb2011-1.pdf,

? Only 30% of Americans earn a bachelor’s degree by their mid-20s. Pathways, p. 9. “Going to college” figures are
misleading: only 56% of those enrolling in a four-year college attain a bachelor’s degree after six years, /bid, p. 6.
3 Pathways, p. 3; see also p 25 (“graduates of the best community colleges often ean more, and have a far clearer
sense of direction, than some of their counterparts with B.A.’s™),

*Patiways, p. 28: “at the high-school level, the quality of CTE [Career and Technical Education] programs varies
enormously, and many of the best new programs serve only a small number of students. There is a similar disparity
in both quality and completion among community college programs.” There are many excellent programs, such as
registered apprenticeship programs, see U.S. Department of Labor website,
http://www.dol.gov/dol/topic/training/apprenticeship.htm,, described in Pathways, (p 25) as “a well-kept secret . .
extremely effective pathway to jobs.” There are roughly 500,000 apprentices enrolled in such programs, and many
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e Many students (including academically strong students) are turned off by traditional
academic/abstract teaching® and will be far more engaged (and much more successful)
with a hands-on project-based approach to education.®

» What matters most is not learning “content” but learning how to learn, how to work in
teams, how to be resilient’, a healthy work-ethic®, and the importance of dependability.

o  While the welfare of students is paramount, a career-based education is also vital to the
health of the economy — in South Bend,? in Indiana,'® and in the U.S. as a whole.!!

The Career Academy was conceived and is operated on these principles.

2. Provide a brief narrative highlighting the school’s accomplishments since its launch.
Briefly address the opportunities and challenges facing the school.

The school’s major accomplishments since opening in August of 2011 have been:

a. Growth in enrollment (from 151 students upon opening in August of 2011 to 509
students in 2014-15), reflecting a highly positive “word of mouth” effect: students
and parents like the school. See enrollment chart at page 10 below.

in unregistered programs, Pathways, p. 33. However, the average age of beginning apprentices is 25. Howard
Gordon, The History and Growth of Career and Technical Education in America, Waveland Press 2008, p. 7. These
could be effective for high school students, but it takes years for students to find their way into such programs,
Similarly, as the Pathways report notes at p. 13: “Many adults over the age of 25 have discovered that community
colleges offer programs leading to well-paying jobs . . . but recent high school graduates are often poorly
represented in such programs due in part to lack of information.”

> See “Black Students Want More ‘Relevant’ Coursework,” South Bend Tribune, January 20, 2015,

hitp://www southbendtribune.coin/news/education/black-students-want-more-relevant-

coursework/article 018937d1-3¢09-53db-9685-efc05ef6be30.himl.

8 See Pathways, p. 27, describing Project Lead The Way, a project-based educational approach used by the Career
Academy (described at http:/fwww.pltw.org/).

7 See Paul Tough, How Children Succeed, especially chapter 2 (“How To Build Character.”); summary at “What If
The Secret To Success Is Failure,” New York Times Magazine (Paul Tough), September 14, 2011, at
htipfwww.nytimes.cony/2011/09/1 8/magazine/what-if-he-secret-to-suceess-is- faiture.html?_1=1; see also Angela
Duckworth’s 10/18/2009 speech “True Git: Can Perseverance Be Taught?” available online at
http://tedxtalks.ted.convvideo/ TEDx Blue-Angela-Lee-Duckworth-P.

® Industriousness can be learned, see Peterson & Seligman, Character Strengths and Virtues, p 241.

? Steve Hartz found it very difficult to find employees for his machine-tool shop, and found from speaking to many
other local business owners that they agreed: the local schools are not preparing young people to be qualified for
jobs available in the Michiana economy.

10 14 Indiana, 36% of the workforce was over age 43 as of 2004, but the manufacturing workforce is significantly
older (primary metal manufacturing: 55%; electrical equipment manufacturing: 54%; computer and electronic
manufacturing: 50%; machinery manufacturing: 45%). “Boomer Retirements In Indiana” (Research and Analysis
Department of the Indiana Departinent of Workforce Development, at
http://www.incontext.indiana.edu/2005/september/1.asp. Steve Dwyer of Conexus Indiana writes “with the average
age of the Indiana manufacturing worker hovering at about 50, the state faces a looming shortage of qualified
employees.” From “The Jobs Keep Coming, But We Need Qualified Workers” (press release, July 1, 2010, at
hitp://www.conexusindiana.com/news-release/new-post-title.

1 “Help Wanted on Factory Floor,” James Hagerty, Wall Street Journal, May 6, 2011 (online at
http://online. wsj.com/article/SB10001424052748703643 10457629 136034069 1 764 .htm]




b. Academic improvement year to year as reflected by ISTEP passing rates.!?

¢. Recruiting and developing a strong teaching team, which can be expected to lead
to further academic improvement.

d. Establishment of working relationships with many area businesses, providing
students with opportunities for job shadowing, internships, class visits, &
exposure to the business/professional world. see enrollment chart at page
below} in appendix

While these accomplishments are significant, there have also been challenges, of which
the foremost is that students arriving at the Career Academy typically are at reading and math
proficiency levels two or three years behind national norms for their grade level, reflecting
conditions in the South Bend Community School Corporation schools.!* Although there has been
academic progress, the starting point was so low!* that CASB received an “F” grade for its first
three years. A factor in the “F” grade was CASB’s extensive involvement with The Crossing, an
alternative education program (see Indiana Code 20-30-8-1) focusing on drop-out recovery, see
http://www.crossingeducation.com/: as indicated in Attachment 6, CASB’s extensive enrollment
of Crossing students who never actually attended CASB, which peaked in 2013-14 and has now
been discontinued, adversely affected CASB’s graduation rate and other IDOE data. But without
regard to the Crossing effect, the academic data for students attending CASB was unacceptable. .

Recognizing that the academic performance in the 2012-13 school year was insufficient,
the school retained a new principal, Paul Schlottman, in December of 2013, Mr. Schlottman has
made extensive changes, including replacing roughly half of CASB’s teachers during the
summer of 2014. Much of Mr. Schlottman’s approach is described in the Student Improvement
Plan filed with the IDOE in March of 2014, which was incorporated in the amendment of
CASB’s charter in the spring of 2014 to authorize opening Grade 5 and Grade 6 in the fall of
2014-15. Mr. Schlottman recruited 27 new teachers and staff members for the 2014-15 school
year, including “Master Teachers” with extensive experience and a record of proven academic
success, who not only teach but devote a substantial part of each working day to coaching other
teachers. Teachers have received professional development in the Schlechty Center’s “culture of
engagement” techniques (http://www.schlechtycenter.org/ ) and in the Smekens “6+1” writing
methods (http://www.smekenseducation.com/6-traits-of-writing.htmtl). As reflected in this year’s

12 The Career Academy’s ISTEP passing rates have been:

% passing ISTEP 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014
Both English & Math 36.5 41.8 535
English 45.8 48.4 64.0
Math 47.9 52.7 62.5

' In 2010, SBCSC ranked 288 of the 292 Indiana school systems in the percentage of students passing the English
and math ISTEP tests: only Hammond, Gary, Indianapolis and East Chicago were lower. Indianapolis Star,
7/12/2011, hitp.//www.indystar.com/article/201 107 13/NEWS04/107 130324/ISTEP-Improvement-not-

much?odyssey=mod_sectionstories. The Career Academy’s assessment of its students is based on the Northwest

Education Association (NWEA) standardized tests.

4 The school’s initial ISTEP passing rates were low in comparison to SBCSC, reflecting that the school was
enrolling many of the weakest students who had attended SBCSC schools.




Acuity test scores for the Algebra and English 10 ECAs, the school believes that Mr.
Schlottman’s approach is working well.

Despite past improvement and expected further improvement, the school expects that
2014-15 ISTEP and ECA test scores will be a challenge due to this year’s tests being
substantially more difficult than tests in past years as a result of Indiana’s new academic
standards. It is expected that the effect of the new test on CASB will be evaluated in a context of
substantially lower scores state-wide, even at the highest-performing schools. While this is not a
problem unique to CASB, the use of very different tests will make it difficult to prove academic
improvement from 2013-14, and may result in another “F” grade in 2014-15. Whatever is done
with Indiana’s school grading system, CASB expects that the underlying reality is that academic
performance will continue to improve, and the school’s “grade” will improve in future years.

3. Explain why the school’s board would like to switch authorizers.

As indicated in its 11/24/2014 letter of intent, the Career Academy discussed with its current
authorizer, Ball State University, its desire its current operations into a high school (grades 9-12)
and middle school (grades 5-8), which would conform to how public schools in St. Joseph
County are organized and help establish a more independent identity for the middle school, and
to expand to a full K-12 program by adding an elementary school, BSU was not willing to
approve these plans. Also, as CASB has learned more about Trine University, we came to
believe it would be a better working relationship in that Trine has both an engineering focus and
an entrepreneurial perspective. While academic success is important, an exclusive focus on test
scores misses the bigger picture, and a “deficit mindset” is counterproductive.

Governance And Management

1. What legal entity is the school’s charter holder? How does the chosen governance model
support quality oversight of the school, including monitoring of academic outcomes, financial
health, organizational compliance, and school leadership performance? Please list all active
board committees (e.g., Finance Commiltee).

The charter is held by Career Academy of South Bend, Inc., an Indiana non-profit corporation
governed by a seven-member board of directors, Larry Garatoni, the school’s
president/treasurer and one of its founders, has provided and continues to provide extensive
financial support both personally and through the Garatoni-Smith Family Foundation. Mr.
Garatoni has recruited the other members of the board, each of whom has valuable expertise,
and provides the services of the school’s attorney, Charles Loeser, and (on a temporary basis)
an accountant, Kim Richardson (Mr. Loeser and Ms. Richardson are employees of Mr.
Garatoni’s company, HQ Investments). The board’s oversight of the school, including
monitoring of academic outcomes, led to the recruitment of Mr. Schlottman as the school’s
new principal at the start of 2014. As initially organized in February 2011, board functions
included an Executive Committee, Finance Committee, Marketing Committee, and Academic
Committee, however only the Finance Committee is currently active.



2. List the school’s current board members and provide a brief explanation of the expertise
each member brings to the board. Has there been any significant board member turnover?
How long has the current Board Chair been in his or her role? As Attachment 1, provide
resumes for the Board Chair and all other Board officers. [Attached.] As Attachment 2,
provide a copy of the Board minutes from the last three Board meetings. [Attached.]

The current board members are:

Lawrence Garatoni Retired businessman/philanthropist.!* Expertise in business,

President/Treasurer finance, and management. Resume at Attachment 1.

Finance Committee '

Tracy Graham Founder of multiple successful software businesses. Notre

Finance Committee Dame graduate, active in many non-profit organizations. Served
on transition team for South Bend mayor Pete Buttigieg.'®

Vivian Sallie Expertise in governance of non-profit organizations, marketing

Secretary and community relations. Resume at Attachment 1.

Jinny Longbrake H.R. Director of Beacon Health System. Expertise in health

careers. Serves as of Chair, Indiana Workforce Board
Association and Northern Indiana Workforce Board.

Larry Davis President/Owner of Daman Products http://www.daman.com/
Expertise in advanced manufacturing, extensive experience in
support of educational organizations. Indiana’s Small Business
Person of the Year 2005. Recipient of the South Bend Alumni
Association’s 2011 Corporate Contribution to Education Award

Suzanne Wiwi Principal of St. Joseph Grade School, South Bend, which was
named a 2011 National Blue Ribbon School!” by the U.S,
Department of Education, Expertise in education,

Thomas Coley, Ph.D. Chancellor of Ivy Tech Community College, Northwest and
North Central Regions. Expertise in education.

Of the seven board members, four (Mr. Garatoni, Mr. Graham, Ms, Sallie and Ms, Wiwi)
have served since the first board meeting in February of 2011. Dr, Coley was elected in
March, 2014 to replace Robert Staley (founder/CEO of The Crossing), who resigned. Mr.
Davis was clected in June, 2014 to replace James Summers (a retired business executive),
who resigned. Steve Hartz, one of the founders of the school, resigned from the board after
becoming a resident of Florida (BSU requires all board members to be Indiana residents);
he was replaced by Bruce Greenberg, who served for over a year before resigning because
he moved to Florida; Mr. Greenberg was replaced by Jinny Longbrake. Mr. Garatoni has
served as Chairman of the Board/President since the corporation was founded in July,
2010.

3 See http://www.uwsjc.org/news-and-events/c-news/388-philanthropist-of-the-vear-winners-judy-a- farry-garatoni.html,
155 ee http://www.freshstartsouthbend. comy/transition-teamy/tracy-graham.

1 See http:/fwww2.ed.gov/programs/nelbbrs/index. htnl.




3. Describe the school’s leadership structure. How does this support the school design, as
well as effective operations of the school? Has there been any significant leadership
turnover at the school? As Attachment 3, provide the resume for the current Head of
School/Principal.

The school’s leadership structure, as reflected by the right half of the organizational chart (see
Item 2 of the Phase One documents submitted 1/27/15), relies largely on the “Master Teacher”
for each group (Yvonne Kinney for Grades 5-6, Chad Rogow for Grades 7-8, Alvin Essenburg
for Grades 9-10, Jeff Mandeville for Grades 11-12, and Alex Hammel for Electives). Each of
them supervises and coaches the other teachers in their area. The left side of the org chart shows
the extensive staff for Special Education (headed by Rachell Davis) as well as the remediation
and administrative staff. The leadership structure is needs-based, arranging staff into areas of
need and providing the leadership needed for operations, curriculum, student support services,
development, etc. This structure may be revised to adapt to the evolving needs of our students
and our organization. Resume of Mr. Schlottman is attached.

4. As Attachment 4, provide a copy of the school’s Governance Documents (i.e., 501(c)(3)
Letter of Determination from the Internal Revenue Service, Articles of Incorporation,
Bylaws, Conflicts of Interest/Code of Ethics Policies). Attached.

School Qverview

Education Program

1. Describe the guiding educational philosophy of your school. Provide an overview of the
curricula, tools, methods and instructional techniques that support the educational
philosophy.

The school’s “guiding educational philosophy” is “education for life” — as described in
the executive summary. A major aspect of that approach is the focus on project-based learning,
not only in the school’s extensive offering of Project Lead The Way classes!® but in all classes.
Lecturing is minimized, participation is maximized. CASB emphasizes not only science,
technology, engineering and math (STEM; or “ STEAM” — including art) but a “whole chiid”
approach including socio-affective counseling and relationship-building. CASB education is not
just about science, technology, engineering and math,; the goal is an applied, integrated approach
to those subjects, using math and science to solve real-world challenges and problems, helping
students understand and appreciate the relevancy of their work to the world around them.

“Real world” education also means longer school days (8am-5pm), systematic career
rescarch starting at grade 7, exposure to local businesses (at the school and at business sites),
exposure to social issues, ¢.g., the annual “Fallen Heroes” march & the annual “Challenge Day”
(http://www.challengeday.org/) when CASB students (many of whom are from single parent
homes or are otherwise disadvantaged) find they are not “alone” in those challenges.

13 See htips://www.pltw.ore/ CASB offers, among others, Intro to Advanced Manufacturing, Advanced
Manufacturing, Computer Integrated Manufacturing, Introduction to Engineering and Principles of Engineering.

6




The curricula, tools, methods and instructional technigues that support the educational
philosophy include, in addition to PBL/PLTW:

. Elementary foreign language (Spanish) for 30 min. daily

. Teacher looping (building solid relationships with teachers and staying with their

student for two to three years)

. Orton-Gillingham language training, which although designed for special

education and dyslexic students is even more effective with general education and high

ability kids)

. Technology supported instruction - training students early to use technology to

learn and to use technology responsibly.

. Effective use of instructional technology, e.g., direct instruction is recorded and
posted with lesson plans daily so parents can review with their child and can be their
child’s primary teacher; direct instruction webcast on a secured network so that students
who are home sick can still participate with students; direct instruction webcast so that
students can continue to participate in instruction on snow days.)

. 1-to-1 tablet technology so students always have computers as instructional tools.
These can also be signed out to parents so that students can have access to technology at
home when needed.

. whole child service — social work, socio-affective
An important element of instruction is extensive remediation service:
o All Algebra 1 and Geometry students have two math classes daily (120 min.)
(Alg. 1/ Alg. 1 Applied Math Lab; Geometry / Applied Geometry Lab)
o Students retaking ECA receive remediation daily '
(English 10 Remediation and Algebra I Remediation)

» English 10 students that need even more support are pulled out of 9th period with
Reading specialist in small groups three (3) days a week

e 7th & 8th graders needing more support are pulled out of 9th period with a
Reading specialist two (2) days a week _
o ISTEP practice tests are used to target students needing additional support

e Students are ability grouped, and those needing more help are grouped into
smaller classes.

¢ 5th and 6th grade students have two ELLA classes (Writing and Reading) daily
(120 Min.)

¢ 5th and 6th students all received additional Math help during Sth period

¢ Student achievement data and academic vocabulary are posted in every classroom

2. Describe the interim assessments (e.g., DIBELS, Acuity, NWEA MAP, efc.) used by the
school to assess student performance and improvement.

CASB uses Acuity Assessments and NWEA to monitor student progress and growth.

Academic progress is monitored using NWEA in Reading, Language Usage,
Mathematics and Science, This assessment demonstrates where the students are
proficient and in what academic areas they need additional support and resources.
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NWEA scores measure growth for the teachers and students as the year progresses. The
NWEA is administered to CASB students four times a year. All the data from NWEA
assessments is used for student placement and grouping as well as teacher instructional
practices and focus.

Acuity Assessments consist of Readiness and Predictive. Students in grades 5 — 8 take
Acuity Readiness tests, which guide teachers in identifying instructional strategies and
preparing lessons, The Readiness assessments measure to extent to which students have ¢
mastered the material to be covered during the academic year.

Acuity Predictive assessment tests are administered to Algebra I and English 10 students.
These tests were designed to identify what students are on course to pass the Algebra |
and English 10 ECA tests, as well identifying what areas be need to be addressed in the
teacher’s instructional practices.

Is the board satisfied with the school’s academic outcomes to date? If no, what corrective
actions has the school taken to ensure the school is on a positive academic trajectory?
The board was not satisfied with the school’s academic outcomes for its first two and a
half years of operation, which is why Mr. Schlottman was recruited to take over as the
school’s principal. The board is pleased with the progress that has been made since Mr.
Schlottman took over in January of 2014, but further progress is necessary.

As Attachment 6, provide the completed Academic Performance Workbook (please use
provided EXCEL template). Attached. As Attachment 7, provide a copy of the school’s
most recent accountability/annual report prepared by the current authorizer. Attached.

Financial Management

1.

What staff member is primarily responsible for managing the school’s finances?

Kim Richardson, a CPA employed by Larry Garatoni’s company HQ Investments, has
been providing accounting services for the school since the resignation of the school’s
prior CFO in July of 2014. The school is in the process of recruiting a new CFO and
expects to have a new CFO on board in April.

Does the school have any contracts for bookkeeping services? No. If yes, please provide
the name of any providers. Not applicable.

As Attachment 8, provide the following financial information for the school and any

related business entities.
a. The last three years of audited financial statements and management letters for the

school; and
b. Current fiscal year budget and year-to-date actual expenses.

Since the school has only completed three years of operations and the audit for the fiscal year
ending 6/30/2014 has not been completed, Attachment 8 provides the audited statements for FYE
6/30/2012 and FYE 6/30/2013, as well as the school’s financial statement (with comparisons to
budget) for the current school year through the end of January.



Operations and Compliance

1. Is the school facing any major operational challenges, including challenges with
facilities, transportation, technology, school lunch program, ete.? If yes, briefly describe
the board’s plan to address these challenges.

The school views transportation as a significant challenge. Indiana does not provide any
form of funding for transportation for charter schools. Most CASB students rely on their
parents for transportation (the school has arranged with the South Bend city bus service
for a direct route from the west side of South Bend — where many CASB students live —
but only a small minority of CASB students use the Metro bus service. CASB is pursuing
Title I funding for bus services, for which the school qualifies legally, but to-date no such
funding has been available.

There is also a challenge with the traffic flow for student drop-off and pick-up, With this
year’s increased enrollment, it has been necessary to employ off-duty police officers to
direct traffic during drop-off and pick-up. The school is investigating the possibility of
acquiring an adjacent parcel to provide more space for parking and traffic flow.

2. Identify any current or past litigation, including arbitration proceedings, involving the
charter school. Provide the following as Attachment 9: (a) the demand, (b) any response
to the demand, and (c) the results of the arbitration or litigation.

As indicated in Attachment 9, there is not any current litigation or arbitration
proceedings, nor has there been any in the past,

Other Information

1. Describe any other information the board believes is relevant to the evaluation of the
school’s Change in Authorizer application.

The school believes that its growth in enrollment demonstrates its growing reputation and
acceptance by the public, see “Market Success” attachment (next page).



Market Success (Attachment To Application for Change of Authorizer)

- Enroliment By Grade*

rade 5 o 57_2
s EURILTETEUNS SO NN Nt S - '46
70

Grade 8 | | 50 | 67 65. 60
Grade © ; 59 : o P 90
Grade 10 85, 76 .._66
Grade 11 28 89 _-..""64
Grade 12 24 55| 41
Total Enroliment| - 151 340 330 508

*As reported at the IDOE COMPASS website (ﬁ;gures prior to 2014-15 include students enrolled
at CASB but attending The Crossing).

Many parents and students have expressed their satisfaction with the school. A selection of
quotes is attached. [Names deleted]

(7th Grade; FB review)— 5 STARS! This is only my first year here but I love it
more than my old school. The teachers are more trustworthy and they care about you. We do lots
of projects and the teachers make sure you understand everything, We had Challenge Day last
week and it was a full day of expressing your feelings and knowing you’re not alone and that
there are people who care. [ can't think of another school that would do that!

(parent; FB) — Some of the MOST CARING, hardest working teachers in the
State of Indiana!l

(8th grade; FB) — Omg! I love CASB because we just had Challenge Day, one
of the most amazing days of my life. I learned something from it , "you’re not alone”". And we
are always doing something like fun activities or hands on projects. Thank you CASB for
changing me!

(parent) — Wonderful school! My daughter struggled so much in SBCS and |
could not get the support she needed. CASB had it all in place before school started! :-) She was
also bullied horribly in SBCSC and has not had a problem here. This school is such a blessing
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and has given her the confidence to be successful in school and life! My daughter LOVES this
school! It is nice to see her come home happy! In her SBCS, she came home crying at least once
a week because of extreme bullying. It is such a blessing to have this school in our community!

(parent) Teachers care about their students! I see how my kids changed for the
better as far as learning and I sense confidence in themselves.

(parent) My daughter has never enjoyed learning as much as she has at
CASB! The teachers have helped her to build her confidence and explore new opportunities. She
has become so engaged in all that the school has to offer with outstanding support from teachers.
As a parent my own personal experiences have been equally positive. I am grateful for this
school and the amazing staff!

(Parent) I do admire his teachers at Career Academy South Bend. They
go above and beyond the standards set by traditional schools and ensure that the children work to
their full potential. Each child is an individual at different levels in each subject. They do not
just check-the-box. [My son] feels like he is part of a community there; everyone helps
everyone. He has no hesitation to talk to any member of the staff when problems arise. [He]
feels like his ideas are taken into consideration and that they are appreciated. For example, [he]
saw a need for his friend to have a designated area that he could go to when the class activities
were too stressful for him. [My son] suggested a student lounge. The teachers told [him] to
develop a presentation on the idea for the staff. [He] gave the presentation, and the idea was
approved. [He] and his friend are working with teachers to enhance an area that was already
designated for students,

(parent) My son is excited to go to school there! Haven't seen that from him in

years! Thank you!

(parent) You are making such a difference for our family! Qur son comes
home every single day with a happy heart and a love for school. THANK YOU!

(parent) Our boys are loving it!!!! Glad to see a smile on their faces after

school!

(parent) My son has never been so happy at school, he comes home eager
to sharc about his day and wakes up each morning ready to go to school. Thank you for all you
do for these kids.
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Career Academy of South Bend Change of Authorizer Application to Education One, LLC
(Trine University)
Attachment 1: Board Officer Resumes
Career Academy of South Bend, Inc., has three officers:
Lawrence H. Garatoni, President/Treasurer
Vivian Sallie, Secretary

Charles M. Loeser, Assistant Secretary

Resumes are attached.




RESUME
Lawrence (Larry) Garatoni
4100 Edison Lakes Parkway, Suite 260
Mishawaka, IN 46545

Personal and Education
* Married for 50 years with four children and 13 grandchildren.
* BSCE 1961 Purdue University and completed Owners/President Program of
Harvard Business School. _
*  Rank of Captain in Army Reserve.

HQ Investments (2007-Present)
* Manage investments in public equities, private equities, hedge funds, venture
capital and angel investing,
* K-12 education focused philanthropic activities.
*  Manage Garatoni Family Foundation.

Software and Internet sales companies (1994-2007)
* As CEO of Achieve Healthcare Technology, acquired several software companies
and led development of a leading edge product.
* As CEO of FurnitureFind.com and Winesource.com, led development of two on-
line retailing companies.
* Companies sold in 2007,

Health Quest Group (1969-1994)
During this time, founded and operated as CEO several companies. All these companies
were sold in the 1993-1994 time period., '

* Health Quest Corporation - managed long term care, assisted living and
independent living retirement facilities.

* Health Quest Development Corporation — developed, designed and constructed 34
major real estate developments containing 4100 long term care beds, 520 assisted
living units and 300 independent living retirement apartments,

* Achievement Rehab Corporation — provided contract therapy services to LTC
facilities in six states.

* Long Term Care Pharmaceutical Services Corporation - provided institutional
pharmacy services to 22,000 LTC beds and 1,100 correctional facility inmates.
Had six locations in three states.

* Health Quest Infusion Therapy Corporation — provided home infusion therapy
services and patient support from three locations.

Also started and later ceased operation of a physician practice management company, and
a home health company,

Nursing Home Partnership (1964-1969)
During this time, built and operated one LTC facility with a partner, Later bought the

partner’s interests.



Vivian G, Sallfe

Vivian Sallie is President of Sallle and Associates LLC, In Granger, Indiana. She ls a Parllamentarian,
certified by the American Insliluta of Parllamentarians. Vivian assisls nonprofil organizations In developing
(helr bylaws and olher governing documents. She also presides as a governance consultan! with

‘government agencles,

Employment:

Vivian has over 25 years experlence In marketing, strategic planning, fundralsing and business
davelopment In both the private and public sector. Her professional career includes International Harvester
Co. (Navistar) whare she served as the Southem Reglon Communications Director (1974-1981); Senlor
Marketing Director, Hospital Division wilh Humana [nc.,a health care corporation headquartered in
Louisville, KY. (1981-4980). While In Loulsville, she was part owner of three Paradles © retall gift shops
located in the Kentucklana Reglonal Alrport and later sold them to HMS Hosl after relocating to South
Band. In South Bend she served as Director of the Minority and Women Business Development Office, an
affiliate of the Chamber of Commerce of St. Joseph County {1992-2007). During those years she taught a
business devslopment class at Salnt Mary's College. She also created a youth development program
called YEOP (Youth Economic Opportunity Program}) which assisted at-risk youth In learning life-skills,
finding employment, and volunteerism. In 2007 she was named Vice Presldent of Development for United
Way of St. Joseph County and lead campaigns that exceeded $3 milllon for each of the next iwo years. In
2008 she accepted the positlon of Vice President and Diractor of Development for WNIT Public Tslevislon
during that organizalion’s $6.5 milllon capital campaign and refocation to South Bend, IN. In 2012 she

retired from WNIT to care for a terminally ifl parent.

Community Service:
Vivian's communily Involvement includes service on the boards of Beacon Health System (Nominaling and

Governance Commilee Chair); Assoclation of Fundralsing Professionals (Chapter President); Northern
Indiana Historical Society (Governance Chair); South Bend Career Academy, Industrial Revolving Fund of
St. Jossph Counly, and South Band Rotary Club {Programs Chair). For over 18 years Vivian has hosled,
"Michiana Talks” a local community affairs program on WUBU-FM radlo stalion serving the northern
Indiana and Southwest Michigan listening audience (1994-2012). '

Education:
Vivian is a nalive of lllinols and a graduate of Southem Hlinols University where she eamed a B.S. degree

In Soclology. She has also compleled contlnuing education classes al Bellarmine College, Loulsville, KY
and Indiana University South Bend. She is a certified Steven Covey facilitator and she has also attended
numerous leadership development and innovation workshops.

Family and Failh:
Vivian is married to Amold Sallie and logether they are parents to five children and nine grandchildren.

She Is a member of Grealer Saint John Misslonary Baptist Church and Women's Bible Sludy Fellowship
(BSF).



Charles M. Loeser

Office: 4100 Edison Lakes Pkwy, Suite 260. ¢« Mishawaka, IN 46545 e (574) 271-5145, ext. 218
o charles.loeser@hginvestments.com

Education: Michigan State University - B.A. in Political Science, 1974
Harvard Law School - 4.D., 1977

Employed by Health Quest Group (Larry Garatoni) since 1983, General Counsel since 1987.
Counsel for Career Academy of South Bend, Inc. since its inception in July 2010.

1994-2007  Achieve Healthcare Information Systems/Achieve HealthcareTechnologies
General Counsel

Corporate attorney for Minneapolis-based provider of software and related services to the long
term care industry, serving approximately 3,000 facilities nationwide with comprehensive systems
for the financial and clinical operations of nursing homes, assisted living facilities, and related
facilities.

Preparation of standard forms and negotiated exceptions for ail client contracts
Agreements for acquisition of software-related companies

Agreements for acquisition of licenses for resale of third party software/services
Partnerships/joint ventures/service agreements

Employment iaw

Supervise litigation/arbitration

1983-2015 Health Quest Group, South Bend, indiana
General Counsel {(1987-2015), Assistant G.C. (1983-1987)

Corporate attorney for privately-held organization which as of 1983 was operator/developer of
nursing homes, assisted living facilities, and retirement housing facilities in Indiana, Florida, &
llinois (30+ facilities), moved into operation of pharmacies (8 branches, serving 22,000+ nursing
home residents), rehabilitation therapy {150+ therapists), home health care, and physician
practice management. During 1990’s divested, sold pharmacy, therapy and home health
businesses, leased/sold facilities; acquired software company, and began venture capital
investments. In 2007 sold software company & other operating companies. Now involved as
angel investor focusing on early-stage Indiana (especially Michiana) based companies.

Represented company as buyer, seller, lessor & lessee in 50+ sale/lease transactions
Represented company as borrower in 50+ financing/frefinancing transactions, including
construction loans, municipal bond-based financing, HUD/FHA financing, multiple-bank
credit-enhanced transactions

* Represented company in regulatory, litigation, and employment matters

1994-2015 General Counsel for SLCM LLC
Represented developer (and until 2004 operator) of assisted living facilities and
retirement housing facilities) in real estate acquisitions, construction contracts,
financing, customer & employment matters

1977-1983 Bonahoom, Chapman, McNellis & Michaels, Fort Wayne, IN
Associate attorney with concentration in real estate and litigation

Bar Admission: indiana {1978}



Career Academy of South Bend Change of Authorizer Application to Education One, LLC
(Trine University)
Attachment 2: Board Meeting Minutes

Attached are minutes of the last three board meetings of Career Academy of South Bend, Inc.



Career Academy of South Bend, Inc.
Minutes of Meeting of Board of Directors
Tuesday, October 21, 2014
3801 Crescent Circle, South Bend, IN

Directors present: Larry Garatoni, Jinny Longbrake, Vivian Sallie, Larty Davis, Tracy Graham Tom Coley.
Absent: Bruce Greenberg and Susan Wiwi

It was determined that a quorum was present and the meeting was called to order at 5:38 p.m. by Board President,
Larry Garatoni,

Minutes of the September 24, 2014 board meeting wete approved.

"Two students shared with the board their experiences while on a trip to Bair Lake. The “take aways” from the trip
for both students were getting to know new people, building relationships with old and new friends. One student
added that he learned new leadership skills from his responsibilities of helping to coordinate and schedule the trip.

School Opetations: School Superintendent, Paul Schlottman repotted on traffic flow improvements. A map was
distributed showing proposed entrance, exit and student drop-off changes. Additional sidewalks will be added for
safety and convenience. The target goal is to go from 20 minutes to 10 minutes pick-up time and make parents a
lot happier. Changes will begin immediately.

Paul Schlottman also reported on the 2013-14 ISTEP Compatisons. Indiana Star was the source of the data. CASB
had an 11.8% improvement in passing proficiency. The Fall 2013-Spring 2014 NWEA Proficiency and Growth
Results were also reviewed. Board members reviewed the data and noted that there have some slight
improvements. A report was distributed which indicates 27.9 percent of students are above proficiency in reading
and 29.4 percent are below reading proficiency. Mathematics proficiency tate is 22.0 percent above average
proficiency and 40.7 percent falls below. Language proficiency is 27.7 petcent above average and 24.6 percent
below. Discussion followed regarding clarification of the data.

Chad Addie reported that new software is being researched for customer tesource management and site
development. The purpose of the software is to assist with analyzing data to inform decision making when selecting

future sites and tracking family engagement for development putposes.

President Garatoni closed the meeting with comments from visitors and school staff. It was reported that a
successful blood drive held earlier on October 21 was organized by students. Board members were invited to
attend a student theatrical performance. It was reported that the student band has shown great improvement. Bart
Fostet reported that the student body has seen an increase from 50 special education students to 150 special
education students. Some of the students in special education classes have been diagnosed as autistic. He also
repotted that discipline has not been a significant problem this school yeat. Thete have been two expulsions due to

lack of respect for rules this school year.
The Board meeting adjourned at 6:30 p.m. and a closed Executive Session followed.

Vivian Sallie, Secretary



Career Academy of South Bend, Inc.
Minutes of Meeting of Board of Directors
December 16, 2014

Directors Present: Larry Garatoni, Thomas Coléy, Jinny Longbrake, Vivian Sallle, Suzanne Wiwl

By Phone: Steve Hartz

Absent: Tracy Graham, Larry Davis
Staff Attending: Paul Schlottman, Chad Addie, Kim Richardson, Charles Loeser, others

Larry Garatoni called the meeting to order at 6:50 pm.

A Minutes of Prior Meeting. Vivian moved for approval of the minutes of the prior
(October 21) meeting, Suzanne seconded, and the minutes were unanimously approved.

B. Rooftop Heater. Paul presented a memo from Evan Henry, CASB Facllities
Director, outlining the need to replace the Roof Top Unit for the welding area, construction
area, and back offices. The unit has become unsafe to operate; a gas odor was detected and the
unit was found to be rusted through, so the gas supply was turned off. A supplemental heater
has been used temporarily but the RTU needs to be replaced or subzero weather may resuitin
plumbling freeze-ups. Evan obtained two bids and recommends accepting the lower one
($21,576) from 0JS Bullding Services, He also searched on line and the pricing he found for the
same equipment was higher. Tom moved that the 0JS proposal be accepted, Jinny seconded,

and the motion was approved unanimously.

C. Staff Handbook. Paul explained that the staff handbook has been shortened and
updated, e.g., to include payroll and vacation pay policles which the board has previously
approved. Suzanne moved that the revised handbook be approved, Jinny seconded, and the
motlon was approved unanimously, ‘

D. Budget. Kim Richardson explained that the 2014-15 budget has been updated to
reflect actual student count and more recent cost information. Tom moved that the revised
proposal be approved, Suzanne seconded and the motion was approved unanimously.

E, Claims Paid/Banking Detall. Kim Richardson presented-the claims pald/bank
detail report for October 16-December 9. Jinny asked about the payment of credit card charges.
Paul explalned that the card is in his name and is kept at the school to be used only for
purchases (with his approval) requiring advance electronlc payment rather than invoicing and
payment by check. Suzanne moved that the report be approved, Jinny seconded, and the

motlon was approved unanimously.

_ F. Financial Statement For November. Kim Richardson presented the November
financial statement, There were no material surprises or issues. finny moved that the statement
be approved, Suzanne seconded, and the motion was approved unanimously.




G. CEOQ Program. Larry explained he s organizing (and his Foundation is helplng to
fund) a program known as the CEO (for “Creating Entrepreneurtal Opportunities”) program,
based a model created by a nonprofit organization, Midland Institute for Entrepreneurship
based in Effingham, Illinois, and he would like the Career Academy as well as other high schools
in St. Joseph County to particlpate. The program, as outlined on the CEO website, is funded by
local businesses, which invite a select group of students (roughly 15-20 students per year,
meaning only a few from each school) to meet at thelr plants or offices to learn not only about
particular businesses but the process of starting and running a business. Students are matched
with mentors from the business community, and In the second semester, each student creates
and operates an independent business. The program is described in detall on the Midland
Institute webslte, http://www.midlandinstitute.com/what-is-ceo. Larry has obtained
commitments of support from many local businesses and has recruited a board of leading area
businesses executives and education professionals to serve as the board for the CEO program.!
Larry gave a quick summary of local support for the program and asked that Career Academy be
approved to participate. Jinny moved that the Academy go ahead with the program, Tom

seconded, and the motlon was approved unanimously,

The meeting was adjourned at 7:37 pm.

AL w A

Charles Loeser, Assistant Secretary

! The CEO board, other than Larry, Includes: Dave Risner, Jeff Rea, Jim Larkin, Martha Smith, Michae! Lindburg, Phil
Newbold, Sue Panzica, and Tracy Graham,




Career Academy of South Bend, Inc.
Minutes of Meeting of Board of Directors
January 20, 2015

Directors Present: Vivian Sallie, Larry Davis, Jinny Longbrake, Suzanne Wiwi
By Phone: Larry Garatoni

Absent: Tracy Graham, Thomas Coley
Staff Attending: Paul Schlottman, Chad Addie, Kim Richardson, Charles Loeser, others

After a presentation by fifth grade students (“What it means to be a COBRA”), Vivian
Sallie called the meeting to order at 5:45 pm.

A Minutes of Prior Meeting. Larry Davis moved for approval of the minutes of the
prior {December 16) meeting, Suzanne seconded, and the minutes were unanimously

approved.

B. Amendment Of Bylaws. Vivian explained that the Corporation’s bylaws are out of
date in referring to former members and their terms, and that Charles Loeser had prepared a
proposed resolution to amend the bylaws {attached as Exhibit A). Larry Davis moved that the
proposed resolution be adopted, Jinny seconded, and the motion was unanimously approved.

C. Operations Report. Paul explained the rooftop heater replacement that was
authorized at the last meeting has been completed. Teacher evaluations are in process for
purposes of determining first semester bonuses. The process, using a modified Rise/Marzano
evaluation system, is scheduled to be completed before the next board meeting. The school will
begin in February a program (“SHINE”) for special education students; notices will be sent to
parents explaining details. Paul noted that there have been several snow days already, but with
a school calendar providing for 190 days of instruction, there should be no difficulty meeting
the state requirement of 180 days. CASB will always close if South Bend Community Schools or
Penn Harris Madison schools are closed, and will usually close if either of those systems has a
two hour delay. Since CASB students are responsible for their own transportation, CASB will
close for some days that SBCSC and PHM schools do not. There is a remote access camera
system at the school, allowing Paul to see weather conditions at the school from his home.
Parents are notified of school closings via postings on WNDU, WSBT, FOX28, ABC57, the school
website, Facebook and the school’s Robo Call System “School Reach”.

D. Ardmore Building. Vivian explained that the school has negotiated a proposed
agreement with the City of South Bend to acquire the St. Vincent de Paul building at 3408
Ardmore Trail, together with a 2-acre vacant lot on its west side, for use as an elementary
school and that Charles Loeser had prepared a proposed resolution (attached as Exhibit B) to
authorize Larry Garatoni, the Corporation’s president, to proceed with the acquisition. Larry
Davis, after noting that the draft resolution refers to the Garatoni Family Foundation having
offered to provide funding for the acquisition, expressed his appreciation for Larry Garatoni’s




generosity, and move that the proposed resolution be adopted. Suzanne seconded, and the
motion was unanimously approved.

E. Trine Application. Vivian explained that in order to have Trine University act as
the school’s authorizer, as has been discussed previously, both Trine and Ball State, the school’s
current authorizer, require board resolutions confirming the school’s choice, and that Charles
Loeser had prepared a number of proposed resolutions for that purpose.

1. Attached as Exhibit C and Exhibit D are proposed resolutions to authorize Larry
Garatoni, the Corporation’s president, to proceed with terminating the school’s relationship
with Ball State University and obtaining the agreement of Trine University to act as the school’s
authorizer as soon as possible. Jinny moved that the proposed resolutions be adopted. Larry
Davis seconded, and the motions were unanimously approved.

2. Attached as Exhibit £, Exhibit F and Exhibit G are proposed resolutions to adopt
financial policies and supplements to the school’s student and staff handbooks. Larry Davis
moved that the proposed resolutions be adopted. Jinny seconded, and the motions were
unanimously approved.

F. National Guard Initiative. Paul introduced Bob Carnagey, who is the Employment
Specialist for northern Indiana for the Indiana National Guard Employment Engagement Team,
responsible for assisting National Guard veterans seeking civilian careers. Paul explained he met
Bob as a result of CASB’s participation in a “Fallen Heroes” march, and that Bob is interested in
creating a program for veterans to receive vocational training using CASB’s facility. This could
be done in a way that would not conflict with the schedules of CASB students. There would be
funding available through the Gl Bill. Welding and IT training would probably be the initial
offerings. Bob explained that there are 14,000 National Guardsmen in Indiana, which makes
Indiana fifth among the states in the number of veterans, and that Indiana has the highest rate
of unemployment among veterans among the fifty states. Bob said he and Paul will discuss
possible arrangements but he looks forward to establishing a working relationship. Paul said he
would come back to the board with a detailed proposal at a future meeting.

G. Financial Reports. Kim Richardson presented the claims paid/bank detail report
for December 10-January 15 and the December financial statement. She explained the financial
statement shows income far over budget because during December $1,000,000 in debt owed
to the Garatoni Family Foundation was converted to a donation. Larry Davis moved that the
claims report and financial statement be approved, Suzanne seconded, and the motion was
approved unanimously.

H. Five Year Financial Plan. Kim presented a five-year financial projection,
explaining that the Trine application requires it. The projections are based on the forecasted
enrollment utilized in the breakeven analysis previously presented to the board, and includes
beginning in 2015-16 the $1,500 per student annual capital expenditure payment proposed by
Governor Pence, which is considered highly likely to be approved by the legislature. Jinny
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moved that the plan be approved, Larry Davis seconded, and the motion was approved
unanimously.

l Article On Relevance in Education. Vivian distributed an article from the January
20 South Bend Tribune about black students speaking out at a Martin Luther King meeting on
Monday {January 19) about the need for education, especially high school, to be relevant to
students’ lives.! The story, by Kim Kilbride, is excellent and confirms the principle on which
CASB was founded: “education for life” is what students want and need.

The meeting was adjourned at 6:35 pm. L
Ll Ll A

Charles Loeser, Assistant Secretary

1 Link to article: http://www.southbendtribune.com/news/education/black-students-want-
more-relevant-coursework/article 018937d1-3¢09-53db-9685-efc05ef6be30.html.




EXHIBIT A TO MINUTES OF JANUARY 20, 2015 BOARD MEETING
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CAREER ACADEMY OF SOUTH BEND, INC.
AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS

Whereas, the Corporation’s bylaws (at Article 11, Section 1, second paragraph) specify
the duration of the term for each of the directors of the Corporation, with three year terms
expiring in successive months (by alphabetical order of the original directors); and

Whereas, due to the replacement of several directors, such provision of the bylaws is now
out of date; _

NOW, THEREFORE, it is RESOLVED that Article 11, Section 1, second paragraph, of the
Bylaws is modified to provide (new text in italics):

Members of the Board of Directors will serve a term of roughly three years, with the term
of each director as re-elected at the end of the original term, or a new director who is
elected to replace a retiring director to end as of a different month so that during the
month of the expiration of the term of a director, the other members of the board, as
active directors, may re-elect such person to an additional term as a member of the Board,
or elect a new member. The terms of each member shall expire at the end of the month of
the third anniversary of the date of such re-election or appointment. The current board as
of December, 2014 consists of:

o Lawrence Garatoni (term extends to January 31, 2017);

o Tracy Graham (term extended to February 28, 201 7);

o Jinny Longbrake (replacing Bruce Greenberg, who resigned)(lerm extends fo
March 31, 2017),;

o Vivian Sallie (term extends to- April 30, 2017);

e Thomas Coley (replacing Rob Staley, who resigned)(term extends to May 31,
2017);

e Larry Davis (replacing James Summers, who resigned)(term extends to June 30,
2017);

o Suzanne Wiwi (term extends to July 31, 2017).



EXHIBIT B TO MINUTES OF JANUARY 20, 2015 BOARD MEETING
CERTIFICATION OF RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CAREER ACADEMY OF SOUTH BEND, INC.
ACQUISITION OF NEW BUILDING

Whereas, the Corporation wishes to expand its operations to include kindergarten through
Grade 4 and to increase its enrollment in Grades 5-12, for which purpose it is necessary to obtain
additional space beyond the limits of the Corporation’s current building;

Whereas, the Corporation has reached a tentative agreement with the City of South Bend
Department of Redevelopment (the “City”) concerning the building and associated land located
at 3408 Ardmore Trail, South Bend, commonly known as the St. Vincent DePaul Building as set
forth in the draft purchase agreement attached hereto (“the Proposed Agreement™);

Whereas, the Garatoni Family Foundation (“Foundation”), through its trustee, Lawrence
Garatoni (CASB President/Treasurer and Director), has agreed to provide the necessary funds to
the Corporation for the acquisition and remodeling of the St. Vincent DePaul Building for use as

a school;

.~ NOW, THEREFORE, it is RESOLVED that the Corporation is authorized to enter into
the Proposed Agreement (subject to any modifications required by the City and deemed
acceptable by the Corporation’s President) and proceed with the acquisition and remodeling of

the building.



EXHIBIT C TO MINUTES OF JANUARY 20, 2015 BOARD MEETING
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CAREER ACADEMY OF SOUTH BEND, INC.
TERMINATION OF BSU AGREEMENT

Whereas, the Corporation’s agreement with Ball State University (“BSU”) as
“aquthorizer” as defined by Indiana law (Indiana Code § 20-24-1-2.5)(“Charter Agreement”)
extends until June 30, 2016, subject to the right of the Corporation to terminate as of the end of
any school year;

Whereas, for the Corporation to pursue its plan to divide its current 5-12 operations into a
separate high school and middle school, as well as its plan to expand to operation of grades 1-4
and kindergarten, would require an amendment of the Charter Agreement, which BSU has
advised it is reluctant to amend;

Whereas, Trine University (through Education One, LLC) has advised it would be willing
to act as the Corporation’s authorizer, and approves of the Corporation’s expansion plans;

Whereas, pursuant to instructions from Trine, the School has submitted a request for
change of authorizer, and supporting documents, but for Trine to become the Corporation’s
authorizer requires termination of the BSU Charter Agreement;

Whereas, in order for the Corporation to terminate the BSU Charter Agreement, BSU has
advised that a board resolution for such purpose should be submitted:

NOW, THEREFORE, it is RESOLVED that the President of the Corporation is authorized to
submit the attached letter to BSU and to take all action necessary to terminate the Corporation’s
Charter Agreement with BSU as of the end of the current school year (June 30, 2015)(or earlier,
if acceptable to BSU), provided that prior to the date of such termination, Trine shall have agreed
to act as the Corporation’s authorizer.



EXHIBIT D TO MINUTES OF JANUARY 20, 2015 BOARD MEETING
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CAREER ACADEMY OF SOUTH BEND, INC,
REQUEST FOR CHANGE OF AUTHORIZER

This document evidences action at a meeting of the Board of Directors (“Board”) of
Career Academy of South Bend, Inc. (the “Corporation”) on January 20, 2015.

Whereas, the Corporation’s agreement with Ball State University (“BSU”) as
“authorizer” as defined by Indiana law (Indiana Code § 20-24-1-2.5)(“Charter Agreement”)
extends until June 30, 2016, subject to the right of the Corporation to terminate as of the end of
any school year;

Whereas, for the Corporation to pursue its plan to divide its current 5-12 operations into a
separate high school and middle school, as well as its plan to expand to operation of grades 1-4
and kindergarten, would require an amendment of the Charter Agreement, which BSU has
advised it is reluctant to amend;

Whereas, Trine University (through Education One, LLC) has advised it would be willing
to act as the Corporation’s authorizer, and approves of the Corporation’s expansion plans,
subject to receipt of certain documents as to the Corporation’s current and future operations;

NOW, THEREFORE, it is RESOLVED that the President of the Corporation is
authorized to take all action necessary to obtain the agreement of Trine University to become the
Corporation’s authorizer at the earliest feasible date.



EXHIBIT E TO MINUTES OF JANUARY 20, 2015 BOARD MEETING
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CAREER ACADEMY OF SOUTH BEND, INC.
FINANCIAL POLICIES

This document evidences action at a meeting of the Board of Directors (“Board”) of
Career Academy of South Bend, Inc. (the “Corporation™) on January 20, 2015,

Whereas, the Corporation is requesting Trine University (through Education One, L1.C)
to agree to become the Corporation’s authorizer” as defined by Indiana law (Indiana Code § 20-

24-1-2.5); ,

Whereas, Trine has requested, for purposes of considering such request, that the
Corporation commit to certain policies in writing as adopted by board resolution and/or
incorporated into Corporation staff or family/student handbooks;

NOW, THEREFORE, it is RESOLVED that the Corporation adopts financial policies as
attached hereto.



EXHIBIT F TO MINUTES OF JANUARY 20, 2015 BOARD MEETING
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CAREER ACADEMY OF SOUTH BEND, INC.
STUDENT POLICIES

This document evidences action at a meeting of the Board of Directors (“Board™) of
Career Academy of South Bend, Inc. (the “Corporation”) on January 20, 2015.

Whereas, the Corporation is requesting Trine University (through Education One, LLC)
to agree to become the Corporation’s “authorizer” as defined by Indiana law (Indiana Code § 20-

24-1-2.5);

Whereas, Trine has requested, for purposes of considering such request, that the
Corporation commit to certain policies in writing to be incorporated in the Corporation’s
family/student handbook;

NOW, THEREFORE, it is RESOLVED that the Corporation adopts a supplement to its
student handbook as attached hereto,




EXHIBIT G TO MINUTES OF JANUARY 20, 2015 BOARD MEETING
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CAREER ACADEMY OF SOUTH BEND, INC.
STAFF POLICIES

This document evidences action at a meeting of the Board of Directors (“Board”) of
Career Academy of South Bend, Inc. (the “Corporation™) on January 20, 20135,

Whereas, the Corporation is requesting Trine University (through Education One, LLC)
to agree to become the Corporation’s “authorizer” as defined by Indiana law (Indiana Code § 20-

24-1-2.5);

Whereas, Trine has requested, for purposes of considering such request, that the
Corporation commit to certain policies in writing to be incorporated in the Corporation’s
family/student handbook;

NOW, THEREFORE, it is RESOLVED that the Corporation adopts a supplement to ifs
staff handbook as attached hereto.
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Career Academy of South Bend Change of Authorizer Application to Education One, LLC

(Trine University)
Attachment 3: Resume of Head of School/Principal

Attached is the resume of Paul Schlottman,



PAUL SCHLOTTMAN, Ed. S.

1504 Del Vista » Valparaiso, Indlana 46385  Home (219) 465-0077 ¢ Cell (219) 263-3458
8 t 8

PRORESSIONAL OBJECTIVE

To serve as an educational leader who exemplifies character, Integrlty, effective practice and
transformational declston-making. 1will foster an inclusive attitude that respects the diversity of our
community. I will ensure effective teaching, a gnaranteed curriculum, efficlent monitoring and capable
leadership so all students will achieve their fullest potential and become responsible citizens,

EDUCATION and CERTIRICATION

Oakland Unlversity . Rochester, Michigan ' ' 2004 - 2006
Education Specialist Degree  K-12 Educational Administration

.. Wayne State University .. . . Detroit, Michigan W e e e . 1998-2001

Master of Education Degree  Educational Leadership

Waestern Michigan University - Kalamazoo, MI A 1984 - 1988
Bachelor of Science Secondary Education

Indiana Licenses :

License Number: 10027344 SPN No: 10251642 ‘Highest Degree Earned: Speclalist

Superintendent Basis: REPA Grades: Pre-Kto 12 Expires: 2/3/2017

Director of Curriculum and Instruction Basis: REPA Grades: Pre-Kto 12 Expires: 2/3/2017

Building Level Administrator Basis; 2002 Grades: Pre-Kto 12 Bxpires: 6/28/2020

Michigan License

Adminlstrative Certificate Post-Masters Certificate Oakland University Certificate: CC-XUT670284320

PROFXSSIONAL EMPLOYMENT
Principal, Boone Grove Middle School 2006 - Present
Porter Township School Corporation Boone Grove, Indlana (school enrollment: 425)

Consistently earned exemplary progress with annual improvement rates up to 5.8% - “A" rating

Completed two AdvancEd Quality Assurance Reviews and Accreditation with no required actions

Assisted In the development and implementation of IDOE approved Online instructonal days

Developed nationally recognized Challenge Day, Student Council and Principal’s Council

Assisted in the development of our 1-to-1 instructional technology plan

Dramatically improved school climate, culture, diversity acceptance and empathy toward others

Created a student-centered professional learning community (DeFour) ,

Trained staff to use action research and data to make instructional and currlcular dectsions

Created transformational leadership team to promate transparent and shared decislon-making

Decreased discipline referrals 53% with staff development Positive Discipline (Nelson) and PBIS

Implemented comprehensive academic remedfation and RT} intervention programs

Implemented new instructional strategles: 6+1 Writing Traits (Culham), and Working on the
Work (Schlecty), Differentlated Instruction (Allen, Tomlinson), Understanding by Design
(Wigglns, McTighe), and Thinking Maps, Career Exploration and Service Learning

» Agsessments: NWEA, ACT Engage, Acuity, in depth ISTEP data analysis and A+ Learning Link

» Developed scope and sequence curriculum and instructlon strategles to ensure a guaranteed

curriculum mastery of academic standards by all students



Assistant Principal, Lake Sho‘r-a‘High School

= 2003 -2006

Lake Shore Public Schools St Clair Shores, MI (urban suburb of Detroit) (student enroliment; 1147)

Directed all Career and Technical Education programs, budgets and transportation

Successfully completed two Federal Perkins Career Technical grants and audits

Developed dual enrollment, virtual high school, distance learning, off campus programs

Developed university articulation agreements, business partnerships and community outreach

South East Macomb Career Tech Consortium representative (class scheduling, regional
coordination, student transportation, and south-county lialson)

Developed Michigan Model High School Reform Plan and 8% - 9% grade transitions

Developed and implemented district community service and service learning programs

Initated development of International Baccalaureate and Advance Placement curriculum

Attendance and pupil accounting (increased daily attendance by 6% to over 97% average daily)

Founded transformational leadership group to promote transparent and sharad decision-making

Implemented Thematically Integrated Instiuctional Curriculum to increase student engagement

Actlon research: attendance, school climate, student engagenent, and professional development

Assessed and implemented school climate surveys and Improvement strategles

Coordinated staff development and evaluations (evaluated 60% of total staff} :

Student discipline, school safety and school security (decreased disclplinary referrals by 22%)

Developed Instructional curriculum and scheduling in all curricular areas

Supervised state testing and increased participation from 88% to 99% always making AYP

Organized and chaired committees: Student Code of Conduct, Enrollment and Accountability,
Community Service, Service Learning, Staff and Public Relations, and School Improvement

K-12 Visual and Performing Arts Coordinator 1995 - 2003
Ferndale Public Schools  Ferndale, MI (urban suburb of Detroit) (student enrollment: 4000)

Developed one of the finest and most comprehensive fine arts programs In the Mid-West

Managed budgets, inventories, capital projects and RFPs and negotiated vendor contracts

Assessed, developed and implemented curricutum for all Arts areas

Developed and implemented K-12 Master Schedules for all schools

Administrated department of twenty-one visual, performing and dramatic arts teachers

Founder - Arts Across the Curriculum Program integrating arts with academic disciplines

Co-authored and administered several funded grants

Posted, screened, Interviewed, negotiated, and recommended for hire fourteen teachers

Developed staff development and school improvement plans and evaluations

Administered monthly department meetings and professional development in-services

District committees: Ferndale Arts Council, Bond, Facility Design and Implementation, Ferndale
Bducation Association, Program Development, Restructuring, Student and Staff Advisory

Director of Bands

1991 -2003

Ferndale Public Schools Ferndale, MI (student enrollment: 4000}

Increased and maintalned student participation up to 66% of total student population
Coordinated budgets, accounts, purchasing, fundraising, grant writing and capital purchases
Earned consistent superlor ratings at State, and District MS.B.0.A Band Festivals

Directed six performing ensembles: competitive concert bands, jazz bands and marching bands



“$AUL SCHLOTTMAN, Ed. §.~

1504 Del Vista » Valparalso, Indiana 46385 ¢ Home (219) 465-0077 o Cell (219) 263-3458
5C comeast.ne

PROFESSIONAL OBJECTIVE

To serve as an educational leader who exemplifies character, integrity, effective practice and
transformational decision-making. 1 will foster an inclusive attitude that respects the diversity of our
community. [ will ensure effective teaching, a guaranteed curriculum, effictent monitoring and capable
leadership so all students will achieve their fullest potential and become responsible citizens,

EDUCATION and CERTIFICATION

Oakland University Rochester, Michigan ' 2004 - 2006
Education Specialist Degree  K-12 Educational Administration

Wayne State University ' Detroit, Michigan 1998 - 2001
Master of Education Degree  Educational Leadership
Western Michigan University Kalamazoo, Ml 1984 - 1988
Bachelor of Sclence Secondary Education
Indiana Licenses
License Number: 10027344 SPN No: 10251642 Highest Degree Earned: Specialist
Superintendent Basis: REPA Grades: Pre-Kto 12 Expires: 2/3/2017
Director of Curriculum and Instruction Basis! REPA Grades: Pre-Kto 12 Bxpives; 2/3/2017
Building Level Administrator Basis: 2002 Grades: Pre-Kto12 ~ Expires: 6/28/2020

Michigan License ’
Administrative Certificate Post-Masters Certificate Oakland University Certificate; CC-XUT670284320

PROFESSIONAL EMPLOYMENT

Principal, Boone Grove Middle School ‘ 2006 - Present
Porter Township School Corporation Boone Grove, Indiana (school enrollment: 425)

Consistently earned exemplary progress with annual improvement rates up to 5.8% - “A” rating

Completed two AdvancEd Quality Assurance Reviews and Accreditation with no required actions

Assisted in the development and implementation of IDOE approved Online instructional days

Developed nationally recognized Challenge Day, Student Council and Principal’s Council

Assisted in the development of our 1-to-1 instructional technology plan

Dramatically improved school climate, culture, diversity acceptance and empathy toward otheys

Created a student-centered professional learning community (DeFour)

Trained staff to use action vesearch and data to make instructional and curricular declslons

Created transformational leadership team to promote transparent and shared declsion-making

Decreased discipline referrals 53% with staff development Positive Discipline (Nelson) and PBIS

Implemented comprehensive academic remediation and RT! intervention programs

Implemented new instructional strategies: 6+1 Writing Traits (Culham), and Working on the
Work (Schlecty), Differentiated Instruction (Allen, Tomlinson), Understanding by Design
(Wiggins, McTighe), and Thinking Maps, Career Exploration and Service Learning

v Assessments: NWEA, ACT Engage, Acuity, in depth ISTEP data analysis and A+ Learning Link -

» Developed scope and sequence curriculum and Instruction strategies to ensure a guaranteed

curriculum mastery of academic standards by all students



SPECIALIZED TRAINING AND :XPERIENCE

2013 Indiana School Safety Academy and Natlonal Incident Management Certificatlon
2012 Indlana RISE Teacher Evaluation Training Union Township, IN
2012 Indiana Leglslative and Lobbyist Training Indianapolls, IN
2012 ACT Engage Assessment Training Boone Grove, IN
2011,2006 AdvanEd (NCA) Quality Assurance Review Boone Grove, IN
2011 AdvancEd Preparing for your QAR Training Middleberry, IN
2011 CPI School Safety, De-escalation and Restraint Tralning Valparalso, IN
2011 Leadership Northwest Indiana Education Reform Panelist Valparaiso, IN
2010 Indiana Aspiring Superintendent Seminar Indianapolis, IN
2009-2011 Response to Intervention (RT1) Training Hammond, IN
2008 Assoc, for Supervision and Curriculum Dvlp. Nat'l Conference New Orleans, LA

2006 Presenter - Model High School Reform Michigan Assoc. of Sec. School Principals -Conference
2006 Presenter - Model High School Reform Michigan Acad. of Sciences, Arts and Letters - Conference .
2005-2006 Macomb Intermediate School District (MISD) High School Reform Steering Committes

2005-2006 Royal Oak Curriculum Advisory Committee Royal Oak, Ml

2005-2006 Michigan Community Service and Service Learning Program Macomb Inter, School Dist.
2005 United States Secret Service School Safety Training Macomb Inter, School Dist,
2005 Creating Small Learning Communities Training (DeFour) Macomb Inter, School Dist.
2005 'Restorative Practices with Positive Disclpline Training Oakland Schools

2005 Disciplining Students with Disabilities Legal Training Macomb Inter, School Dist,
2005 Redefining Michigan’s High School: Beginning the Process MDOE, Lansing, MI

2005 MDOE Focus Panel ~ Teacher Certification Standards MDOBE, Lansing, Ml

2005 Rethinking Michigan’s High Schools - Willard Daggett Macomb Inter. School Dist
2004 MDOE Teacher Certification Administrative Advisory Committee Lansing, Ml
2004-2006 Best Practice Master Scheduling Training - Pearson Macomb Inter. School Dist,

2004.2006 Caveer Development and Career Academies Develop. Training Macomb Inter. School Dist.
2004-2006  Pupil Accounting Training Macomb Inter. School Dist,
2004-2006 Career Cruising Training Macomb Inter. School Dist.

2004 Career Technical Education Federal Program Audit Macomb Inter. School Dist,
2002-2006 School Bully-Proofing Tralning Ferndale, M1

2001 Author - Michigan Academic Standards - MI CLIMB MDOE, Lansing, MI
1997-2000 President of Oakland Schools Arts Council Qakland Schools
1998-2001 Students in the Middle Conferences MDOE, Lansing, MI
1998-2000 Multiple Intelligence Training by Dr. Howard Gardner Detrolt, MI

2000 Differentiated Instruction Training Ferndale, MI

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS

2012 - Present  Indiana School Safety Academy and Natlonal Incident Management Certification(NiMS}
2013 - Present  Board of Directors - Porter County Youth Service Bureau

2012 - Present  Board of Directors - Positive Approach to Teen Health - PATH

2012 - Present  Leadership Northwest Indiana ~ Class 31 frequent guest and Lake Shore News speaker
2006 - Present  National Assac, of School Principals and Indiana Assoclatlon of School Principals

2006 - Present  Valparalso University Professional Educators Partnership

2003 - 2006 Michigan Assoclation of Secondary School Principals

1998 - Present  Assoclation for Supervision and Curriculum Development



PROFESSIONAL REFERENCES

M Keith Kirkpatrick
Executive Director
Leadership Northwest Indiana
410 E, Lincolnway
Valparaiso, Indiana 46383
(219) 531-0156

Home:

506 Pranklin St.
Valparaiso, IN 46383-4251
Home: (219) 464-0441
Cell: (219) 241-4012

celth@)eaders or k506@comeast.net
Mr., Chadwick Addie
Middle School Education Manager Home:

South Bend Career Academy
3801 Crescent Circle

South Bend, IN 46628
(574) 299-9800

c sheain.or

4238 West Johnson Road
LaPorte, IN 46350
Home: (219) 324-9235
Cell; (219) 393-4609

Mr. Tom Hines

Assistant Principal (vetired)

Thomas Jefferson Middle School
Valparalso Community Schools
Porter Township School Corporation
Expulsion Hearing Officer

Home:

325 Village Square

Chesterton, IN 46304

Home: (219) 787-8786 Cell: (219) 405-2817

Mrs. Paula Kelier
Teacher (Retired)
Boone Grove Middle School

Home:
2785300 W
Valparaiso, IN 46385

Mrs, Carol Schuitz -
Teacher (Retired}
Boone Grove Middle School

(219) 476-1853

Home:

1750 Byfield Parkway
Valparaiso, IN 46385
Home: (219) 462-2264

Murs, Betty Sands
Princlpal (Retired)
Lake Shovre High School

bgsands@comcast.net

Home:

21258 Lilac Lane
Clinton Twp, MI 48037
Home: (586)231-0412

M. Chad Roggow

Teacher

Boone Grove Middle School
325 W.5505,

Boone Grove, IN 46302
(219)464-4828
chad.roggow@ptscki2.inus

Cell: (586)854-4566

Home:

2606 Estero Pkwy
Valparaiso, IN 46383
Cell: (219)252-0315



™ SPECIALIZED TRAINING AND BEXPERIENCE ‘e’

2013 Indlana School Safety Academy and Natlonal Incident Management Certification
2012 Indiana RISE Teacher Evaluation Training Union Township, IN
2012 Indiana Legislative and Lobbylst Training Indlanapolis, IN
2012 ACT Engage Assessment Tralning Boone Grove, IN
2011,2006 AdvanEd {NCA) Quality Assurance Review Boone Grove, IN
2011 AdvancEd Preparing for your QAR Training Middieberry, IN
2011 CPI School Safety, De-escalatlon and Restraint Training Vaiparalso, IN
2011 Leadership Northwest Indiana Education Reform Panellst Valparaiso, IN
2010 Indlana Aspiring Superintendent Seminar Indianapolis, IN
2009-2011 Response to Intervention (RTI) Training Hammond, IN
2008 Assoc. for Supervision and Curriculum Dvip. Nat'l Conference New Orleans, LA

2006 Presenter - Model High School Reform Michigan Assoc. of Sec. School Princlpals ~Conference
2006 Presenter - Model High School Reform Michigan Acad, of Sclences, Arts and Letters - Conference
2005-2006 Macomb Intermediate School District (MISD) High School Reform Steering Committée

2005-2006 Royal Oak Curriculum Advisory Committee Royal 0ak, M1

2005-2006  Michigan Community Service and Service Learning Program  Macomb Inter, School Dist,
2005 United States Secret Service School Safety Training Macomb Inter. School Dist.
2005 Creating Small Learning Communitles Training (DeFour) Macomb Inter, School Dist,
2005 Restoratlve Practices with Positive Discipline Tralning Oakland Schools

2005 Disciplining Students with Disabilities Legal Training Macomb Inter. School Dist,
2005 Redefining Michigan's High School: Beginning the Process MDQOE, Lansing, M]

2005 MDOE Focus Panel - Teacher Certificatlon Standards MDOE, Lansing, MI

2005 Rethinking Michigan's High Schools ~ Willard Daggett Macomb Inter. School Dist
2004 MDOE Teacher Certification Administrative Advisory Committee Lansing, Ml
2004-2006 Best Practice Master Scheduling Tralning - Pearson Macomb Inter. School Dist.
2004-2006 Career Development and Career Academies Develop, Training Macomb Inter. School Dist.
2004-2006 Pupil Accounting Training Macomb Inter, School Dist.
2004-2006 Career Cruising Training Macomb Inter, School Dist,
2004 Career Technical Education Federal Program Audit Macomb Inter, School Dist.
2002-2006  School Bully-Proofing Training Ferndale, Ml

2001 Author - Michigan Academic Standards - M1 CLIMB MDOE, Lansing, MI
1997-2000 Preslident of Oakland Schools Arts Council Oakland Schools
1998-2001 Students in the Middle Conferences MDOE, Lansing, MI
1998-2000 Multiple Intelligence Training by Dr. Howard Gardner Detrolt, MI

2000 Differentiated Instruction Training Ferndale, Ml

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS

2012 - Present  Indiana School Safety Academy and National Incldent Management Certlfication(NIMS)
2013 ~ Present  Board of Directors - Porter County Youth Service Bureau

2012 - Present  Board of Dlrectors - Positive Approach to Teen Health - PATH

2012 - Present  Leadership Northwest Indiana ~ Class 31 frequent guest and Lake Shore News speaker
2006 - Present  Natlonal Assoc. of School Princlpals and Indiana Assactation of School Principals -
2006 ~ Present  Valparaiso University Professional Educators Partnership

2003 - 2006 Michigan Assoclation of Secondary School Principals

1998 - Present  Association for Supervision and Curriculum Development



Career Academy of South Bend Change of Authorizer Application to Education One, LLC
(Trine University)

Attachment 4: Governance Documents
Attached are:
501(c)(3) Letter of Determination from the Internal Revenue Service
Artic!és of Incorporation (original July 2010 and amendments May & September 2011)
Bylaws |

Conflicts of Interest/Code of Ethics Policies: see Article V of Bylaws



INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE
P, O. BOX 2508

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

CINCINNATI, OH 45201
. Employer Identification Number:
Date: JUN 13 200 27-+3113436
] DIN:
17053344308010

CAREER ACADEMY OF SOUTH BEND INC
4100 EDISON LAKES PARKWAY STE 260

Contact Person:
GERALD HOLLAND

ID{# 95031

Contact Telephone Numbex:
(877) 829-5500

Accounting Period Ending:
June 30

Public Charity Status:
170(b) (1) (n) (11)

Form $90 Required:
Yag P . - Joe .

Effective Date of Exemption:
February 28, 2011

Contribution Deductibility:
Yes

Addendum Applies:
Yas

MISHAWAKA, IN 46545

Dear Applicant:

We are pleased to inform you that upon review of your application for tax
exempt status we have determined that you are exempt from Federal income tax
under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Contributions to you are
deductible under section 170 of the Code. You are also qualified to receive
tax deductible bequests, devises, transfers or gifts under section 2055, 21086
or 2522 of the Code. Because this letter could help resolve any questions
regarding your exempt status, you should keep it in your permanent records.

Organizations exempf under section 501(c) (3) of the Code are further classified
as either public charities or private foundations, We determined that you are
a public charity under the Code section(s) listed in the heading of this

letter,

Please see enclosed Publication 4221-PC, Compliance Guide for 501(c) (3) Public
Charities, for some helpful information about your responsibilities as an

exempt organization.

Letter 947 (DO/CG)

Loy L LT



CAREER ACADEMY OF SOUTH BEND INC

We have sent a copy of this letter to your representative as indicated in your
power of attorney.

Sincerely,
A imrbs W ._ '@
Tt 22

Lois G, Lernex
Director, Exempt Organizations

Enclosure: Publication 4221-PC

Letter 947 (DO/CG)

B ST RO

Lenes



State of Indiana
Office of the Secretary of State

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
of
CAREER ACADENY OF SOUTH BEND, INC.
I, Todd Rokita, Secretary of State of Indiana, hereby certify that Articles of Incorporation of the above
Non-Profit Domestic Corporation have been presented to me at my office, accompanied by the fees

presceibed by law and that the documentation presented confirms to law as prescribed by the provisions
of the Indinna Nonprofit Corporation Act of 1991,

NOW, THEREFORE, with this document I certify that said trangaction will become effective
Wednesday, July 14, 2010.

In Witness Whereof, I have caused to be affixed my
signature g the seal of the State of Indiana, at the Cily of
Indianapolis, July 14, 2010

M@W

TODD ROKITA.
SECRETARY OF STATE

I'ﬁ AL .-
o P

. el
» 4
rrerrrs il

2010071400304 / 201007 1432822



RECEIVED 07/14/2010 11:33 A APPROVED AND FILED
TODD ROKITA
INDIANA SECRETARY OF STATE
771412010 11:34 AM

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
Formed pursuant to the provisions of the Indiana Nonprofit Corporation Act of 1991.

ARTICLE | - NAME AND PRINCIPAL OFFICE

CAREER ACADEMY OF SOUTH BEND, INC,
3605 Gagnon Drive, South Bend, IN 46628

ARTICLE i - REGISTERED OFFICE AND AGENT

Steven Hartz
3605 Gagnon Drlve, South Bend, IN 46628

~ ARTICLE lli - INCORPORATORS

Steven Hartz
3605 Gagnon Drive, South Bend, IN 46628
Signature: Steven Hartz

ARTICLE IV — GENERAL INFORMATION
Effective Date: 7/14/2010
Type of Corporation: Public Benefit Corporation
Does the corporation have members?: No

The purposes/nature of business
public charter school

Distribution of assets on dissolution or final liquldation
to another public charter school, balance to another non-profit educational entity

Page 1 of 1 Control Number 2010071400304 / DCHN 2010071412822
Transactlon Id TR10071400043



State of Indiana
Office of the Secretary of State

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
of
CAREER ACADEMY OF SOUTH BEND, INC,

I, CHARLES P, WHITE, Sccretary of State of Indiana, hereby certify that Articles of
Amendment of the above Non-Profit Domestic Corporation have been presented to me at my
office, accompanied by the fees prescribed by law and that the documentation presented
conforms to law as prescribed by the provisions of the Indiana Nonprofit Corporation Act of

1991,

NOW, THEREFORE, with this document I certify that said transaction will become effective
Friday, May 27, 2011,

In Witness Whereof, I have caused fo be
affixed my signature and the seal of the
State of Indiana, at the City of Indianapolis,
May 27, 2011,

(s flie

CHARLES P, WHITE,
SECRETARY OF STATE

VNVY\C

v
anesr®

Sesa

2010071400304 /2011053102816



sgSsABRIEIGEATOES L [ERER
Stals Form 4181 (R10/1-03)/ Corporate Fom o, 304:2 (May 1908) o g&“@?ﬁﬁﬁ;ﬁf&sﬂ%}fsm

Appieved by Siala Board of Aucaunls 1645 17 /-}/’; Vo .,t%d[_’}aaipou?w ;g;gi
sphone: (317 570

-I."‘ , -
74 Jigpna Codo 23-17-17-1 6t seq.

INSTRUCTIONS: Uso & 1/2°x 11" white peper lor eltachmonls, \
Prasont o:fggfnaiendoﬁe%opyto addragsin upper dght comer o this form. FILING FRE: $30.00

Ploaso TYPE or PRINT,
Pl‘gase s omfof/lqoe on the web al vasvsos in.gov.

ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT
TO THE
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

The understgned offioer of Ste Nonprofil Comeraton nemed InAvrliclo | below (heralnaftor relarmd (o as tha "Corporation”) desliing lo give notice of corporale
aotion affeotuallng Amsndmontfs) to the Arlides of fricorporatlon, cerlifles tha feflowing facts:

This Gorporaten exists pursuani b {chack oppropriale box) - \'J
[3 The Indlana Not-For-Frolt Corporalion Act of 1971 ({C 23-7-1.1) as amended. ??@Ogﬁ’ '

AR 25
7 Indlana General Not-For-Proftt Corporation Act (approved March 7, 1935) : g‘\\f&‘) _ / v

A
(8 Indlana Nonprofit Gorporatlon Acl of 4994 {IC 23-17-1) as amended ;""’ Zl ( I

(’/ﬁiﬂjM et ’

AALS
L e
\“"'9

e~

" ARTICLE ] - Antendinent(s) -

SECTION Tt The name of lhe Corpo!ants:
Caraar Academy of South Bend, inc,

SEGTION 2: Tho daty ofiacosporation of the Corpration is;
July 14, 2010

SEGTION & Tho name of tha Cerporatenioioning LUy amondmont lo the Arlkdes of Iacomeratenlst
Careor Academy of Scuth Bend, ne.

SHGTION 4

Tho exadt taxt of Atitefsy 1l &NG IV
Arficls [I; Raglstered Office and Agent: Charles M. Loaser, 4100 Edlson Lakes Parkway, Sulle 260, Mishavaka, IN 46546

of e Ariides of Incorporatonts now as bliows.

Articto IV: The purposesinalure of businesal
(a) Tho purpose Is 1o oporale a charler school lo be known as Seulth Bend Caraoer Acadomy, sxclusivaly for chaillable and educational purposes In

accordance with Seellon 60103 of The Inlemal Revenue Code or corresponding se¢lion of any fulure faderal tax code,

{b) No pari of the nel earnings of the organizatlon shalt Inure lo the benafil of, or b dishibutable to lls members, (ruslees, officars, of othar privals
parsons, excepl thal lhe organlzallon shall be aulhorized and empowerad lo pay reasenable compenaallon for services rendsred and lo make
payments and distributions In furthersnco of its educatlonal/charilable purposes, No substantlat par of tho activiles of the erganization shall bo the
camylng on of propaganda, or olhervdse allempling to Influance legislation, and Ihe organizalion shall nol participata in, or Inlervense In {including
{ha publishing of dislribution of stalemanls) eny polilical campalgn on behsH of eny candidato for publio office. Notwlihstandlng any olher provislon
of this document, the organtzaiion shall not carry on any olher aclivilles not permilted lo be carrded on by (a) an organizalion exemp from federal
income tax under ssclion 501(0)(3) of the Intornal Revanue Code, or corrasponding seclion of any fulure federal tax code, or (b) by an
organizatlon, contribulions lo which are deductible undor section 170(c}(2) of ihe Internal Revenuo Code, or corrasponding section of any future

federal lax code.
ssels shall ba distdbuled for ana or more gxempl purposos within Lhe meaning of seclion 601(c}{3) of

(¢) Upon the dissolution of the organizallon, a
the Inlemal Revenus Code, of corresponding sectlon of any future federal lax code, or shall be disidbuted lo the federal governnent, or lo a stale
o local governmenl, for a public purpose, Any such assels not disposad of shall be disposed of by tha Court of Common Ploas of lhe county In

which the princlpal offica of the ofgenizallon Is then focaled, exclusivaly for such purposes or to such organlzation or organizatlons, as sald Court
shall dslermine, which are organized and oporated exclustvely for such purposes. )

SECTIONG

The data of adoglios of (ke amendmantio the Arfole(s) 1 and IV was _May 28 2.6 ,20_H




- ARTICLE Il -MANNER OF ADOPTION AND VOTE 5050 i i 8 Dl

SECTION 1: Action by Board of Diractors .

The Board of Direclors duly adopted a resolution proposing to amend the Article(s) of Incorporation: (sefect ons)

O  Atamesting held on . 20 11 , 8l which a quorum of such
Board was prasent.
By wilten consent executed on __May 26 20 M1 and signed by

all members of such Board,

SECTION 2; Aclion by members

iF APPROVAL OF MEMBERS WAS NOT REQUIRED:

The Amendment(s) were approvad by a sufficlent vote of the Board of Directors or incorparators and approval of members was not
required.

A ves [lINo
The Amendment(s) were approved by a person other than the membaers, and that approval pursuant to indiana Code 23-17-17-1 was
obtalned,

Oves DNo

] : MEMBERS OR DELEGATES
IF APPROVAL OF MEMBERS WAS REQUIRED: TOTAL ENTITLED TO VOTE AS A CLASS

1 2 3

MEMBERS OR DELEGATES ENTITLED TO VOTE

MEMBERS OR DELEGATES VOTED IN FAVOR

MEMBERS OR DELEGATES VOTED AGAINST

[ The manner of the adoption of the Ariicles of Amendment and he vote by which they were adopted conslilute full legal
complianca wilh the provislons of the Ac, the Artlcles of Incorporation, and the By-Laws of the Corporation.

1 hareby verify, subject lo penaitles of perjury, that the facts conltained herein are true.

Slgnature of cument Officer Printed neme of Officer
CAR Z i Charles M. Loeser
The of Officar

Assistant Secretary




State of Indiana
Office of the Secretary of State

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
of
CAREER ACADEMY OF SOUTH BEND, INC,

1, CHARLES P, WHITE, Secretary of State of Indiana, hereby certify that Articles of
Amendment of the above Non-Profit Domestic Corporation have been presented fo me atmy
office, accompanied by the fees prescribed by law and that the documentation presented
conforms to law as prescribed by the provisions of the Indiana Nonprofit Corporation Act of
1991.

" NOW, THEREFORE, with this document I certify that said transaction will become effective
‘Thursday, September 22, 2011,

In Witness Whereof, I have caused to be
affixed my signature and the seal of the
State of Indiana, at the City of Indianapolis,
September 22, 2011,

L]
CHARLESP. WHITE,
SECRETARY OF STATE

2010071400304 / 2011092234071



CHARLES P, WHITE

ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT TO THE ARTiclp\Eﬁ;aO\fE‘:’
OF INCORPORATION (NONPROFIT) AND

%
4 State Form 4161 {R11 12-11)/ Corporste Forn Mo, 364-2 {142y 1083) D - SEGRETARY OF STATE
Appreved by Stata Board of Accounts 1095 F“’E ﬁ 30?\%?5?2%: {migj\gﬁo E}f}ia
6204

Ind} is, IN
%. Telaphone: (317) 232-6576
et 0F 5 ¢
<
SEORE

INSTRUCTIONS: Use 8 1/2"x 11" vihite paper for altachments, WO
Presént origlna! and ona copy lo address I upper ight comer of this form, Indiana Code 23-17-17-1 at seq
Please TYPE or PRINT FILING FEE: §30.00

Please visit our office on the web 8t yAn.$08./n.0%

A%

Tha undersigned offtcer of the Nonprofit Corporation named In Articls 1 below (herelnafer referred o as tha "Corporation*) desling to giva notice of corporate
actioh effectuating Amendment(s) to the Artlcles of Incarporation, certifles the follewing facis: .
This Corporation exlsts pursuant tot (check sppeopetsts box) REOEN\rE(‘))? &t PC‘E'
G The Indlana Not-For-Profit Comporalton Act of 1671 (IC 23-7+1.4) as amendad. © secﬂf‘-"‘“
. ‘ .
Q  Indlana General Not-For-Profit Corporallon Act fapproved March 7, 1938) . % E? 9, 9 ‘LQ\\
0 Indiana Nonprofit Corporallon Act of 1991 (IC 23-17-1) as amended p W

Career Academy of South Bend, Inc.
CECTTON T ThE O5te of Ineerparalion of TNE COIpOIoNon 15 (month 87, yeaifi
Juiy 14,2010
mmmmmmm of Incorpatabon B

Career Academy of South Bend, Inc,

SECTION 4
The exact text of Artlcle(s) 1V, V and VI of the Artlcles of Incorporation Is now as follows,

Artlole IV — Purpose And Poyyers

Seccton 4.1: Purpose,

(3 The Corporation’s purpose Is to operats & charter sohool to be known as South Bend Career Academy (the
«Schaol®), excluslvely for charitable and educational purposes in accordance with Séction 501(c)(3) of the Intemal
Revenue Code or corresponding section of any futuré federal tax code and in accordance with the provisions of the
Indiana Charter Schools Act, Ind, Code 20-3.5, ¢t. seq., as amended, In furtherance of the aforesaid purpose, to fransact
any and all Jawful business for which corporations may be incorporated under the Indiana Nonprofit Corporalion Act
of 1991 (IC 23-17-1 et seq), provided such business is not inconsistent with the Corporation being organized and
operated exclusively for charltable educational purposes, Section 501(c)(3) of the Intemal Revenue Code, and the

Indiana Charter Schools Act

(t) No pari of the net earnings of the organizatlon shail inure to the benefit of, or be distributable to ils members,
(rustess, officers, or other privato persons, except that the organization shall be authorized and empowered to pay
reasonable compensation for services vendered and to make payments and distributions in firtherance of lts

educatjonal/charitable purposes,

© No substantial part of the activities of the organization shall be the carrylng on of propaganda, or otherwise
attempting to influence legislation, and the organization shall not partioipate in, or {ntervene n (ineluding the




publishing or distribution of statements) any political campaign on behalf of any candidate for public office.
Notwithstanding any other provision of this document, the organization shall not camy on any other activitles not
permitted fo be carded on by (1) an otganization exempt from federal lncoms tax under section 501(c)(3) of the
Intemal Revenue Code, or corresponding section of any future federal tax code, or (2) by an organization,
contributions to which are deductible under section 170(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code, or corresponding section

of any fuure federal fax code,

@) Subject to Article V below, upon the dissolulion of the organization, ifs assets shall be distribuled for one or
imore exempt purposes within the meaning of section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, or corresponding section
of any future federal tax code, or shall be distributed to the federal government, or to a state or local government, for a
publio purpose, and any such assels not disposed of shall be disposed of by the Court of Common Pleas of the county
in which the principal office of tho organization is then located, exclusively for such purposes or to such organization
or organizations, as said Court shall defermine, which are organized and operated exclusively for such purposes.

@ Nohwithstanding any other provision of these Arfoles of Incorporation, the Corporation shalt not carry on any
other activities not permitted to be carded on: (f) By a corporation exempt from Federal Jncome tax under Section
501(c)(3) of fho Internal Revermie Codo of 1986, as amended, or corresponding provisions of any subsequent Federal
tax laws, or (if) by a corporation, contributions to which are deductibls under Section 170(c)(2), Section 2055(a)(2), or
Sectlon 2522(a)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, ‘or corresponding provisions of any subsequent

Federal tax faws,

Section 4.2: Powers, Subject to any limitaion tmposed by the Indiana Nonprofit Corporation Act, Section 501(c)(3)
of the Internal Revenue Code, the Indiana Charter Schools Aot, or other appticable law, the Corporation shall have tho
power to- do everything necessary, advisable or convenlent for the accomplishment of any of the purposes
hereinbefore set forth, or which shall at any {lme appear conduclve to or expedient for the protection or benefit of the
Corporation, and to do all of the things Incidental thereto or conneoted therewith which are not forbidden by law;

Section, 4,3; Limitations on Powers, 1If the Corporation is or becomes a private foundation (as defined in Section
509(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or corresponding provisions of any subsequent Federal {ax

Jaws), the Corporation shall be subject to the following requirements:

The Corporation shall distributo its income for each taxable year at such fime and in such manner as not to
become subject to the {axes on undistributed income imposed by Section 4942 of the Internal Revenue Code of

1986, as amended, or corresponding provisions of any subsequent Federal tax laws,

The Corporation shall not engage in any act of solf-dealing that would subject any person to the taxes imposed
on acts of self-dealing by Section 4941 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or corresponding
provisions of any subsequent Pederal tax laws. ‘

The Corporation shall not retain any excess buslness holdings which would subject it to the taxes on excess
Business holdings Imposed by Seclion 4943 of the Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or

corresponding provisions of atty subsequent Federal tax Iaws,

The Corporation shall not make any investments in such & manner as to subject 1t {o the taxes on investments
that Jeopardize oharitablo purposes fmposed by Seciion 4944 of the Internal Revenue Codo of 1986, as amended,

or corresponding provisions of any subsequent Fedoral tax Jaws,

The Corporation shall not make any expenditures which would subject it to the taxes on taxable expenditures
imposed by Sectlon 4945 of the Internal Revenue Codo of 1986, as amended, or corresponding provisions of any

subsequent Federal tax laws.

Atticle V — Distribution of Assets on Revocation/Dissolution

If Ball State University (the Sponsor of the School under the Indlang Charler Schools
charler before the end of the term for which it is granted, or does not renew the charler,

Act) revokes the School's
or the charter is otherwise



terminated Lefore the end of the term for which it is granted, the provisions of Indiana Code 20-24-7-9 conceming
distribution of Jocal or state funds that remain to be disiributed to the School shalt apply.

If the Corporation is dissoived, then consistent with Indiana Code 20-24-3-3, the Board of Directors shall, after
paylng or making provision for the payment of all the liabilities of the Corporation, distribute all the assets of the

Corporation exclusively for the pwposes of the Corporalion as follows!

First, all remaining funds recelved by the Corporation from the Indiana Depariment of Education
("Department") shall be returned to the Depariment not more than thirty (30} days after dissolution; ‘

Second, alf remaining assets shall be distidbuted in such manner, or to such organization or organizations
organized and operafed exclusively for educational or charitable purposes as shall at the {ime qualify as an
exempl organization or organizations under Section 501(¢)(3) of the Jntemal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended, or corresponding provisions of any subsequont Federal tax laws, as the Board of Directors shall

determine; and

Third, any such sssets not so disposed of shall be disposed of by the Judge of the Circuit Court of Marlon
County, Indiana, exclusively for such purposes or fo such organization or organizations, as said Court shall
determine, which are organized and operated exclusively for such purposes,

Ardicle VI~ Term of Existence The Corporation shall have perpetual existence,

SECTION » S
The dale of adoption of the amendment to the Articles was September 292011,



by Board of Ditsators v, 5 Sl AR
The Board of Directors duly adopted a resolution proposing to amend the Aitide(s) of Incorporation: (select one)

(1?/ Atameolng held on Seplember 28 2011 at which a quorum of such Board was presen,

Q  Bywiitten consent execuled on » 2011 and slgned by all members of such Board,

SEGTION 21 Actlon by membars

IF APPROVAL OF MEMBERS WAS NOT REQUIRED:

The Am:ndment(s) wera approved by a sufficent vote of the Board of Dlmdt;rs or Incotperaters and approvat of members was not
requlred,
O Yes QONo

TEB anno‘ment{s) vere approved by a person other than the members, and that approval pursuant te Indiana Cade 23-37-17-3 was
obtalned,

81 Yes ONeo
I APPROVAL OF MEMBERS WAS REQUIRED: - TOTAL MEMBERS OR DELEGATES
. ENTITLED TO VOTE AS A CLASS
1 2 3

MEMBERS OR DELEGATES ENTITLED TO VOTE

MEMBERS OR DELEGATES VOTED IN FAVOR

MEMBERS OR DELEGATES VOTED AGAINST

8 The manner of the adoption of the Articles of Amendment and the vote by which they were adopted constitute fulf legal
compllénce with the p?ovlslons of the Act, the Articles of lncorporat!o)i‘a, and the"éy-Laws nir2 the Corporation, “

I hereby vaiify, subject to penaltles of perjury, that the facts contalned hereln are true,

Stgnature of cutrent Officer Prinlad pame of Officer

7/v . p"fr{.-\-w Chatlas M, Loeser

Title of Officer

Assistant Secretary




BYLAWS
OF
CAREER ACADEMY OF SOUTH BEND, INC,

ARTICLE I General

Section 1: Name -
The name of the corporation is Career Academy Of South Bend, Inc. (the

“Corporation"),

Section 2: Initial Registered Office and Initial Registered Agent
The post office address of the Corporation’s initial registered office is 4100
Edison Lakes Parkway, Suite 260, Mishawaka, IN 46545. The registered agent
in charge of the initial registered office is Charles M. Loeser.

Section 3: Fiscal Year
The Fiscal Year of the Corporation shall begin on the first day of July, and shall

end on the last day of June in the following year,

ARTICLE II: Board of Directors

Section 1: Directors
The affairs of the Corporation shall be managed, controlled, and conducted by,
and under the supervision of, the Board of Directors, subject to the provisions of
the Articles of Incorporation (the “Atrticles”) and these Bylaws. The Board of
Directors shall have no less than five members, and no more than eleven. At ali
{imes all members of the Board of Directors shall be residents of the State of
Indiana, and af least one-half of the members of the Board of Directors shall be
residents of the Indiana counties where current students at the charter school

reside,

Members of the Board of Directors will serve a term of roughly three years, with
the term of each director as re-elected at the end of the original term, or a new
director who is elected to replace a retiring director to end as of a different month
so that during the month of the expiration of the tetm of a director, the other
members of the board, as active directors, may re-elect such person to an
additional term as a member of the Board, or elect a new member. The terms of
each member shall expire at the end of the month of the third anniversary of the
date of such re-clection or appointment. The current board as of December, 2014

congists oft

o Lawrence Garatoni (term extends to January 31, 2017);
o Tracy Graham (term extended to February 28, 2017);



e Jinny Longbrake (replacing Bruce Greenberg, who resigned)(term extends
to March 31, 2017);
Vivian Sallie (term extends to April 30, 2017);
Thomas Coley (replacing Rob Staley, who resigned)(ferm extends to May
31,2017); '

o Larry Davis (replacing James Summers, who resigned)(term extends to
June 30, 2017);

o Suzanne Wiwi (term extends to July 31, 2017).

The term of each director as re-elected at the end of the original term, or a new
director who may be elected to replace a retiring director, shall expire on the third
anniversary of the date of such re-election or appointment, At the first meeting of
each fiscal year, the Board of Directors shall elect all officer positions for the

year.

Section 2: Quorum and Approval of Actions
A majority of the Directors must be in attendance at the beginning of a meeting to
constitute a quorum for the transaction of any business propetly to come before
the Board of Directors. The approval of a majority of the Directors present at a
meeting in which a quorum is present shall be considered the act of the Board of
Directors. Any Director participating in a meeting by telephone may not vote or
make motions, and shall not be counted towards a quorum. Notwithstanding the
above, as of the July 1, 2013 effective date of the amendment of IC 5-14-1.5-3.6
to specify that the authorization for participation in meetings by conference call
applies to a charter school, 8 member may participate on a voting basis in board
meetings and in doing so will be counted towards a quorum, subject to
compliance with the terms of said statute.

Section 3: Regular Meetings
The Board of Directors shall hold regular meetings on a monthly basis during the
school year, with at least one meeting during the summer, for the purpose of
transaction of such business as properly may come before the Board, Meetings
shall be held in the school building oz, until such time as a school building has
been secured and is available for occupancy, at such location as the Board may

determine.

Section 4: Special Meetings '
The Board of Directors may hold special meetings for any lawful purpose upon
no less than (2) business days notice, as desctibed in Section 6 of this Article II,
upon call by the Chair, or by two or more members of the Board. A special
meeting shall be held at such date, time, and place inside the State of Indiana or

elsewhere as specified in the call of the meeting.

Section 5; Compliance with Indiana Open Door Law

Notwithstanding any other provision of these Bylaws, the Corporation shall
comply in all respects with the Indiana Open Door Law (cutrently codified at IC

2



5-14-1,5-1), and any corresponding provision of subsequent Indiana law, in
connection with all regular or special meetings of the Board.

Section 6: Notice of Special Meetings
Oral or written notice of the date, time, and place of each special meeting of the
Board shall be communicated, delivered, ot mailed by the Secretary of the
Corporation, or by the person or persons calling the meeting, to each member of
the Board of Directors so that such notice is effective at least two business days
before the date of the meeting and complies with the Indiana Open Door Law.
The notice need not describe the purpose of the special meeting.

Oral notice shall be effective when communicated. Written or electronic notice
shall be effective at the earliest of the following:

(a) When received;

(b) Five (5) days after the notice is mailed, as evidenced by the postmark or
private carcier receipt, if mailed correctly addressed on the address listed in
the most current records of the Corporation;

(c) On the date shown on the return receipt, if sent by registered or certified
United States mail, return receipt requested, and the receipt is signed by or on
behalf of the addressee; or

(d) Thirty (30) days afler the notice is deposited with another method of United
States Postal Service other than first class, registered, or certified mail, as
evidenced by the postmark, if mailed correctly addressed to the address listed
in the most current records of the Corporation.

Section 7; Waiver of Nofice
Notice of a meeting may be waived to a director in a writing signed by the
director entitled to notice and filed with the minutes or the corporate records.
Attendance at or participation in any meeting of the Board of Directors shall
constitute a waiver of lack of notice or defective notice of such meeting unless the
director shall, at the beginning of the meeting or promptly upon the director’s
arrival, object to holding the meeting and not vote for or assent to any action
taken at the meeting.

Section 8: Action by Written Consent
Any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the Board, or any
cominittee thereof, may be taken without a meeting if a written consent describing
such action is signed by each director or committee member and if such written
consent is included in the minutes or filed with the Corporation’s records
reflecting action taken. Action taken by written consent shall be effective when
the last director or committee member signs the consent and the Board of
Directors ratifies the action taken in a subsequent meeting held pursuant to the
Indiana Open Door Law, unless the consent specities a prior or subséquent

3



effective date. A consent signed as described in this Section 8 shall have the effect
_of approval at a meeting and may be described as such in any document.

Section 9; Resignation, Removal, and Vacancies:
Any director may resign at any time by giving written notice of such resignation
1o the Board of Directors. Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified,
or, if no time is specified, at the time of receipt by the Board, The acceptance of a
resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

A director may be removed for cause by a majority of the directors then in office.
Cause shall include, but not be limited to:

(a) Violations of applicable law, including (but not limited to):
i, Violations of the Indiana Charter School Law; and

ii. Actions that would jeopardize the tax-exempt status of the
Cotporation or would subject it to intermediate sanctions under
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or
corresponding provisions of any subsequent federal tax laws
(the “Code”).

(b) Breach of Fiduciary Duty, including, but not limited to, a violation of
the applicable standard of care under the Articles, these Bylaws, or
applicable law.

(¢) Breach of any governing document relating to the Corporation,
including, but not limited to, the Articles, these Bylaws, and the
Charter Agreement,

(d) Inadequate attendance at meetings of the Board of Directors, as
defined as absence from three consecutive meelings, or from more
than 1/3 of the meetings within one calendar year; provided, that for
this purpose, a member who participates in a meeting by conference
call or video-conference shall not be considered as absent.

Any vacancy on the Board of Directors created by the resignation or removal of a
director shail be filled by a majority of the directors then in office. Each new
member of the Board of Directors shall be provided by the Secretary with a copy
of the School’s charter application (narrative portion, excluding exhibits) and
shall confirm, prior to voting as a member of the board, that he or she has read
and agrees with the school’s goals and mission as described therein.

Section 10: Educational Management Organizations
Should the Board of Directors elect to engage an educational management
corporation (“EMO”) to manage the operations of the charter school for which the

4



Corporation is responsible, (the “Sehool™), no member of the Corporation’s Board
of Directors nor an immediate relative of any director may have any pecuniaty
interest in such EMO.



ARTICLE III: Officers

Section 1; In General
The Officers of the Corporation shall consist of a Chair, a President, a Secretary,
an Assistant Secretary, and a Treasurer. An officer may hold more than one
office. Each officer shall be elected by the Board of Directors and shall serve for
one year, or until the officers successor is duly elected.

Officers do not need to be members of the Board of Directors. Any officer may
be removed by the Board of Directors at any time for cause as that term is defined
herein in Article II, Section 9. Any vacancy in any office shall be filled by the
Board of Ditectors, and any person elected to fill such vacancy shall serve until
the expiration of the term vacated and until his or her successor is clected.

Section 2: Chair
The Chair shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors of the
Corporation and shall be responsible for implementing the policies established by
the Board of Directors, as well as other duties as prescribed by the Board.

Section 3: President
The President shall serve in place of the Chair during times in which the Chair is

otherwise unavailable,

Section 4: Secretary and Assistant Secretary
The Secretary shall serve as the custodian, or shall delegate such duties as deemed

necessary and expedient, of all papers, books, and records of the Corporation,
other than books of account and financial records. The Secretary shall prepare, or
shall cause to be prepared, and enter in the minute book the minutes of all '
meetings of the Board. The Secretary shall authenticate records of the
Corporation as necessary, and shall perform other duties usual to such position as
the Board of Directors or Chair may prescribe. An assistant secretary shall be
designated to act as Secretary in the absence of or pursuant to instructions of the

Secretary.

Section 5: Treasurer
The Treasurer shall oversee the School’s chief financial officer (“CFO”) and shall
cause the CFO to (i) prepare and maintait (or cause othets to prepare and
maintain) correct and complete records of account showing accurately the
financial condition of the Corporation; (i) cause all notes, securities, and other
assets coming into the possession of the Corporation to be received, accounted
for, and placed in safekeeping according to proper audit and accounting
principles; (iii) furnish (or cause to be furnished) a statement of the financial
condition of the Corporation at each meeting of the Board or otherwise when
requested by the Board of Directors or the Chair; (iv) perform other duties usual
to the position of CFO as the Board of Directors or Chair may prescribe.



ARTICLE 1V: Committees

Section 1: Executive Committee ,
The Board of Dircctors may, by resolution adopted by a majority of the directors
then in office, designate two (2) or more directors of the Corporation to constitute
an Executive Committee which, to the extent provided in such resolution and
consistent with applicable law, shall have and exercise all of the authority of the
Board of Directors in the management of the Corporation’s affairs during
intervals between the meetings of the Board of Directors. The Executive
Committee shall be subject to the authority and supervision of the Board of -

Directors.

Section 2: Other Committees
The Board of Directors may establish other committees, in addition to the

Executive Committee, to accomplish the goals and execute the programs of the
Corporation, Such committees shall have such responsibilities and powers as the
Board of Directors shall specify, Members of such committees may, but need not,
be members of the Board of Directors, A committee member appointed by the
Board of Directors may be removed by the Board of Directors with or without
cause.

ARTICLE V: Conflicts of Interest

Section 1: General Policy
It is the policy of the Corporation and its Board of Directors that the

Corpotation’s directors, officers, and employees carry out their respective duties
in a fashion that avoids actual, potential, or perceived conilicts of interest, The
Corporation’s directors, officers, and employees shall have the continuing,
affirmative duty to report any personal ownership, interest, or other relationship
that might affect their ability to exercise impartial, ethical, and business-based
judgments in fulfilling their responsibilities to the Corporation, This policy shall
be further subject to the following principles:

(a) Directors, officers and employees of the Corporation shall conduct their duties
with respect to potential and actual grantees, contractors, suppliers, agencies,
and other persons transacting or seeking to transact business with the
Corporation in a completely impartial manner, without favor or preference
based upon any consideration other than the best interests of the Corporation.

(b) Directors, officers, and employees of the Corporation shall not seek or accept
for themselves of any of their relatives, including spouses, ancestors, and
descendants, from any person or business entity that transacts or seeks to
transact business with the Corporation, any gifts, entertainment, or other
favors relating to their positions with the Corporation that exceed common
courtesies consistent with ethical and accepted business practices.



(c) If a director, or director’s relative, directly or indirectly owns a significant
financial interest in, or is employed by, any business entity that transacts or
seeks to transact business with the Corporation, the director shall disclose that
interest or position and shall refrain from voting on any issue pertaining to the
transaction,

(d) Officers and employees of the Corporation shall not conduct business on
behalf of the Corporation with a relative or business entity in which the
officer, employee, or his or her relative owns a significant financial interest or

- by which such officer, employee, or relative is employed, except by where
such dealings have been disclosed to, and specifically approved and
authorized by, the Board of Directors of the Corporation,

(e) The Board of Directors may require the Corporation’s directors, officers, or
employees to complete annually (or as otherwise scheduled by the Board) a
disclosure statement regarding any actual or potential conflict of interest
described in these Bylaws, The disclosure statement shall be in such form as
prescribed by the Board, and may include information regarding a person’s
participation as a director, trustee, officer, or employee of any other nonprofit
organization. The Board shall be responsible for oversight of all disclosures
or failures to disclose, and for taking appropriate action in the case of any
actual or potential conflict of interest transaction,

Section 2: Effect of Conflict Provisions
The failure of the Corporation, its Board of Directors, or any or all of its directors,
officers, or employees to comply with the conflict of interest provisions of these
Bylaws shall not invalidate, cancel, void, or make voidable any contract,
relationship, action, transaction, debt, commitment, or obligation of the
Corporation that is otherwise valid and enforceable under applicable law.

ARTICLE VI: Indemnification

Section I: Indemnification by Corporation
To the extent not inconsistent with applicable law, every person (and the heirs and
personal representatives of such person) who is or was a director, officer,
employee, or agent of the Corporation shalf be indemnified by the Corporation
against all liability and reasonable expense that may be incurred by him or her in
connection with or resulting from any claim, action, suit, or proceeding (a) if such
person is wholly successful with respect thereto or (b) if not wholly successful,
then if such person is determined (as provided in Section 3 of this Article V1) to
have acted in good faith, in what her or she reasonably believed to be the best
interests of the Corporation, and with respect to any criminal action or
proceeding, is determined to have had reasonable cause to believe that his or her
conduct was lawful. The termination of any claim, action, suit, or proceeding by
judgment, settlement, (whether with or without court approval), or conviction, or




upon a plea of guilty or of nolo contendere, Tor its equivalent, shall not create a
presumption that a person did not meet the standards of conduct set forth in this

Atrticle VI,

Section 2: Definitions
(a) Asused in this Article VI, the phrase “claim, action, suit, or proceeding” shall
include any threatened, pending, or completed claim; civil, criminal,
administrative, or investigative action, suit, or proceeding and all appeals thereof
(whether brought by or on behalf of the Corporation, any other corporation, or
otherwise), whether formal or informal, in which a person (or his or her heirs or
personal representatives) may become involved, as a party or otherwise:

@) By reason of his or her being or having been a director, officer,
employee, or agent of the Corporation or of any corporation where
he or she served as such at the request of the Corporation, or

(i) By reason of his or her acting or having acted in any capacity in a
corporation, partnership, joint venture, association, trust, or other
organization or entity where he or she served as such af the request
of the Corporation, or

(ili) By reason of any action taken of not taken by him or her in any
such capacity, whether or not he or she continues in such capacity
at the time such liability or expense shall have been incurred.

(b) As used in this Article VI, the terms “liability” and “expense” shall include, but
shall not be limited to, counsel fees and disbursements and amounts of judgments,
fines, or penalties against, and amounts paid in settlement by or on behalf of, a

person.

(c) As used in this Article VI, the term “wholly successful” shall mean (i) termination
of any action, suit, or proceeding against the person in question without any
finding of liability or guilt against him or her, (ii) approval by a court, with
knowledge of the indemnity provided in this Article VI, of a settlement of any
action, suit, or proceeding, or (iii) the expiration of a reasonable period of time
after the making of any claim or threat of any action, suit, or proceeding without
the institution of the same without any payment or promise made to induce a
settlement.

Section 3: Entitlement to Indemnification
Every person claiming indemnification under this Article VI (other than one who
has been wholly successful with respect to any claim, action, suit, or proceeding)
shall be entitled to indemnification if (a) special independent legal counsel, which
may be regular counsel of the Corporation or any other disinterested person or
persons, in either case selected by the Board of Directors, whether or not a
disinterested quorum exists (such counsel or person or persons being hereinafter
called the “referee”), shall deliver to the Corporation a written finding that such
person has met the standards of conduct set forth in Section 1 of this Atticle VI
and (b) the Board of Directors, appear before the referes and answer questions
that the referee deems relevant and shall be giving ample opportunity to present to



the referee evidence upon which her or she relies for indemnification. The
Corporation shall, at the request of the referee, make available facts, opinions, or
other evidence in any way relevant to the referee’s findings that are within the
possession or control of the Corporation,

Section 4: " Relationship to Other Rights

The right of indemnification provided in this Article VI shall be in addition to any
rights to which any person may otherwise be entitled.

Section 5: Extent of Indemnification
Irrespective of the provisions of this Article VI, the Board of Directors may, at
any time, and from time to time, approve indemnification of divectors, officers,
employees, agents, or other persons to the fulfest extent permitted by applicable
law, or, if not permitted, then to any extent not prohibited by such law, whether
on account of past or future transactions,

Section 6: Purchase of Ingurance
The Board of Directors is authorized and empowered to purchase insurance
covering the Corporation’s liabilities and obligations under this Asticle VI and
insurance protecting the Corporation’s directors, officers, employees, agents or
other persons,

ARTICLE VI: Contracts, Checks, Loans, Deposits and Gifts

Section 1; Contracts
The Board of Directors may authorize one or mote officers, agents, or employees
of the Corporation to enter into any contract or execute any instrument on its
behalf. Such authorization may be general or confined to specific instances.
Unless so authorized by the Board of Directors, no officer, agent, or employee
shall have any power to bind the Corporation or to render it liable for any purpose

or amount,

Section 2: Checks
All checks, drafts, or other orders for payment of money by the Corporation shall
be signed by such person or persons as the Board of Directors may from time to
time designate by resolution. Such designation may be general or confined to
specific instances.

Section 3; Loans
Unless authorized by the Board of Directors, no loan shall be made by or
coniracted for on behalf of the Corporation and no evidence of indebtedness shall
be issued in its name. Such authorization may be general or confined to specific

instances, :




Section 4: Deposits
' All funds of the Corporation shall be designated to its credit in such bank, banks,

or depositories as the Board of Directors may designate. Such designation may be
general or confined to specific instances,

Section 3: Gifts
‘The Board of Directors may accept on behalf of the Corporation any gift, grant,
bequest, devise or other contribution for the purposes of the Corporation on such
terms and conditions as the Board of Directors shall determine,

ARTICLE VIII: . Amendinents

The power to make, alter, amend, or repeal the Bylaws is vested in the Board of Directors
of the Corporation; provided, however, that any proposed substantive alteration -
amendment, or repeal of these Bylaws must be approved in writing by the Sponsor of the
School (as the term “Sponsor” is defined in IC 20-24-1-9) prior to the Board of Directors
of the Corporation taking any action thereon.

These Bylaws have been adopted by proper motion by the Board of Directors at the
initial Board of Directors meeling on February 14, 2011, as amended June 23, 2011 and
further amended April 27, 2012, May 20, 2013, and January 20, 2015,

 Aftest, :

Chan)
Vivian Sallie
Secretary

-
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Career Academy of South Bend Change of Authorizer Application to Education One, LIC
(Trine University) -

Attachment 5: Education Service Provider Confract

Not applicable: CASB does not contract with an Education Service Provider




Career Academy of South Bend Change of Authorizer Application to Education One, LLC (Trine University)
Attachment 6: Academic Performance Workbook

School Name: Career Academy of South Bend
Current Academic Year: 2014-2015

Comparative School Analysis: Demographics

CASB Clay Dickinson Edison
Grades | Intermediate | Flne Arts | Intermediate
7-8 Center Academy Center Statewide

Enrollment # of Students 08 288 314 238
Grades Served Grade Levels 7-8 7-8 7-8 7-8
Free/Reduced Lunch % of Students 775 75.7 76.1 76.9 49.3
Minority % of Students 51.0 54.2 71.3 66.8 29.1
‘Special Educalion % of Students 17.3 21.8 26.4 218 14.8
English Language -
Learner % of Students 5.1 49 13.7 10.9 53
Title  in current year? Yes/No Yes Yes Yes Yes -

NOTE: "Comparison school" is defined as schools serving a student population within five percentage points of the
school's "Free and Reduced Lunch” percentages in the current year.

NOTE: Comparable schools and statewide demographics should represent only those grades that are served by the
school,

CASB Clay Rifey Washington
Grades High High High
912 School School School Statewide

Enrollment # of Students 282 1,275 1,185 1,093
Grades Served Grade Levels 9-12 9-12 9-12 9-12
Free/Reduced Lunch % of Students 64.2 81.5 654 731 49.2
Minority % of Students 51.0 49.4 59.6 73.1 29.1
Special Education % of Students 26.6 17.6 17.9 16.7 14.8
English Language
Learner % of Students 5.0 3.5 8.5 12.8 53
Title | in current year? Yes/No Yes Yes Yes Yes -

Note: The most recent available data is from 2013-14 as reported on the IDOE COMPASS website. Since CASB at
that time served grades 7-12, for purposes of comparison we list data for grades 7-8 of CASB and grades 7-8 of three
South Bend Community Schoo! Corporation middle schools: Clay Intermediate Center, Dickinson Fine Arts Academy
and Edison Intermediate Center. For purposes of comparison of CASB grades 9-12, we use three SBCSC high
schools: Clay High School, Riley High School, and Washington High School. Washington is not “comparable” as
measured by the freefreduced lunch percentage being within 5% of CASB's, but there is no other “comparable” school
in the area by that definition, and since the Washington district {the west side of South Bend) is the primary residence
area for CASB students, we consider Washington the most appropriate third comparable for grades 9-12.
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Comparative School Analysis: Academic Qutcomes

NOTE: Applicant may add additional rows for relevant grades. Applicant may also list other state
assessments that are relevant to the student populalion.

2013-14 Passage rates on ISTEP+ for English

/Language Ars

CASB Clay Dickinson Edison
Grades | Intermediate | Fine Arts | Intermediate
7-8 Center Academy Center Statewide
Grade 7 % of Studenls 57.1 60.6 59.7 58.2 77.8
Grade 8 % of Students 68.1 65.0 67.3 59.4 764
2013-14 Passage rates on ISTEP+ for Math
CASB | Clay Dickinson Edison
Grades | Intermediate | Fine Arts | Intermediate
7-8 Center Academy Center Statewide
Grade 7 - % of Students 66.7 64.5 67.8 69.6 80.5
Grade 8 % of Students 60.0 68.1 72.2 714 81.9
2013-14 Growth Model Data for English/Lanquage Arts
CASB Clay Dickinson Edison
Grades | Intermediate | Fine Arts | Intermediate -
, 7-8 Center Academy Center Statewide
Grade 7 % of Students 55.0 49.0 50.0 46.0
Grade 8 % of Students 44.0

Growth data by grade is not avallable on COMPASS and not accessible by grade on The Leamning Connection for
other schools, see note below.

2013-14 Growth Model Data for Math
CASB Clay Dickinson Edison
Grades | Intermediate { Fine Arts | Intermediate
7-8 Center Academy Center Statewide
Grade 7 Median Growth % 430 53.0 54.0 45.0
Grade 8 Median Growth % 240

Growth data by grade is not available on COMPASS. Growth data on a school-wide basis is available on the IDOE
Learning Connection website, httos:/Mlearningconnection.doe.in.qov/Login.aspx?ret=%2fdefault.aspx , but data by
grade and student (allowing calculation of median growth by grade level) is not accessible as to other schools.




2013-14 Passage rates on ECA in English 10

Clay Riley Washington
CASB High High High
School School School Statewide
Grade 10 % of Students 46.9 67.4 64.3 56.8 78.9
Grade 11 % of Sludents 45,0 53.3 6§25 38.5 64.3
2013-14 Passage rates on ECA in Algebra 1
Clay ~ Riley Washington
CASB High High High
School School School Statewide
Grade 8 % of Students 500 - - -
Grade 9 % of Students 10.7 67.2 29.8 349 70.7
Grade 10 % of Students 30.0 38.0 22.2 333 38.2
Grade 11 ' % of Students - 21.4 - . 447s
2013-14 and 20112-13 Graduation Rates
Clay Riley Washington
CASB High High High
School School Schaool Statewide
Graduating Students % of Students
2012-2013 25.0 79.7 726 789 88.8
Graduating Students % of Students
2013-2014 30.6 82.3 78.5 76.3
CASB 2013-14 wio Crossing students 91.6

Note: The data reported on COMPASS in the 2013-14 Report Card section is for graduates at the end of the 2012-13
school year rather than the 2013-14 graduation rate as shown in the “Student Performance’ section under
"Graduates.” CASB's reported graduation rates for both years are misleading. In the 2012-13 school year, there was
no senior class at CASB: the schoo! opened with grades 7-9 in 2011 and added grades 10-11in 2012-13 but did not
add grade 12 until 2013-14, However, CASB enrolled a substantial number of students in 2012-13 as well as 2013-14
who attended The Crossing, http:/fwww.crossingeducation.com/, a dropout-recovery school. Crossing students
accounted for CASB's 2012-13 graduation rate of 25%-(3 of 12 students). For 2013-14, there were 12 seniors
attending CASB, of whom 11 (91.6%) graduated, however, there were 32 12™-grade Crossing students enrolled at
CASB at various times, of whom The Crossing reported that six graduated. The COMPASS-reported graduation rate
of 30.6% is based on 11 of 36 students. CASB knew when it agreed to enroli Crossing students that doing so would
adversely affect CASB's academic data (in multiple ways, of which graduation rate is the most visible). Nonetheless,
the reported figure is misleading. _

See attached ECA supplement



2014-2015 Acuity Scores for ECA

2014-15 CASB Predicted Passage rates on ECA in English 10

Pass/High
Acuity A | Pass/High Pass | Acuity B Pass
% of Students 48.0 47% - 1% 53.0 50% - 3%

Average score 427 455

2014-15 Predicted Passage rates on ECA in Algebra 1

Pass/High
Aculty A | Pass/High Pass | Acuity B Pass
% of Students 39.0 29% - 10% 49.0 35% - 14%

Average score 448 470




Career Academy of South Bend Change of Authorizer Application to Education One, LLC
{Trine University)

Attachment 7: Accountability Report Prepared By Current Authorizer

The school’s current authorizer, Ball State University, publishes accountability reports at
http://ems.bsu.edu/academics/collegesanddepartments/teachers/schools/charter/charterschool/reports
“but the only report specific to CASB is for 2011-12 (CASB’s first year of operations). BSU has
also published a 2012-13 accountability report covering all its authorized schools. The 2011-12
CASB report is attached as Part I and the 2012-13 report as to all BSU-authorized schools is

attached as Part I1.




Career Academy of South Bend Change of Authorizer Application to Education One, LL.C
(Trine University) '

Attachment 7: Accountability Report Prepared By Current Authorizer

Part1: 2011-12 Report As To CASB
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Career Academy at South Bend
Accountability Report




BALL STATE
UNIVERSITY.

For more Information about this report, contact

Bail State University Office of Charter Schoals
916 Teachers College, Muncie, IN 47306
Phone: {(765) 285-1336 | Fax: (765) 285-9873
www.bsu.edu/teachers/charter

Ball State University Office of Charter Schools Staft

Dr. Rabert Marra, Executive Director
Lynn Black, Fiscal Analyst
Kylee Kay Bassett Hope, Special Education and School Compliance
Coordinator

Khadija Zaman, Research and Accountability Analyst

Georgette Davis, Field Representative
Laurie Serak, Field Representative
Marriette Siler, Office and Systems Coordinator

Ball State Univarsity Office of Charter Schools
recognizes the following individuals for their assistance in the
preparation of this report.

Dr. Holmes Finch
Dr. Jerrell Cassady
Julianne M. Edwards
Brittney Klausar
Jongkoo Hong
Ashiey R. Miller

Ball State University practices equal opportunily in education and
employment and is strongly and actively committed to diversity within
its community,



BSU Office of Charter Schools

Nationally, public charter schools continue to grow at a rapid pace. For the 2013
school year, 5,618 charter schools are in operation, serving more than two million
students in 41 states and the District of Columbia, These numbers reflect an increase
in student population of 13 percent and an Increase in the number of schools of
seven percent over the preceding year. The number of students in public charter
schools is now almost fourpercent of all students enrolled in public schools across
the nation. There are now 25 school corporations in the nation with 20 percent or
more of the public school poputation enrolted in charter schools. Gary Community
School Corporation and Indianapolis Public Schools are ranked in the top 10 school
corporations serving the highest percentage of charter school students. Though
reports vary, there are approximately 1,000,000 students currently on waiting fists
nationally.

Ball State Universily (BSU) serves as the largest authorizer of public charter schools

in Indiana, with 35 schools throughout the state serving more than 14,500 students
during 2010-2011. For 2011-2012, the number increased to 38 schools, operating with
an estimated additionat 4,000 students enrolled, and for the 2012-2013 school year
Ball State authorized 41 schools serving 22,947 children,

Since the passage of the Indlana charter law in 2001, BSU has been committed to ongoing growth and development of high-
quality charter schools and has established rigorous standards to ensure that the schools authorized are held accountable in
providing excellent educational experiences for students they serve.

Ball State University’s Office of Charler Schools is working to become a model for how an authorizer can drastically Improve
its policies and practices-- and consequently the strength of the schools In its portfolio, As the largest authorizer in Indlana
for over a decade, Ball State is working with the National Association of Charter Schocl Authorizers (NACSA) to improve its
practices across the board.

Emphasis on improving student achievement is central to the Office of Charter Schools’ {OCS) mission. Monitoring of student
progress in Ball State-authorized charter schools Is conducted on an annual basls. Using Indiana’s new growth model data
for 2011-2012 94 percent of BSU-authorized schools show typical or high growth in English/language arts and 75 percent
show typical or high growth in math. Progress on the ISTEP+ and achlevement growth data obtained from the required
Northwest Evaluation Association (NWEA) for all schools is carefully assessed annually and serves as an Important indicator

of quality.

Increasing the percentage of Ball State-authorized charters that meet performance standards is a commitment stated in
BSU's Education Redsfined: Sirategic Plan 2012-2017. To this end, additional mechanisms and strategies for assisting and
supporting its charters to aggressively improve student academic performance are being considered and implemented.

As parents and communities continue to call for high-quality educational options, Ball State University remains committed o

meeting thelr needs, as do the many dedicated charter school administrators, teachers, staff and volunteers who serve on
school boards, assist in the classrooms, and otherwise advance these public schools on behaif of their students,

Sinceraly,

;Z/wa‘?%w

John E. Jacobson, Ed.D. Dean, Teachers College

Accountability Report 2011-2012




ACCO ILITY REP(

BSU Office of Charter Schools

Purpose of the Accountability Report

What are Charter Schools?

Ball State Charter Schools

2011-2012 Student Enrollment {BSU)

Role of Ball State University as a Charter Authorizer
Role of the Office of Charter Schools

BSU Academic Monitoring

Public Law 221 — Indiana’s State Accountabitity Law {PL 221)
Northwest Evaluation Association (NWEA)

2011-2012 Demographic Dala

21st Century Charier School at Gary

BALL STATE
UNIVERSITY.

The Balt State University Office of Charter Schools
is pleased to provide this Aceountability Report aleng
with additional information regarding data summarized In
this report online: www.bsu.edu/teachers/charter

Accountability Report 2071-2012




PURPOSE OF THE

of BSU Charter Schools

Each year, the Ball State University Office of Charter Schools {OCS) publishes an accountability report indicating the
performance of its authorized charter schools. This Is the tenth annual accountability report.

The purpose of this repott is to provide a snapshot of the performance of each charter schoo! authorized by Ball State

that was open during 2011-2012, as well as a general summary of the success of the Ball State charter program.

The accountability report provides information about each school’s educational philosophy and approach; demographics

of the school's student population; 2011-2012 student achievement data in the form of ISTEP+ and the Northwest Evaluation
Association (NWEA) Measure of Academic Progress results,

The Office of Charter Schools requested that each school provide background information about its mission and the

unique characteristics of the students it serves, along with comments on its performance, the challenges it faced, and the
strategies the scheol is using o increase student achievement. OCS recognizes that each school is a work in progress.This
accountability report provides an opportunity for each school to tell its story of successes and challenges and the efforts

it s making to ald the students who have enrolled, The overall success of the charter schools program is based primarily on
the success of each charter school, and the University expects each schoof to pursue strategles that increase the probability

of both student and school success.

This report is of the performance of each school for the academic year 2011-2012 and goes back five years in operation,
where applicable. School performance data Is obtalned from the state assessment program, and the ISTEP+ assessment.
The Indiana Department of Education reports fest results only at the school level by grade. Because individual student
parformance has not been made available to OCS, the office is presently unable to track individual student progress for the
ISTEP+ assessment. Without individuat student performance on the ISTEP+, specific gains of those Individual students from
year-to-year cannot be tracked,

Using Indiana’s new growth modetl data does provide some insight into the progress of students within BSU-authorized
charter schools. Growth model data for Spring 2012 reports 94 percent of BSU- authorized schools showing typical or high
growth in English/ language arts and 75 percent showing typical or high growth in math. Focusing on school passing rates
alone does not allow reporting to take Into account such factors as the movement of individual students into and out of
schools, Such movement is significant for some of the Ball State-authorized schools, thereby masking performance gains of
students who remain at a school for a numbaer of years. For accuracy, the performance of a school should be based on the
impact of its educational program on the same students over a reasonable period of time.

The NWEA Measures of Academic Progress has been used not only as an accountability tool, but also as a means for
ldentifying individual students’ areas of neaded improvement. The percentages of students achieving thelr NWEA target
growth rate are included here to provide another indicator of student performance, but this should not be considered

a compiste avaluation of the school's success In achieving growth among students.

Accountability Report 2011-2012




of BSU Charter Schools

Charter schools are independent public schools that are open to all students and are stale-funded. Students do not pay
tuition to attend these schools, which are designed and operated by educators, parents, and community leaders. In Indiana,
charter schools may be authorized by a limited number of entities, such as the executive of a consolidated city or a state
universlity offering four-year degrees. Ball State, along with other higher education Institutions in Indlana, serves as an
authorizer of charter schools.

Through these schools, Ball State University contributes to the variety of choices in education available to Indiana studenls,
Each school authorized by the University is expected to strive for academic excellence and have a well-defined mission that
is tallored to its community’s needs. Like all public schools, charter schools are held to high academic standards, require
participation in state testing programs, hire cerlified teachers, and publish annual reports to the public. The educational
program often includes new and innovative approaches to instruction that can be tailored to the specific needs of students.
Charter schools are allowed considerable autonomy through the Indiana Charter Law. In exchange for that autonomy, each
schoo! is held to a high level of accountabitity,
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21st Century Charter School at Gary 2005
Anderson Preparatory Academy 2008
Aspire Charter Academy 2008

The Bloomington Project School 2009
Campagna Academy 2002

Canaan Corvunumity Academy 2012
Career Academy of Sotith Bend 2011
Charter School of the Dunes 2003
Community Montessori 2002
Discovery Charter School 2010

Dr. Robert H. Faulkner Academy 2008

East Chicago Lighthouse Charter Schoel 2006
East Chicago Urban Enterprise Academy 2005

Fall Creek Academy 2011

Fountaln Squars Academy 2011
Gary Lighthouse Charter School 2005
Gary Middle Cellege 2012

Galst Montessor] Academy 2006

Hammond Academy for Science and Technology 2010

Hoosler Academy - Indianapolls 2008
Haoosler Academy - Munde 2008

Imagine Indlana Life Sclences Academy East 2008
Imagine Indiana Life Sciences Academy West 2009

Imagine MASTer Acadeny 2007
Imagine Schools on Broadway 2008
Indiana Connections Academy 2011

Indiana Math and Sclence Academy West 2007

Insplre Academy 2013

The International School of Columbus 2009
Kenneth A. Christmon STEMM Leadership Academy 2005

LEAD Collega Preparatory Acadeny 2006
Nelghbors’ New Vistas High School 2012
New Community School 2002

Options Charter School - Carmel 2004
Options Charter School - Noblasville 2006
Renalssance Academy 2007

Rock Creek Community Academy 2010
Rural Community Academy 2004

Thea Bowman Leadership Academy 2003
Timothy L. Johrison Academy 2002
Veritas Academy 2002

West Gary Lighthousa Charter Schoof 2006
Xavier School of Excellence 2009

Accountability Report 2011-2012




2011-2012 STUL

of BSU Charter Schools

21st Century School at Gary

Anderson Preparatory Academy

Aspire Charter Academy

Bloomington Project School

Charter School of the Dunes
Community Montassorl

Discovery Gharter School

Dr. Robert H. Faulkner Academy

East Chicago Lighthouse Charter School
East Chicago Urban Enterprise Academy
Fall Creek Academy

Fountain Square Academy

Gary Lighthouse Charter School

Goelst Montessort Acadamy

Hammond Academy for Selence and Technology
Hoosler Academy - Indianapolis

Hoosier Academy - Muncie

Hoosler Academy - Indianapolis (Virtual)
imagine IN Life Sciences - Indianapolis East
Imagine IN Life Sciences - Indlanapolis West
Imagine MASTer Academy

Imagine School on Broadway

Indiana Connections Academy (virtual school}
indlana Math and Science Academy
international School of Columbus

Kanaeth A Ghilstmon STEMM Leadeiship Academy

Lead College Preparatery Academy
New Community School

Options - Carmel

Optiens - Noblesville

Renaissance Academy

Rock Creek Community Academy

Rural Community Academy

South Bend Career Academy

Thea Bowman Leadership Academy
Timothy L. Johnson Academy

Veritas Academy

West Gary Lighthouse Charter School
Xavier School of Excellence

399 1% 124
870 2.87% 283
667 1,95% 221
272 0.37% 11
378 4.76% 126
509 0.79% 26
371 1.89% 7
186 - -
511 - i7
437 0.69% 69
364 1.37% 142
266 4.14% 44
643 2.95% 156
255 1.96% =
398 0.25% 39
366 0% 5
96 1.04% i
1853 1.35% 1
747 3.35% 214
609 1.64% 162
758 0.53% 117
443 0.68% 80
1675 10.99% -
557 3.41% 89
86 1.16% 5
229 1.31% 6
374 1.60% 152
240 2.50% 26
158 16.46% 24
150 25.33% 48
175 1.14% 7
422 1.66% 11
136 5.88% 5
151 7.28% 47
1500 1.27% 285
305 3.03% 16
98 0% 16
588 2.38% 256
368 2.17% 56
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ROLE OF

as a Charter Authorizer

Ball State Is a leader in the development and promotion of educational innovations and best practices for public schools

in Indiana. Serving as Indiana’s only postsecondary ins
State University demonstrates its commitment to redefi
demonstrates the diversity found In BSU charter school

titution authorizing public charter schools Is one way the Ball
ning education and building better communities. The chart below
s as compared to traditional public schoots In the state of Indiana.

8,328 44,7 0.0-99%

Black 127,096 12.2 ,
White 753,575 72.3 7,434 399 0.0-97%
Hispanic 95,157 9.1 1,760 9.4 0.0-63%
Multiracial 44,497 4.3 961 5.2 0.0-22%
Asian 17,845 1.7 112 6 0.0-7%
American Indian 2,887 3 35 2 0.0-2%
Native Hawaiian/Pacific Island 546 A 5 .00 0.0-0.27%
Free 416,579 40 10,335 55.6 0-94%
Reduced 85,189 8.2 1,423 7.6 0-17%
pald 539,834 51.8 6,852 36.8 0-91%
CMs2038 0 o Mas o 27 1430 0.0-35%
S epee1 A9 7 46 0.0-34%
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The Indiana Department of Education (IDOE) made the decision in early 2011 to change Indiana’s school accountability
framework because state education leaders and policymakers deemed it incomprehensible to parents, administrators, and the
community at large. In February 2012, the State Board of Educalion gave final approval of the new methodology for determining
school and corporation category designations (A-F} grades based on student performance.

The new metrics will be used to assign category designations (letter gracles) starting with the 2011-2012 academic year. The

new A-F labels Improve transparency by allowing parents and community members to better recognize how well Indiana

schools are performing and leading students to achieve positive academic outcomes.

21st Century School at Gary
Anderson Preparatery Academy
Aspire Charter Acadamy
Bicomington Preject Sehool
Charter School of the Dunes
Community Montessor!
Discovery Charter School

Dr. Robert H, Faulkner Academy
£ast Chlcago Lighthouse Charter School
East Chicago Urban Enterpsrise Academy
Fall Creek Academy

Fountain Square Academy

Gary Lighthouse Charter School
Geist Montessori Academy
Hammond Academy for Science and Technology
Hoosier Academy - Indianapolis
Hoosier Academy - Muncie
Hoosier Academy - Virtual

Imaglae Indiana Lile Scleaces - ladianapolis East
fmaglne Indlana Lifa Stiences - Indznapells West
Imagine MASTer Acadamy
imagine School on Broadway
Indiana Connectiens Academy (virlual school)
indiana Math and Sclence Academy
internattonal School of Columbus
Kenneth A Christmon STEMM School
Lead College Preparatory Academy
New Community School

Options - Carmel

Options - Noblesville
Renaissance Academy

Rock Creek Community Academy
Rural Community Academy

South Bend Career Academy
Thea Bowman Leadership Academy
Timothy L. Johnson Academy
Veritas Academy

Wast Gary Lighthouse Charter Schoal
Xavier School of Excellence
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NORTI

Performance Categories

The Northwest Evaluation Association (NWEA), a nonprofit organization, has partnered with school corporations and
educational agencies across the nation to provide comprehensive assessment since 1977. More than two million students In
the United States participate in NWEA assessments each yeat, providing an ample body of reference data for achievement
norms. With a varlety of support services, resource materials, and in-depth training, NWEA is a feader in longitudinal research

for student achievement and growth and schoo! improvemant. In keeping with the NWEA misston to help all students learn,
the organization uses assessment data to provide instructional tools for educators. Test results are made avallable for
immediate use, with detailed reports and interpretation of student performance. Each Ball State-authorized charter school
has administered the Measure of Academic Progress (MAP) standardized test in the fall and the spring. Growth rates are
determined by the change in scores from fall to spring. Target growth rates are individualized, based upon the average for
comparison students in the normal group who recaived a similar score. The target rate for one student may not be the same
as the target rate for another. The percentage of students mesting their target growth rate for each school includes only
those students present for both the fall and spring testing. This is the fourth year in which NWEA assessments are part of
the reguirement for accountabitity reporting. This data provides another snapshot of student performance that Is focused
specifically on student growth,

Accountability Report 2011-2012




Fall 2011 - Spring 2012

21st Century School at Gary

Anderson Preparatory Academy

Aspire Charter Academy

Bleomington Project School

Charter School of the Dunes
Community Montessori

Discovery Charter School

Dr. Robert H. Faulkner Academy

East Chicago Lighthouse Charter School
East Chicago Urban Enterprise Academy
Fall Creek Academy

Founiain Square Academy

Gary Lighthouse Charter School

Geist Montessori Academy

Hammond Acadamy for Sclence and Technology
Hoosier Academy - Indianapolis
Hoosler Academy - Muncie

Hoosier Academy - Indianapolis (Virtual)
Imagine IN Life Sciences - Indianapolis East
Imagine IN Lite Sciencas - indianapolis West
Imagine MASTer Academy

{magine Schooi on Broadway

Indiana Connections Academy (virtual school)
Indlana Math and Science Academy
International School of Columbus

Kennglh A Christmon STEMM Leadership Academy

Lead Gollege Preparatory Academy

New Community School

Options - Carmel

Options - Noblesville

Renalssance Academy

Rock Creek Community Academy

Rural Community Academy

South Bend Career Academy

Thea Bowman Leadership Academy
Timothy L. Johnson Academy

Veritas Academy '

West Gary Lightheuse Charter School
Xavier School of Excellence

54.8% 50.5%
47.4% 52.7%
64.6% 62.1%
51.1% 49,5%
57% 56.7%
44.8% 49.9%
69.3% 62.8%
51.4% 51.6%
55.9% 53.9%
54.8% 53.2%
56.6% 51.8%
46.2% 34.7%
64.9% 48%
54.8% 52%
50.8% 57.8%
42.9% 36.6%
58.6% 57.1%
42.6% 49.2%
45.4% 61.5%
40.5% 47.7%
80% 28.6%
37.9% 55.2%
62.8% 61.2%
59.5% 55.4%
63% 51.6%
46.7% 62.5%
37.7% 44%
75.6% 65.9%
60.6% 65.2%
54.1% 45.5%
63.6% 65.6%
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49.3%
44.6%
58.2%
44.3%
47.8%
52.4%
64.2%
49%
47.5%
49.3%

56.8%

38.4%

48.3%
45.9%
49.1%
42.1%

45.4%

37.8%
44.7%
40.7%
33.3%
63.3%
46.3%
51.9%
50.9%
41.8%
37.1%
67.5%
58.1%
51.7%
58.1%



2011-2012 DEMOGF

Comprehensive Review of BSU Charter Schools

21st Century Schoal at Gary 99% 84% 6% 7%
Andersen Preparatery Academy 43% 42% 16% 17%
Aspire Charter Academy 99% 82% 8% 9%
Bloomington Project School 26% 33% 7% 25%
Charter School of the Dunes 97% 62% 3% 13%
Communily Mentessori 12% 16% 13% 19%
Discovery Charter School 10% 18% 5% 12%
Dr. Robert H. Fauikner Academy 55% 51% 7% 13%
East Chicago Lighthouse Charter School 97% 83% 8% 8%
East Chicago Urban Enterprise Academy 99% 76% 8% 6%
Fatl Creek Academy 91% 77% 7% 15%
Fountain Square Academy 32% 84% 5% 20%
Gary Lighthouse Charter School 100% 78% 6% 4%
Gelst Montessori Academy 18% 5% 4% 14%
Hammond Academy {or Sclence and Technology 72% 20% 0% 0%
Hoosler Academy - Indianapolis 24% 8% 8% 17%
Hoosier Academy - Muncie 22% 49% 7% 31%
Hoosler Academy - Indianapolis (Virtual) 18% 21% 4% 14%
Imagine IN Life Sciences - Indianapolis East 99% 90% 6% 8%
Imagine tN Life Sclences - Indianapolis West 95% 85% 6% 8%
Imagine MASTer Academy 44% 70% 8% 8%
imagine School on Broadway 69% 86% 7% 7%
Indiana Coennections Academy {virtuat schooi) 18% 37% 16% 12%
Indiana Math and Science Academy 90% 92% 2% 8%
International School of Columbus 24% 23% 7% 8%
Keanelh A Ghrlstmon STEMM Leadershlp Acadamy 66% 868% 4% 14%
Lead College Preparatery Academy 99% 61% 4% 13%
New Community School 26% 40% 10% 25%
Options - Carmel 22% 37% 4% 30%
Options - Noblesville 13% 35% 5% 35%
Renalssance Academy 30% 15% 5% 1%
Rock Greek Community Academy 17% 12% 3% 16%
Rural Community Academy 3% 49% 13% 29%
South Bend Career Academy 56% 60% 17% 18%
Thea Bowman Leadership Academy 99% 62% 5% 6%
Timothy L. Johnson Academy 99% 04% 4% 15%
Veritas Academy 65% 53% 14% 13%
West Gary Lighthouse Charter Schoot 100% 84% 5% 11%
Xavier School of Excellence 74% 80% 8% 14%

* The figures above have been rounded to the nearest percentage point.
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Career Academy at Sout

of BSU Charter Schools

ADDRESS

3801 Crescent Cir
South Bend, IN 46628

TELEPHONE
(574) 299-9800

WEBSITE

http://www.southbendcareeracademy.org/

Grades Served: 7-9

Year Opened: 2011-2012
Final Year In Contract: 2015-2016
Total Enraliment: 151
School Leader: Yolanda Turner-Smith
Board Chair: Lawrence Garatont

The Career Academy’s mission is to prepare our students to become productive and contributing members of society by
combining core academic courses with vocationally oriented education,

South Bend Caresr Academy is a career-focused middle and high school. The Academy will offer a bilend of educational
strategies, both traditional and project-based learning, all paired with a vocational component. The Academy will offer class-
es In: Welding, Precision machine technology, Auto mechanics, Entrepreneurship, Information technofogy, Nursing, Business
finance and more!

Accountability Report 20771-2012



SCHOOL-LE

Comparative data

South Bend, IN

7-9

Black 51
Hispanic i9
Multiracial 16
65

White

181

¢ factors Including

ool-level demographic data. In pariieular, demographi
limited English proficiency, and gender distribution
of daily reported attendance and overall envollment

The data presented in the report illustrates sch

special education status, froefreduced lunch status {meal plan), ethnicily,

are presented for comparison. In addition, we have summarized the level

history. Lastly, we summarized graduation rate, dropout rate, percent of students take the SAT, average SAT Math, average
percent of students completing the Core 40, and

SAT Verbal, percent of students compteting the Academic Honor’s Program,
average teacher salary. The data was extracted from the Indiana Department of Education school corporation database.

i T

HH
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Comparative data

23.80%

59.60%

B FREE
E REDUCED

16.60%
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SPECIAL EDUCATIC

Career Academy at South Bend
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ETHI

Carcer Academy at South Bend

10.60%

33.77%

M BLACK

B HISPANIC
WHITE

% MULTIRACIAL

43.00%

12.60%
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Carcer Academy at South Bend
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Career Academy at South Bend
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TEACHER SALARY

Career Academy at South Bend
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ACHIEVEMENT RESULT

sareer Academy at South Bend

To document achievement trends at the schoal, we have collected school-level ISTEFP+ performance data. ISTEP+ data
currently available provide two different methods for analysis. First, we provide data from the school outlining both overall
school performance based on both passing percentage {for each assessment area) and median growih percentile. The
median growth percentile score Is an assessment that documents the average growth percentile for students, as compared
to the growth rates for other children who performed at the same level in the prior year. In this way, we have an indicator
for the Spring 2012 data identifying the rate of growth for the charter school students relative to a predictable rate of
improvement. Data are summarized In this section in two ways. First, the overall school performance data are provided in
the following table for a school representation, Next, a series of charts generated by the Indiana Department of Education
for the charter school are provided illustrating the "growth by performance” quadrants, first for the school at Jarge, then for
categories of grade level and ethnicity. The charts are restricted by design to remove any group of students that has fewer
than 10 members, so certain charts have limited data.

Lower Growth,

[/
06 47.9% 23.0% Lower Achievement

Lower Growth,

o )
96 45.8% 38.0% Lower Achievement
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ISTEP+ GRG

Career Academy at South Bend

Indiana’s Growth Model has set a national standard for measuring the academic progress students make during a school
year. This gives parents new levels of information on the academic achievement of their students. By measuring improvement
as well as proficiency, the model ensures there Is a constant focus on driving results for all students, The indiana’s Growth
Model measures a student’s academic growth in relationship to students with similar academic histaries -- as well as the
student’s progress toward proficiency standards. The ISTEP+ scores are used in a new way to provide a deeper and more
user-friendly look at student achlevement. (Source: IDOE)

100% ... .
i Lower Growth Higher Growth
i Higher Achisvement Higher Achlevement
90%
80% =
70%

80%

50%

Percent At/Above Proficient

40%
20% -.;ff?
10% Lower Growth Higher Growth

i Lower Achlevement _ _ - Lower Achievement
10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Median Student Growth Percentile

Math

Students Enrolled: 151
Students Tested: 96

Pass Percent: 47.9%

Median Growth Percent: 23.0%
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ISTEP+ GROWTH

Career Academy at South Bend

100% ..
% “: Lower Growth Higher Growth

90% " Higher Achievement Higher Achievement
6

70%

60% .

50%

40%

Percent At/Above Proficient

30%
20% .
10%

- Lower Growth
©. Lower Achlevement

Higher Growth
. Lower Achievement

10% 20% 30% A0% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Median Student Growth Percentile

English Language Arts
Students Enrolied: 151
Students Tested: 96

Pass Percent: 45.8%

Median Growth Percent: 38.0%
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Career Academy at South Bend

100% ... .
. Lower Growth Higher Growth

90% . Higher Achievement Higher Achievement
(e

80%
70%

50% :

409%

Percent At/Above Proficient

20%

10%
. Lower Growth Higher Growth
. Lower Achievement _ _ Lower Achievement

10% 209% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 80% 100%

Median Student Growth Percentile

7th Grade 8th Grade
Students Tested: 44 Students Tested: 52
Pass Percent: 47.7% Pass Percent; 48.1%
Median Growth Percent: 24.5% Median Growth Percent: 23.0%

Accountability Report 2017-2012




INDIANA’S GROWTH MODEL (ISTEP+)

Career Academy at South Bend

100% -,
2 Lower Growth Higher Growth

90% “: Higher Achlevement Higher Achievement
b

80%
70%
60%

50% -

40%

30%

Percent At/Above Proficient

20%

10% _
: Higher Growth

= Lower Growih
- Lower Achievement Lower Achievement

10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 80% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Median Student Growth Percentile

7th Grade 8th Grade
Students Tested: 44 Studenis Tested: 52
Pass Percent: 43.2% Pass Percent: 48.1%
Median Growth Percent: 48,5% Median Growth Percent: 31.0%
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INDIANA’S GRO

Career Academy at South Bend

100% i
# Lower Growth

90%

80%

Percent At/Above Proficient

60%

50% .

30%

‘Higher Achievement

Higher Growth
Higher Achievement

70%

40%

20%

10%

- Lower Growth
. Lower Achievement

10% 20% 30% 40%

Higher Growth
_ Lowe_r Achlevern_er_\t

70% 80% 90% 100%

Median Student Growth Percentile

Black
Students Tested: 33
Pass Percent: 30.0%
Median Growth Percent: 32.0%

Multiracial
Students Tested: 10
Pass Percent: 50.0%
Median Growth Percent: 25.5%

White
Students Tested: 44
Pass Percent; 61.4%
Median Growth Percent: 20.0%

* Due to Federal Privacy Laws, student performance data may not be displayed for any group of fewer than 10 students.
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INDIAN JEL (ISTEP+)

Career Academy at South Bend

Percent At/Above Proficient

100%
Higher Growth

- Lower Growth
Higher Achievement

i Higher Achlevement
90% . -

80%

70%

60% -

60%
40%

30% -

20%

10%
= Lower Growth
.+ Lower Achlevement

Higher Growth
Lowe; Achievement

10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Median Student Growth Percentile

Black White
Students Tested: 33 Students Tested: 44
Pass Percent: 27.3% Pass Percent: 56.8%
Median Growth Percent: 26.0% Median Growth Percent: 39.5%
Multiracial

Students Tested: 10
Pass Percent: 60.0%
Median Growth Percent: 48.5%

* Due to Federal Privacy Laws, student performance data may not be displayed for any group of fewer than 10 students.
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INDIANA’S G

Career Academy at South Bend

The next set of data presented are the ISTEP+ summary charts for avaitable data from Fall 2005 through Spring 2012, The
goal for these charts is to identify grade-level proficiency by tracking percentage of students passing the criterion established
by the state for Math, English/Language Arts, and the percentage of students reaching this passing criterion for both math
and language arts.

90%
80% 75%
60%
50%

@
40% 43.2%
30%

20% -
10%
2012

Accountability Report 2011-2012




ISTEP+ PERCENT P/

Career Academy at South Bend
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sareer Academy at South Bend
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ISTEP+ PERCENT PAS:S

Career Academy at South Bend
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ADDITIONAL ASSESS

BSU Office of Charter Schools

100% ..

00%
80%
70%
60%
s0%
40% 32.0%

30%

18.4%

20%

5.0%

10%

Alg 1 Eng 10 Biclogy 1

In addition to the ISTEP+ data avallable at the state, specific additional assessment indicators are available on a limited basls
for charter schools.

End of Course Assessments
At the high school level, there are three End of Course Assessments delivered to determine proficiency in Algebra 1, En-

glish 10, and Biology 1. The scores for these performance indicators are recent additions, and comprehensive analyses are
precluded by the limited number of assessment periods to date as well as limited publication of the performances In publicly

accessible cutlets.
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NWEA PERF

BsU Office of Charter Schools

The charier schools also collect data using the NWEA assessments as part of their standard protocol. NWEA assessment
data reported to date are at the school level.
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BALL STATE
UNIVERSITY®

For more information about this report, contact

Ball State University Office of Charter Schools
912 Teachers College, Muncie, IN 47306
Phone; (765) 285-1336
Fax: (765) 285-9873
www.bsu.edufteachers/charter

Ball State University Office of Charter Schools Stafi
Robert A, Marra, Executive Director
Lynn A. Black, Fiscal Analyst
Katie M. Briles, Compliance and Special Education Coordinator
Jamie Garwood, Academic Performance Coordinator
Georgette Davis, New School Development Coordinator
Marriette Siler, Office and Systems Coordinator

Ball State University practices equal opportunity in education and employment and is
strongly and actively committed to diversity within its community.
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ACCOUNTA

BSU Office of Charter Schools

Purpose of the Accountability Report

What are Charter Schools? Ball

State Charter Schools

2012-13 Student Enroliment (BSU)

Role of Ball State Universily as a Charter Authorizer
Role of the Office of Charter Schools

BSU Academlic Monitoring
Public Law 221 — Indiana's State Accountability Law (PL 221) Northwest
Evaluation Association {NWEA)

2012-13 Demographic Data

UNIVERSITY.

The Ball State University Office of Charter Sis
pleased lo provide this Accountability Report along
with additiona! information regarding data
summarized In this report
anline: www.bsu.edufteachers/charter
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of BSU Charter Schools

Each year, the Bali State University Office of Charter Schools (OCS) publishes an accountability report indicating the
performance of its authorized charter schools. This is the eleventh annual accountability report.

The purpose of this report is to provide a performance snapshot of each charter school authorized by Ball State that operated
during 2012-2013, as well as a general summary of the success of the Ball State charter program. The accountability report
provides information about each school's educational philosophy and approach; demographics of the school's student
population; 2012-2013 stale student achievement data in the form of ISTEP+, IREAD, End of Course Assessments and
graduation rates, as well as data from the Norlhwest Evaluation Association (NWEA) Measure of Academic Progress results.

This report summarizes the performance of each school for the academic year 2012-2013, and, when applicable, goes back
five years in operation. School performance data is obtained from the state assessment program, and the ISTEP+ assessment.
The Indiana Department of Education reports test results only at the school level by grade. Because individual student
performance has not been made available to OCS, the office is presently unable to track individual student progress for the
ISTEP+ assessment, Without individual student performance on the ISTEP+, specific gains of those individual students from
year-to-year cannot be tracked.

However, using indiana's growth mode! data does provide some insight into the progress of students within BSU-authorized
charter schocls. Growth mode! data for Spring 2013 shows lhat 89 percent of BSU-authorized schools demonstrated typical or
high growth in English/Language Arts and 66 percent demonstrated typical or high growth in Math. OCS recognizes that
focusing on standardized test passing rates alone does not take inlo account such factors as the moverent of individual students
into and out of schools. This student mobility is significant for some of the Ball State-authorized schools, thereby masking
performance gains of students who remain at a school for a number of years. Ideally, for accuracy, the performance of a school
should be based on the impact of its educational program on the same students over a reasonable period of time.

The NWEA Measures of Academic Progress has been used not only as an accountability tool, but also as a means for identifying
individual students’ areas of needed improvement. The percentages of students achieving their NWEA target growth rate are
included here to provide another indicator of student performance, but this should nol be considered a complete evaluation of
the school's success in achieving growlh among students.

Accountability Report 2012-2013
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of BSU Charter Schools

Charter schools are independent public schools that are open to all students and are state-funded. Students do not pay tuilion
to attend these schools, which are designed and operated by educalors, parents, and community leaders. In indiana, charter
schools may be authorized by a limited number of entities, such as the executive of a consolidated cily or a state, public and
privale universities offering four-year degrees, and a state-wide authorizing board. Ball Stale has served as an authorizer since

2002,

Through these schools, Ball State University helps expand the educational choices available to Indiana students. Each school
authorized by the University Similar to public schools, charter schools are held to high academic standards. Each Ball State-
sponsored charter school is required to fulfill the conditions set forth in its charter, as well as to achieve the performance
standards set forth In Ball State’s Performance Frameworks, which serves as the accountability plan for all schools sponsored
by Ball State. Charter schools must participate in state testing programs, provide open enrollment to all students, hire certified
teachers, publish annual reports, and comply with Indlana Access Laws. The educalional programs offered in charter schools
are often new and innovative approaches to instruction that can be taltored fo the specific needs of students, Charter schools
are allowed considerable aulonomy through the Indiana Charter Law. In exchange for that autonomy, each school is held to a
high level of accountability.
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LCoNDO RN

21st Century Charter Schoo! at Gary 2005 {L ake)
Anderson Preparatory Academy 2008 {Madison)
Aspire Charter Academy 2008 (L ake}

The Bloomington Project School 2008 {Monroe)
Canaan Community Academy 2012 (Jeffarson)
Career Academy of South Bend 2011 {5t Joseph}
Community Montessori 2002 {Fioyd)

Discovery Charter School 2010 {Porer)

Dr. Robert H. Faulkner Academy 2008 (Grant}

. East Chicago Lighthouse Charter School 2006 {Lake)
. East Chicago Urban Enterprise Academy 2005 {Lake)
. Fall Creek Academy 2012 {Marlon)

. Gary Lighthouse Charter School 2005 {L.ake)

. Gary Middle College 2012 (i ake}

. Geist Montessori Academy 2006 (Hancock)

. Hammond Academy for Science and Technology 2010 {Lake)
. Hoosier Academy - Indianapolis 2008 {Marfon}

. Imagine Indiana Life Sciences Academy West 2009 {(Maricn}
. Indiana Connections Academy 2012 ({Virtual)

. Indiana Math and Science Academy 2007 {farion}

. Inspire Academy 2013 {Delaware)

. International School of Columbus 2009 (Bartholomew})
. Neighbor's New Vistas High School 2012 (Forter)

. New Community School 2002 {Tippecanoe)

. Options Charter School — Carmel 2004 (Hamilion)

. Options Charter School — Noblesville 2006 {(Hamilion}
. Renaissance Academy 2007 (La Porte)

. Rock Creek Community Academy 2010 (Ciark}

. Rural Community Academy 2004 (Sullivan)

. Thea Bowman Leadership Academy 2003 (L ake)

. University Heighis Preparatory Academy

(formerly Fountain Square Academy) (Marion}

. Veritas Academy 2002 (5t Joseph)
. Xavier School of Excellence 2009 (8t. Joseph)

Accountability Report 2012-2013
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12-201

of BSU Charter Schools

# of students % of
# of Absent 10% | students with

: : Attendance # of Students | Students or more, for Ghronic
ST School Name Enroliment Rate Mobility | Suspensions| Expelled any reason Ahsenteelsm
21st Cenlury Charter School at Gary 480 95.1% 9.4% 116 0 113 23.54%
Anderson Preparatory Academy 931 94.6% 19.8% 267 a 42 4.51%
Aspire Charter Academy 657 94.9% 9.9% 154 3 167 25.42%
The Bloomington Project School 269 95.2% 4.7% 8 0 14 5.20%
Canaan Community Academy 93 95.1% 30.1% 1] 0 7 7.53%
Career Academy at South Bend 340 93.3% 27.2% 2 8 85 25.00%
Charter School of the Dunes 464 93.0% 12.7% * * 207 44.61%
Community Montessori Inc 520 95.6% 6.5% 26 2 7 1.35%
Discovery Charter School 455 94.9% 3.9% 1] 0 12 2.64%
Dr Robert H Faulkner Academy 194 97.3% 9.0% 0 0 1 0.52%
East Chleago Lighthouse Charter School 575 95.3% 10.9% 162 5 64 11.13%
East Chicago Urban Enterprise Academy 446 96.6% 1.8% 74 0 2 0.45%
Fall Creek Academy 472 94.2% 29.3% 159 2 12t 25.64%
Gary Lighthouse Charter School 716 96.1% 8.6% 131 4 120 16.76%
Gary Middie College 211 76.9% 18.9% 24 1 204 95.26%
Gaist Montessori Academy 290 98.1% i2.1% 0 0 1i 3.79%
Hammond Academy of Sclence & Technology 469 98.1% 7.4% 27 0 7 1.49%
Hoosier Academy — Indianapolis Virtual School 3832 85,6% 43.6% 0 0 848 22,13%
Hoosier Academy — Indianapolis 540 96.6% 41.5% * * 105 18.44%
Hoosler Academy — Muncie 129 * * B * * *
Imagine Indiana Life Sclences Academy - East 639 * * * * * *
imagine Indlana Life Sciences Academy - West 616 93.9% 21.2% * * 228 37.01%
imagine MASTer Academy 716 * * . * * *
imagine Schaool on Broadway 366 * * * * * *
Indiana Connections Academy 2749 92.0% 37.1% 17 3 957 34.81%
Indiana Maih and Sclence Academy 541 95.0% 19.6% - * 95 17.56%
Internationat School of Golumbus 128 * * * * . *
Kenneth A Christmon STEMM Leadership Academy 203 * * * * * *
LEAD College Preparatory Charter School 298 * * * * * *
Nelghbors' New Vistas High Schoo! 138 89.8% 43.4% 36 4 56 40.58%
New Community School 213 95.4% 13.5% 11 0 53 24.88%
Options Charter Schoo! - Carmel 160 92.2% 31.1% 21 i 80 37.50%
Options Charter Schoo! - Noblesville 159 23.1% 24.6% 25 4 65 40.88%
Renaissance Academy Charter School 205 97.2% 2.0% 8 0 0 0.00%
Rock Creek Community Academy 426 96.2% 5.0% 15 0 8 1.88%
Rural Community Schools nc 135 85.3% 37.7% 10 0 13 9.63%
Thea Bowman Leadership Academy 1465 93.9% 5.5% 397 B 375 25.60%
Timothy L Johnson Academy 314 96.8% 5.4% unavailable | unavailable unavailable unavallable
University Heights Preparatory Academy 245 87.8% 27.4% 24 2 124 50.61%
Veritas Academy 128 96.0% 18.9% 10 0 4 3.13%
Wast Gary Lighthouse Charter School 613 * * * * * *
Xavier School of Excellence 368 93.8% 20.8% 47 0 70 19.02%

Data no longer available for closed schoals.
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TY OF

Bal! State is a leader in the development and promotion of educational innovations and best practices for public schools in
Indiana. Serving as indiana's first postsecondary inslitution authorizing public charter schools was one way the Ball State
University demonstrated its commitment to redefining education and building better comrmunities. Ball Stale University remains
the largest postsecondary institution authorizer in the state. The chart below demonsirates the diversity found in BSU charter
schools as compared to traditional public schools in the state of Indiana.

22,908

Island

1,041,311

Ethnicity Number Percent Number Percent Range

Black 127,657 12.3 8,686 37.92 0.0 - 97%
White 746,026 71.6 10,779 47.05 0.0-98.2%
Hispanic 100,044 9.6 2,113 9.22 0.6 -63.8%
Multiracial 45,452 4.4 1,118 4.88 1-13.9%
Asian 18,704 1.8 160 0.69 0.0-7.8%
American Indian 2,834 0.3 43 0.19 0.0-1%
Native Hawaiian/Pacific 594 0.1 9 0.04 0.0-0.2%

Free 426,665 41.0 11,905 51.88 | 10.7-89.3%
Reduced 83,913 8.1 1,423 8.01 1-16.1%
Paid 530,723 51.0 8,790 41.84 | 1.6 -100%%
150,454 14.4 2,017 12.74 7-321%
51,893 5.0 866 3.77 0-31.3%
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INDIANA’S STATE ACCOUNTAL

Ball State University Authorized Charter Schools PL221 Status

s 5 2 YRR _

Beginning with the 2011-12 school year, new metrics wers used lo assign category designations {letter grades) o schools.
These new A-F grades were designed to improve transparency by allowing parents and community members to better
recognize how well Indiana schools are performing. The A-F model measures proficiency and growth on state assessments,
and includes college and career readiness performance indicators for high schools. A more detailed explanation of how the
A-F grade is calculated for schools can be found on the IDOE website. http:/fwww.doe.in.goviaccountabilityff-accountability

Additionally, a detailed breakdown for each school is provided on their school’s COMPASS profile, in the report card under
the Accountability Tab. hitp:/icompass.doe.in.gov/

= .~ SCHOOL NAME. 20112012 | 2010-2011 ©2009-2010.
21st Century Charter School at Gary A A
Anderson Preparatory Academy D D B
Asplre Charter Academy c C F
The Bloomington Project School c c F
Canaan Community Academy

Caraer Academy at South Bend F

Charter School of the Dunes F (3] c
Communily Monltessori D c F
Discovery Charter School A B

Dr Robert H Faulkner Academy c A A
East Chicago Lighthousse D C C
East Chicago Urban Enterprise Academy D F C
Fall Creek Academy F c c
Gary Lighthouse Charter School F F C
Gary Middle College

Gelst Montessori Academy A A A
Hammond Academy of Sclence & Tech F D

Hoosler Academy - Indianapolis Virtual School F F C
Hoosiar Academy - indianapolis B D C
Hoosler Academy - Muncie F F F
Imagine Indiana Life Science Academy East F F F
Imagine Indiana Life Science Academy West C D F
imagine MASTer Academy F c D
Imagine Schools on Broadway F F F
Indiana Connections Academy D B

Indiana Math and Sclence Academy B A A
International School of Columbus 8 A
Kenneth A Christlmon STEMM Leadership Academy F A A
LEAD College Prep F D c
Neighbors' New Vistas High School

New Community Schoot F c B
Options Charler School - Carmel F c F
Options Charler School Noblesville F F F
Renalssance Academy Charter School A B A
Rock Creek Community Academy C D

Rural Community Academy B A A
Thea Bowman Leadership Academy c c A
Timothy L Johnson Academy D B B
University Heights Preparatory Academy D c D
Veritas Academy A C %
Woest Gary Lighthouse Charter School F D c
Xavier School of Excellence c c A

Accountability Report 2012-2013
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BSU Authorized Charter Schools 201

ELA ELA ELA Math Math Math 201213 Pass

SRR Percent Median Growth Percent Median Growth Both Math and
.Corporation Name Pass Growth Category Pass Growth Category ELA Parcent
21st Century Charter School at Gary 754% 48.0% Typical 80.2% 39.0% Typical 68.4%
Anderson Preparatory Academy 69.8% 46.0% Typical 75.4% 42.0% Typical 62.4%
Aspire Charter Academy 65.1% 50.0% Typical 65.7% 60.0% Typical 51.2%
The Bloomington Project School 87.9% 57.0% Typical 85.0% 52.0% Typical 81.3%
Canaan Community Academy 78.7% 39.0% Typical 83.0% 70.0% High 70.2%
Career Academy at South Bend 48.4% 36.5% Typicail 52.7% 25.0% Low 41.8%
Charter School of the Bunes 61.3% 47.0% Typical 60.3% 53.5% Typical 47.4%
Community Montessori Inc 65.6% 21.0% Low 62.1% 31.5% Low 52.4%
Discovery Charter School 95.0% 60.0% Typical 92.0% 55.0% Typical 90.3%
Dr Robert H Faulkner Academy 86.6% 59.0% Typical 88.8% 78.0% High 78.4%
East Chicago Lighlhouse Charter School 64.1% 43.0% Typical 67.1% 32.0% Low 54.9%
East Chicago Urban Enterprise Academy 75.4% 49.0% Typical 75.4% 47.0% Typlcal 67.6%
Fall Creek Academy 53.8% 4£1.0% Typlcal 50.8% 32.5% Low 38.9%
Fountain Square Academy {University Heighis) 55.1% 58.0% Typical 70.0% 43.0% Typical 471%
Gary Lighthouse Charter School 58.5% 43.0% Typical 51.7% 34.0% Low 38.8%
Geist Montessori Academy 82.4% 77.0% High 71.0% 27.0% Low 66.2%
Hammond Academy of Science & Technology 78.0% 50.0% Typical 73.3% 40.0% Typical 65.3%
Hoosier Academy- Indianapolis Virtual School 55.7% 18.0% Low 55.4% 19.0% Low 44.9%
Hoosler Academy - Indianapolis 77.0% 40.5% Typical 79.9% 50.0% Typical 71.0%
Hoosier Academy - Muncie 50.7% 42.0% Typical 44.6% 47.0% Typical 37.0%
Imagine Indlana Life Sciences Academy - East 51.1% 51.0% Typical 52.5% 53.0% Typical 37.0%
Imagine Indiana Life Sciences Academy - West 57.6% 42.0% Typical 60.8% 54.0% Typical 43.9%
imagine MASTer Academy 64.9% 52.0% Typical 72.1% 52.0% Typical 59.3%
Imagine School on Broadway 51.7% 45.0% Typical 41.7% 31.0% Low 34.0%
indiana Connections Academy 81.5% 47.0% Typical 70.5% 30.0% Low 66.3%
indlana Math and Sclence Academy 54.1% 32.0% Low 65.5% 33.5% Low 45.2%
International School of Columbus 65.1% 23.0% Low 72.6% 22.0% Low 64.5%
Kenneth A Christmon STEMM Leadership Academy 69.7% 69.0% High 65.2% 46.0% Typical 56.2%
LEAD College Preparatory Charter School 38.4% 37.0% Typical 27.0% 22.5% Low 19.9%
New Community School 77.6% 47.0% Typical 72.6% 52.0% Typical 67.0%
Renaigsance Academy Charter School 92.0% 53.5% Typical 90.6% 54.0% Typical 85.4%
Rock Creek Community Academy 81.6% 47.0% Typical 84.9% 61.0% High 76.6%
Rural Community Schools Inc 85.2% 62.0% Typical 80.5% 46.0% Typical 76.7%
Thea Bowman Leadership Academy 70.1% 35.0% Typical 65.6% 19.0% Low 54.3%
Timothy L Johnson Academy 59.5% 57.0% Typical 47.7% 42.0% Typicai 40.5%
Veritas Academy 67.2% 38.0% Typical 67.7% 46.0% Typical 52.3%
West Gary Lighthouse Charter School 53.3% 38.0% Typical 58.8% 40.0% Typical 42.2%
Xavier School of Excellenca 55.4% 43.0% Typical 53.6% 30.0% Typical 43.2%
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INDIANA’S STATE ACCOUNTA

BSU Authorized Charter Schools 2013 IREAD Results

o S o
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Like all public schools, charter schools are required to administer the Indiana Reading Evaluation and Determination
{IREAD-3) assessment. The purpose of the IREAD-3 assessment is to measure foundational reading standards devetoped
through grade three. Overall, 80.6% of Indiana public school students passed the IREAD assessment in 2012-13. Students
who do not pass the spring assessment are retested in the summer. A school's final IREAD score is updated following the

summer retest. Students who do not pass the summer retest, may be retained in third grade.

© Summor201243.. :
Corpo me: - L JREAD PASS N | IREAD Pass
21st Century Charter School at Gary 27 '93.1%
Anderson Preparatory Academy 57 48 82.8% -
Aspire Charter Academy 80 78 97.5%
The Bleemington Project School 32 32 97.0%
Canaan Communily Academy 14 13 92,9%
Charter School of the Dunes 39 29 87.4%
Community Montessori Inc 42 38 88.4% .
Discovery Charter School 52 51 98.1%
Dr Roberi H Faulkner Academy 35 34 94.4%
East Chicage Lighthouse Charter 58 53 91.4%
East Chicago Urban Enterprise Academy 43 44 100.0%
Fall Creek Academy 53 42 77.8%
Gary Lighthouse Charter School 53 38 1.7% 53 41 77.4%
Geist Montessori Academy 43 35 81.4% 45 38 84.4%
Hoosier Academy - Indianapclis Virual School 204 145 71.1% 218 176 80.7%
Hoosler Academy - Indianapolis 44 36 81.8% 44 37 84.1%
Hoosier Academy - Muncle * i o * * .
Imagine Indlana Life Sciences Academy-East 103 42 40.8% * * *
Imagine Indiana Life Sclences Academy-West 96 61 63.5% 98 75 78.1%
Imagine MASTer Academy 69 53 76.8% * * o
imagine Schools on Broadway 59 34 57.6% * * *
Indiana Connections Academy 118 101 85.6% 118 108 91.5%
Indiana Math and Scienco Academy 49 a6 73.5% 49 40 81.6%
Kennelh A Christmon STEMM Academy 26 20 76.9% * * L
New Community School 36 30 83.3% 36 32 88.9% -
Renaissance Academy Charler School 19 13 68.4% 20 16 80.0%
Rock Creek Communily Academy 25 23 92.0% 29 29 100.0%
Rural Community Schools Inc 17 17 100.0% 17 17 100.0%
Thea Bowman Leadership Academy 107 92 86.0% 107 100 93.5%
Timothy L Johnson Academy 37 27 73.0% 40 36 20.0%
Veritas Academy 12 10 83.3% i2 11 91.7%
Waest Gary Lighthouse Charter 46 35 76.1% * * *
Xavier School of Excellence 37 28 75.7% 37 3 83.8%
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BSU Authorlzed Charter Schools 2013

The End of Course Assessments (ECAs) are tesls developed specifically for students completing their high scheo! level instruction
in Algebra i, Biofogy |, or English 10. Passing both Algebra | and English 10 are required to mest the graduation tesling
requirement. Studenls are not required to pass the Biology ECA In order to graduate. Students can retake the ECAs once each
semester.

21st Century Charter School at Gary 44.8 44.8 69.4
Anderson Preparatory Academy 59.8 78.2 71.4
Cemmunity Montessori 40.6 76.5 135
Fall Creek Academy 30.8 46.2 34.6
Hoosler Academy - Indianapolis 60.3 79.7 27.3
Indiana Connections Academy 57.1 80.7 36.4
Indiana Math & Science Academy 59.5 62.2 84.7
Options Charter School - Carmel 23.8 £8.3 13.3
Options Charter School Noblesville 29.4 50 8.3
Rock Creek Community Academy 52.9 64.7 89.5
Thea Bowman Leadership Academy 50.5 59.1 50,5
University Heighis Preparatory Academy 50.0 63.3 56.5
Indiana Statewide 69.4 75.0 68.8

Siate law (IC 20-26-13) Indicates that the graduation rate is the percentage of students within a cohort who graduate during their
expected graduation year. The expected graduation year is defined as three years after a student Is first considered to have
entered grade 9.

The non-waiver rate excludes those graduates who received a diploma with a waiver and have not met the basic expectation that
all students pass the state’s ECA Graduation Examinations before exiting high school with a diploma. Students can receive
gradualion waivers in three ways: 1) by successfully completing Core 40 coursework; 2) by demonstrating to the satisfaction of the
high school that they have met the achievement standard measured by the Graduation Examination through other means; or, 3) by
completing an mternshlp and a workforce readiness assessment,

2131 Century Charter School at Gary 24 24 . 21 87.5% 3
Anderson Preparatory Academy 52 42 80.8% 40 76.9% 2
Career Academy at South Bend 12 3 25,0% 2 16.7% 1
Communily Montessori 31 29 93.5% 21 87.7% 8
Fall Cregk Academy 16 14 87.5% 13 81.3% 1
Gary Lighthouse Charter Schoo! 55 48 87.3% 43 78.2% 5
Gary Middle College 40 2 5.0% 2 5.0% 0
Hoosier Academy Virtual Charter School 53 14 26.4% 9 17.0% 5
Hoosler Academy - Indianapolis 64 24 37.5% 19 29.7% 5
Indiana Connections Academy 274 92 33.6% 85 31.0% 7
Indlana Math & Science Academy 29 21 72.4% 20 69.0% 1
International School of Columbus 12 5] 50.0% 6 50.0% o
Neighbors' New Vislas High School 48 5 10.4% 5 10.4% 0
Options Charter School - Carmel 55 25 45.5% 25 45.5% 0
Options Charter School Noblesville 67 19 28.4% 19 28.4% 0
Rock Creek Community Academy 25 24 84.0% 19 76.0% 2
Thea Bowman Leadership Academy 113 108 95.6% 107 94.7% 1
University Heights Preparalory Academy 44 34 77.3% 29 85.9% 5
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JIPLOMA TYP

BSU Authorized Charter Schools 2013

The indiana General Assembly made completion of Core 40 a graduation requirement for all students beginning with those who entered
high school in the fall of 2007. The legislation includes an opt-out provision for parents whe determine their students could receive a
greater benefit from the General Diploma. The legislation alsc made Core 40 a minimum college admission requirement for the state’s
public four-year universities beginning in the fall of 2011,

2012-13 Drop Out Data

RIS 2012-13 Diploma Quality

School.Name Core% | Core# | Honors % | Honors# | General% | General# | DropQut% | Drop Out#
21st Century Charler School at Gary 75.0% 18 12.5% 3 12.5% 3 0.0% ¢
Anderson Preparatory Academy 73.8% 31 26.2% H 0.0% 0 13.5% 7
Carear Academy of Scuth Bend

Community Montessori 41.4% 12 44.8% 13 13.8% 4 3.2% 1
Fall Creek Academy 92.9% 13 0.0% 0 7.1% 1 0.0%

Gary Lighthouse Charter School

Gary Middle College

Hooster Academy - Indianapolis virtual

Hoosier Academy - Indlanapolis 62.6% 15 8.3% 2 29.2% 7 56.3% 36
Indiana Connections Academy* 93.5% 86 6.5% 6 0.0% 0 31.4% a6
Indiana Math & Sclence Academy* 100.0% 21 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 13.8% 4
International School of Columbus

Nelghbors' New Vistas High School

Options Charter School - Carmel * 40.0% 10 4.0% 1 56.0% 14 14.5% 8
Opticns Charter School Noblesville * 47.4% 9 5.3% 1 47.4% 9 29.9% 20
Rock Creek Community Academy 61.9% 13 33.7% 7 4.8% 1 8.0% 2
Thea Bowman Leadership Academy 82.4% 89 15.7% 17 1.9% 2 0.80% 1
University Heights Preparatory Academy 85.3% 29 0.0% 0 14.7% 5 5.8% 3
Ball State Schools 71.34% 348 61 15.62% 46 14.86% 168
State 49.80% 33.90% 16.30% 5.60%
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Performance Categories

The Northwesi Evaluation Association (NWEA), a nonprofil organization, has partnered with school corporations and
educationalagencies across the nation to provide comprehensive assessment since 1977. More than two million students in
the United States participate in NWEA assessments each year; providing an ample body of reference data for achievement
norms. With a variety of supportservices, resource materials, and in-depth training, NWEA s a leader In longitudinat
research for student achievement and growth and schoolimprovement. In keeping with the NWEA mission to help all
studenls learn, the organizationuses assessment dala o provide instructionaltools for educators. Test resulls are made
available for Immediate use, with detailed reports and interpretation of student performance.Each Ball State-authorized
charter school has administered the Measure of Academic Progress (MAP) standardized test in the fall and the spring.
Growlh rates are determined by the change in scores from fall to spring. Target growthrates are individualized, based upon
the average for comparison students in the normal group who received a similar score. The target rate for one student may
not be the same as the target rate for another. The percentage of students meeting their target growthrate for each school
includes only those siudents present for both the fall and spring testing. This is the fifth year in which NWEA assessments
are part of the requirement for accountability reporting. This data provides another snapshol of student performance that is
focused specifically on student growth.

Accountability Report 2012-2013
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Fall 2012 - Spring 2013

‘School Néme

21st Century Charter School al Gary

Anderson Preparatory Academy 60.0% 65.4% 62.8%
Aspire Charter Academy 68.6% 57.8% 75.0%
The Blcomington Project School 60.7% 61.7% 64.4%
Canaan Community Academy 38.1% 44.2% 55.8%
Career Academy a! South Bend 42.9% 50.0% 41.4%
Charter Schoo! of the Dunes 51.3% 51.8% 51.8%
Community Montessori 42.2% 49.2% 42.9%
Discovery Charter School 61.8% 50.5% 68.6%
Dr Robert H Faulkner Academy 48.3% 52.9% 76.1%
East Chicago Lighthouse Charter School 46.7% 43.4% 56.3%
East Chicago Urban Enterprise Academy 68.7% 61.9% 67.3%
Fall Creek Academy 46.2% 49,3% 48.0%
Gary Lighthouse Charler School 45.4% 54.7% 47.6%
Gary Middle College * - *
Goist Montessori Academy 43.7% 57.6% 49.7%
Hammond Academy of Science & Tech 53.3% 61.6% 56.9%
Hoosier Academy - Indlanapelis Virtual School * * *
Hoosier Academy - Indianapolis * * *
Hoosier Academy - Muncle * * *
Imagine Indiana Life Science Academy East * 37.6% 50.9%
Imagine Indiana Life Sclence Academy West 42.5% 42.5% 45.1%
Imagine MASTer Academy 44,3% 46.9% 42.9%
imagine Schools on Broadway 43.8% 43.9% 47.9%
Indiana Conneclions Academy ¥ * *
indiana Math and Science Academy 51.7% 51.8% 54.0%
International School of Columbus 50.8% * 43.5%
Kenneth A Christmon STEMM Leadership Academy * * *
LEAD College Preparatory Academy 41.1% 43.7% 32.5%
Neighbors' New Vistas High School 62.5% 54.5% 54.6%
New Community School 52.2% 60.2% 51.6%
Options Charter Schoot - Carmet 35.7% 44,4% 42.9%
Options Charfer Schoo! Noblesville 42.9% 38.9% 77.8%
Renaissance Academy Charter School 47.8% 59.4% 68.4%
Rock Creek Community Academy 59.1% 62.7% 70.6%
Rural Community Academy 66.3% 71.6% 74.5%
Thea Bowman Leadership Academy 49.0% 45.6% 44.0%
Timothy L Johnson Academy 66.7% 63.1% 51.9%
University Heights Preparatory Academy 55.8% * 56.2%
Veritas Academy 47.8% 47.7% 54,4%
West Gary Lighthouse Charter Schoo! 57.5% 56.1% 62.1%
Xavier School of Excellence 58.1% 53.7% 51.3%

+ Hoosier Academy Muncie, Hoosier Academy Indianapolis, and Hoosler Academy Virlual School were sxempt from having to administer the
NWEA Assessment,

+ internatlonat Schoot of Columbus did not administer the Language Usage portion of the exam.

+ No data available for Indtana Connections Academy.

+ No dala available for Kenneth A Christmon STEMM Academy.

+ Language Usage dala not available for University Helghts Academy.
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Sl % of Minority Recelved Received o, Free & ldentified for
School Name Students Frea Lunch Reduced Lunch | Reduced Lunch | Special Ed Sves
24st Century Charter Schoo! at Gary 100.00% 20 61 87.29% 4.6%
Anderson Preparatory Academy 38.56% 150 318 65.84% 19.0%
Aspire Charter Academy 99.70% 40 B4 01.78% 10.7%
The Bloomington Project School 22.30% 33 169 37.47% 20.8%
Canaan Community Academy 4.30% 2 52 44.00% 20.4%
Career Academy at South Bend 58.24% 37 120 64.71% 21.2%
Charter School of the DBunes 96.34% 10 141 §0.61% 17.7%
Community Montessori 14.54% 80 aR7 31.35% 20.8%
Discovery Charler School 15.38% 17 161 20.66% 11.6%
Dr Robert H Faulkner Academy 59.28% 24 50 74.23% 11.9%
East Chicago Lighlhouse Charter School 97.39% 52 53 a0.78% 8.5%
East Chicago Urban Enterprise Academy 99.33% 26 A4 20,13% 7.0%
Fall Creek Academy 94.28% 12 48 £89.83% 18.0%
Gary Lighthouse Charter School 29.39% i5 {8 92.65% 21.2%
Gary Middle College 99.86% 67 115 £3.94% 2.8%
Geist Montesseri Academy 06.68% 2 84 50.19% 16.9%
Hammond Academy of Sclence & Tech 17.59% 3 256 1.72%

Hoosier Academy - Indianapolis Virual School 72.71% 19 334 20.42% 15.4%
Hoosier Academy - Indianapolis 18.32% 279 2781 27.43% 16.7%
Hoosier Academy - Muncie 27.59% 31 420 22.22% 35.7%
Imagine Indiana Life Sclence Academy East 14.73% 15 66 48.84% 8.6%
Iragine Indiana Life Science Academy West 95.94% 25 41 93.34% 9.4%
Imagine MASTer Academy 97.34% 27 16 97.50% 9.5%
Imagine Schools on Broadway 46.79% 69 155 78.35% 6.8%
indiana Connections Academy 70.49% 21 26 92.80% 11.7%
Indiana Math and Science Academy 90.17% 15 214 58.77% 12.5%
international School of Columbus 16.95% 389 1386 49.58% 10.2%
Kennelh A Chrisimon STEMM Leadership Academy 27.34% 11 81 36.72% 21.7%
LEAD College Preparatory Academy 60.59% 7 12 94.09% 12.1%
Neighbors' New Vistas High School 89.33% 8 21 02,95% 10.1%
New Community School 50.72% 138 0.00% 21.6%
Options Charter School - Carmel 25.356% 15 114 46.48% 32.1%
Oplions Charter School Noblesville 19.38% 12 100 37.50% 26.9%
Renaissance Academy Charler School 11.95% 10 86 45.9M% 12.2%
Rock Creek Community Academy 26.85% 11 142 30.73% 18.8%
Rural Community Academy 19.25% 26 335 21.36% 29.6%
Thea Bowman Leadership Academy 2.96% 18 50 62.96% 6.6%
Timothy L Johnson Academy 90.80% 100 376 74,33% 11.8%
University Helghts Preparalory Academy 98.41% 8 5 98.41% 16.4%
Veritas Academy 61.72% 12 38 70.31% 9.0%
West Gary Lighthouse Charler School 99.84% 36 52 91.52% 12.5%
Xavier School of Excellence 81.25% 19 119 §7.66% 15.4%
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During the 2012-2013 school year, 20 schools were up for renewal. All 20 schools requested renewal. Four schools
received 5-year renewal contracts. Seven schools received 3-year conditional renewal contracts. Two schools,
Hoosier Academy-Muncie and West Gary Lighthouse Charter School, initially requested renewal of their charter
contracls, but subsequently advised the University of their intent not to see renewal of their charter agreements. The
charter agreements for the following schools were not renewed:

Charter Schoo! of the Dunes — On January 18, 2013, the school was advised of the Universily's decision not
to renew Its charter agreement. This decision was based upon the continued poor academic performance of
the schoo!l. On January 28, 2013, the school formally requested reconsideration of the non-renewal decision,
but subsequently withdrew its reconsideration request. The school is currently authorized by Calumet
Universily of St. Joseph,

Imagine Indiana Life Sciences Academy East — On January 18, 2013, the school was advised of the
University’s decision not to renew iis charter agreement. This decision was based upon the continued poor
academic performance of the school. On February 5, 2013, the school formally requested reconsideration of
the non-renewal decision. An Appeals Hearing held on May 7, 2013 and on May 14, 2013 President Gora
confirmed the non-renewal decision.

Imagine MASTer Academy - On January 18, 2013, the school was advised of the University's decision not to
renew its charter agreement. This decision was based upon the continued poor academic performance of the
school. On January 28, 2013, the school formally requested reconsideration of the non-renewal decision. An
Appeals Hearing held on April 28, 2013 and on May 14, 2013 President Gora confirmed the non-renewal
decision. This school is currently operating as a private school, Horizon Christian Academy.

Imagine Schools on Broadway - On January 18, 2013, the school was advised of the University's decision not
to renew its charter agreement. This decision was based upon the continued poor academic performance of
the school. On January 28, 2013, the school formally requested reconsideration of the non-renewal decision.
An Appeals Hearing held on April 16, 2013 and on May 14, 2013 President Gora confirmed the non-renewal
decision. This school is currently operating as a private school, Horizon Christian Academy.

Kenneth A. Christmon STEMM Leadership Academy {formerly Galileo Charter School) - On January 18,
2013, the school was advised of the University’s decision not to renew iis charter agreement. This deciston
was based upon the continued poor academic performance of the school. On January 29, 2013, the school
formally requested reconsideration of the non-renewal decision. An Appeals Hearing held on April 3, 2013
and on May 14, 2013 President Gora confirmed the non-renewal decision.

LEAD College Preparatory Charter School - On January 18, 2013, the school was advised of the University's
decision not to renew its charter agreement. This decision was based upon the continued poor academic
performance of the school. On January 29, 2013, the school formally requested reconsideration of the non-
renewal decision. An Appeals Hearing held on Aprit 3, 2013 and on May 14, 2013 President Gora confirmed
the non-renewal decision.

Timothy L Johnson Academy - On January 18, 2013, the school was advised of the University's decision not
to renew its charter agreement. This decision was based upon the continued poor academic performance of
the school. On January 31, 2013, the school formally requested reconsideration of the non-renewal decision,
but subsequently withdrew its reconsideration request. The school is currently authorized by Trine University.

The Executive Director of the Office of Charter Schools issues notice of the Universily's intent to renew or non-rensw
the Charter by January 15 last academic year before expiration of the then current term of the Charter. The
Organizer may appeal the decision of the Executive Director not to renew the Organizer's charter. In such an event,
following receipt and review of the Hearing Panel’'s recommendation, the President of the University shall issue final
notice of the University's intent to renew or non-renew the Charter by March 1 of the same academic year.
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OCS has developed and adopled national principles and slandards for quality charter schoo! authorizing in accordance with
IC 20-24-2.2-1.5. These standards are reflected in the Academic, Financial and Organizational Performance Frameworks

which are the basis for school evaluation and are incorporated into the charter contract.

The Academic Performance Framework measures:

« Growth

- Growth of Lowest-Performing Students

+NWEA meeting reading growth target

+NWEA meeting LA farget

+ NWEA meeting math target

«Indiana Department of Education Median Growth Student Growth Percentite

+Proficiency Stalus

*Proficiency Comparison: Home District

«Proficiency Comparison: Similar Schools

«Proficiency Comparison: Subgroup Proficiency

*ISTEP - passing math

+{STEP - passing ELA

+|{STEP - passing both

-ga‘dita'n? Department of Education Ranking of Schools taking ISTEP within the State, County and Local
istricts

+Schools serving 3rd Grade - Percent passing the State I-READ Test

«Indiana Department of Education Median Growth Student Growth Percentile

«State Accountability System

AYP

+A-F State Accountability System

«Results under Practices Policies and Procedures for the Monitoring and Renewal of Charter Schools
Authorized by Ball State University

»Charter Proposal

«SAT/ACT Performance and Pariicipation 2.4.a.1 and 2.4.a.2
+High School Graduation 2.4.b
«Post-Secondary College Enrollment/Employment 2.4.¢ and 2.4.d

Accountability Report 2012-2013
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GANIZATIONAL

IC, FINAN mM.,

The Financial Performance Framework measures:

+Current Ratio

+Cash to Current Liabilities
+Unrestricted Days Cash On Hand
+Enrollment Variance

+Default on Loans

s Total Margin

sDebt to Asset Ratio

*Cash Flow

+Deabt Service Coverage Ratlo

Accountability Report 2012-2013
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“INANCIAL AND ORGANIZATIONAL

ACADEMIC,

The Organizational Performance Framework measures:

+Essenlial Terms of Charter
» Education Requirements
+Special Needs Populations (SPED, ELL)

+RReporting and Compliance
- Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

«Governance Requirements
+Management Cversight
*Reporting Requirements

+Students and Employees
+Student Rights
+ Attendance
+Credentialing
+Employee Rights
+Background Checks

» School Environment
+Facilities and Transportation
+Health and Safety
+Information Handling

» Additional Obligations

Accountability Report 2012-2013
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Ball State University receives an administrative fee of three p

chart below reflect the amounts of those fees collected from

ercent (3%) of the total amount the organizer receives during the
state fiscal year from basic tuition support (as defined in IC 20-43-1-8) as permitted pursuant to pursuant to IC 20-24-7-7. The

each of its charter schools during the 2012-13 fiscal year.

24st Century Charter School at Gary $94,437.65
Anderson Preparatory Academy $166,540.56
Aspire Charter Academy $150,576.47
The Bloomington Project Scheol $39,436.29
Canaan Community Academy $6,979.28
Career Academy at South Bend $46,036.98
Charter School of the Dunes $75,098.26
Community Montessori $75,273.28
Discovery Charter School $56,250.04
Easl Chicago Lighthouse Charter School $118,563.74
Fast Chicago Urban Enterprise Academy $80,464.95
Fall Creek Academy $81,973.86
Dr. Robert H. Faulkner Academy $35,143.68
Gary Lighthouse Charter School $149,792.18
Gary Middle College $20,948.82
Gaist Montessori Academy $34,217.56
Hammeond Academy of Sclence & Tech $79,135.31
Hoosier Academy - Indianapolis $71,749.46
Hoosier Academy — Indianapolis Virtual School $340,056.18
Hoosier Academy - Muncle $17,001.83
Imagine Schools on Broadway $79,230.33
fimagine indiana Life Sctence Academy East $135,092.52
[Imagine MASTer Academy $130,257.20
Imagine Indiana Life Science Academy Waest $111,326.50
Indiana Math and Science Academy $101,054.28
Indiana Conneclions Academy $273,455.59
internationat School of Columbus $15,357.82
Kenneth A Christmon STEMM Leadership Academy $43,649.20
| EAD College Preparatory Academy $71,303.27
Nelghbors' New Vistas High School $11,381.59
New Community School $35,511.36
Options Charter School - Carme! $23,552.61
Options Charler School Noblesville $23,572.40
Renaissance Academy Charter School $28,986.80
Rock Creek Communily Academy $57,783.64
Rural Community Academy $21,152.49
Thea Bowman Leadership Academy $269,786.62
Timothy L Johnson Academy $58,471.74
University Heifghts Preparatory Academy $54,418.46
\eritas Academy $19,301.32

‘est Gary Lighthouse Charter School $133,611.79
[Xaviar School of Excellence $65,080.32

Total 2012-13 Admijnistrative Fees

$3,501.924.24
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The Office of Charter Schools (OCS) has a staff of 6 full-time employees. In addition, the OCS reimburses for expenses the
women and men who take time away from their normal activities to review the charter school proposals. These individuals
are not employees of the Universily. The university provides office space, access to university counsel, media consultation
and other university resources and personnel. In addition, it provides the following benefits to all of its schools:

. & & & & 5 &

Board Training for all its schools

NWEA Testing for all its schools

NWEA Regional Workshops {i.., Regional Growth & Goals Workshop, Climbing the Data Ladder Workshop, etc.)
Annual Fiscal Audits

Academic Site Visits

A new innovative web-based file/data handling system)

Staff support with expertise in the area of finance and special education which is a unique attribute among authorizers
in Indiana

“Charter Schools; Patterns of Innovation, a New Architecture for a New Education,” an immersive learning project
which was completed In June of 2012

“Bast Practices In Indiana's Charter Schools,” a research project which was also completed in 2012

A Research study on Leadership in Charter Schools - collaborating with the Educational Leadership Depariment on
this current research project

The chart below reflect the amounts of those expenditures during the 2012-13 fiscal year:

Expenditure Amount
Salaries {2012-13 7 full-time; 3 graduate assistants) $527,127.38
Benefils $158,884.03
Consullants and Contract Sarvices $87,987.39
Legal $51,312.50
NWEA $243,734.20
Education Resources $3,675.00
Board Training/Board Audits $3,150.35
Fitzgerald Isaac - Annual Financial Audits $284,300.00
Charter Proposal Review Panel $3,070.16
Reconslderation Hearing Panel $18,041.20
Office Supplies $3,014.66
Minor Equipment $1,5690.98
Duss and Memberships $3,000.00
Repair and Maintenance $119.70
Printing $10,720.41
Postage, FedEx, UPS charges $1,112.62
Telephone $2,730.73
Conferences/Meetings Facility Rentals and Meals $5,804.98
Travel $20,638.27
Overhead and Support Services $1,067,848.00

Total 2012-13 Expenditures $2,497,992.55

Accountability Report 2012-2013
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ADDRESS

556 Washington Street

Gary, IN 46402

TELEPHONE

219.886.9339

WEBSITE

www.21ccharter.org/Gary/index.html
Grades Served: K-12
Year Opened: 2005-2006
Final Year In Contract: 2013-2013
Total Enroliment
School Leader Angela West
Board Chair: Alyce Butler

To provide a rigorous education that will prepare students for college and push them to their maximum intellectual
potential.

The emphasis of the educational program at 21st Century Charter School at Gary grows from the belief that all
studentls are college-bound. From elementary through high school, the educational program rigorously prepares
students using data- driven, standards-based instruction. The school's Middle College program for high school

sludents serves an increasing number of students enrolled in college courses for dual credit.

Accountability Report 2012-2013
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Comparative data

_EVEL DEMOGRAPHICS

Asian 1
Black 470
Hispanic 3
Multiracial 6
White 0

The data presented in the report illustrates school-level demographic data. In particular, demographic
factors including special education status, free/reduced lunch status (meal plan), ethnicity, limited English

proficiency, and gender distribution are presented for comparison. The data was exiracted from the Indiana
Department of Education.

Accountability Report 2012-2013
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To document achievement trends at the school, we have collected school-level ISTEP+ performance data.
ISTEP+ data currently available provide fwo different methods for analysis. First, we provide data from the
school outlining both overall school performance based on both passing percentage {for each assessment
area)and median growlh percentile. The median growth percentile score is an assessment that documents
the average growth percentile for students, as compared to the growth rates for other children who

performed ai the same level in the prior year. In this way, we have an indicator for the Spring 2013 data
identifying the rate of growth for the charter school students relative to a predictable rate of improvement,

NWEA %
NWEA % NWEA % mesting ISTEP %
meating meeting math ISTEP % | ISTEP % | Passing
reading ELA growth growth Passing Passing Math &
School Year | AYP Pl 221 A-F growth target target target Math ELA ELA
2005-06 No | Probation | @ 30.4% 22.4% 29.8% 24.23% 34.12% | 1831%
2008-07 No | Provation | ™a 57.4% 24.1% 26.9% 20.49% 24.93% | 13.25%
Acad
2007-08 Yes Progress nfa 47.4% 28% 44.3% 20.03% 28.99% 12.65%
2008-09 K-8 wa wa n/a 64.4% 53.3% 53.3% 48.7% 46.2% 30.6%
9-10 56.8% 23.9% 23.9%
2009-10K8 | voo | Exemplary | A 60.6% 59.9% 70.2% 828% | 66.24% | 62.42%
9-10 31.4% 44.2% 58.6%
2010-11 K-8 Yes a A 60.5% 61.3% 55.9% 80.12% 74.53% 63.4%
9-10 59.6% 36.2% 36.2%
2011-12 K-8 54.4% 59.2% 58.5%
nfa nia c 72.39% 76.07% 63.2%
9-10 27.8% 27.3% 38.9%
2012-13 59.6% 52.9% 62.7% 80.2% 75.4% 68.4%
Students Overall Category or Quadrant
ISTEP+ Tested Passing Median Growth (Growth Achievement)
Math 172 80.2 39 Lower Growth/Low Achievement
English 171 75.4 48 Lower Growth/Low Achievement

Accountability Report 2012-2013
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21st Century Charter School at Gary

indiana's Growth Model has set a national standard for measuring the academic progress students make during
a school year. This gives parents new levels of information on the academic achievement of their students. By
measuring improvement as well as proficiency, the model ensures there is a constant focus on driving results for

all students. The Indiana's Growth Model measures a student’
similar academic histories -- as well as the student'
are used in a new way to provide a deeper and more user-friendly look at student achievement. {Sou

s academic growth in relationship to students with

s progress toward proficiency standards. The ISTEP+ scores
rce: IDOE)

Year # Tested Pass % Median Growth %
Spring 2006 131 221 24.0 e Grmicth pigher Grnmth
Spring 2007 104 16.3 31.0 Hrghrt Rrbervemrat Hrghrd Ao hippsse s
Spring 2008 i22 63.3 57.0
Spring 2009 145 46.9 67.0 & & &
Spring 2010 149 83.2 89.0
Spring 2011 161 79.5 52.0 &
Spring 2012 164 72,6 40.0
Spring 2013 172 80.2 39.0
@
2006: Low growth, low achievement
2007: Low growth, low achievement
2008: High growth, low achievement
2009: High growth, low achisvement &
2010: High growth, high achievement @
2011: High growth, low achievement
2012: Low growth, low achievement Lt t Brawth Figher Goonh
2013: Low growih, low achisvement 1 oaeer hebievermant vastr Robirvrie st
Toead DHES M foe Pttt Dot T e cartid
Year # Tested Pass % Median Growth %
Spring 2006 130 36.9 39.0
Spring 2007 105 32.4 43.0 twer Crowth srgher Growuth
Spring 2008 123 48.0 51.0 Fighed Adhir v biarst Higher Rehie s mast
Spring 2009 145 386 48.0
Spring 2010 149 66.4 72.0
Spring 2011 161 73.9 68.0 @3
Spring 2012 163 76.1 51.0 i
Spiing 2013 174 754 48.0 @
2006: Low growth, fow achievement
2007: Low growth, low achievement G j
2008: High growih, low achievement &
2009: Low growth, low achlevement
2010: High growth, low achievement
2011: High growth, low achievement
2012: High growth, [ow achievement
2013: Low growih, low achisvement Lower Growth Hagher Brawih
| erveer A bipwwiseed Enwre Ky | e
Agewvy EO1F ek an Thladd deieed Fercastin
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BSU Office of Charter Schools

Ball State University Office of Charter Schools acknowledges the following organizations for their contribution in
improving authorizing practices at ihe Office of Charter Schools.

National Association of Charter School Authorizers
{(NACSA) Public impact

Indiana Public Charter Schools Assoclation (IPCSA)
indiana Department of Educalion

{IDOE) Indiana Charter School

Beard Indianapolis Mayor's Office

Accountability Report 2012-2013
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Career Academy of South Bend Change of Authorizer Application to Education One, LLC
(Trine University)

Attachment 8: Financial Reports

a. The last three years of audited financial statements and management letters for the

school:
Attached are the two available audited financial statements & management letters:

o fiscal year ending 6/30/12 covering first year of operation (2011-12)
¢ fiscal year ending 6/30/13 covering second year of operation (2012-13)
Audit for FYE 6/30/14 has not been completed. There was no audit for FYE
6/30/11 (year prior to start of operations)

b, Current fiscal year budget and year-to-date actual expenses: attached is the financial

statement for January 2015 including year-to-date comparisons with 2014-15 budget
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Board of Directors
Career Academy of South Bend, Inc.

We have sudited the accompanying statement of financial position of Career Academy of
Sonth Bend, Ine. (the "School®) as of june 30, 2012 and the related statements of activities
and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the School's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial

glatements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosurcs in the financial statements, An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable

basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Career Academy of South Bend, Inc. as of June 30, 2012
and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the ycar then ended, in conformily with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

%ﬁvﬂdi{/w’;nn t,e

June 12, 2013

4245 North Meridian Sireet, Svite 302
Indianapolis, [ndiana 46260
317-844-8300)  Fax 3i7-84B-6555

www.ditzgeraldivauc.nel

Member of American Institate of Certified Public Aceauntanis



CAREER ACADEMY OF SOUTH BEND), INC.

Statement of Financial Position

Assels

June 30, 2012

Current assets:
Cash
Accounis receivable:
State education support
Grants
Other
Unconditional promises to give
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets

Unconditional promises to give
Properly and equipment:
Land
Building and improvements
Fumiture, fixtures, and equipment
Construction-in-progress
Less: accumulated depreciation
Property and equipment, net

Liabilities and Net Assets

$ 70,211

505,619
4,357
42,455
550,000
4,445
1,177,087

800,000

159,400
11,193,290
918,769
42,719
(234,155)

12,080,023

$ 14,057,110

Cuwrrent liabilities:
Accounis payable and accrued expenses
Cuitent portion of long-term debt
Total current liabilities

Accrued interest on Common School Fund loans
Long-term debt, net of current portion
Total liabilities

Net assets:
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Total net assets

See accompanying notes o {inancial statements.

145,969
553,840

699,809

22,013
11,865,249

12,587,071

220,039
1,250,000

1,470,039

$ 14,057,110




CAREER ACADEMY OF SOUTH BEND, INC.

Statement of Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Temporarily

Revenue, Gains and Supporl Unrestricted Restricted Total
State education support $ 1,011,239 - 1,011,239
Grant revenue 456,615 1,500,000 1,956,615
Contributions 987,176 - 987,176
Student fees 13,329 13,329
Kent 53,008 - 53,008
Other 23,168 . 23,168
Nel nssets released from restriction 250,000 (250,000 -

Total revenue, gains and suppori 2,794,595 1,250,000 4,044,595
Expenses
Program services:

Educational instruction 1,396,036 - 1,396,036

Education support 379,704 - 379,704
Administrative 914,303 - 914,303

Total expenses 2,690,043 - 2,690,043

Increase in nef assels 104,352 1,250,000 1,354,552
Nel ussets, beginning of year 115,487 - 115,487
Net assels, end of year $ 220,039 1,250,000 1,470,039

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CAREER ACADEMY OF SOUTH BEND, INC.

Statement of Cash Flows

Operating Activities

Year Ended

June 30, 2012

Change in nct assets

Adjustment to reconcile change in net assets to

cash flows from operating activities:
Depreciation
Change in:
Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Net cash used by operating activities

Investing Activilies

$

1,354,552

234,155

(1,847,231)
(4,445)
167,982

(94,987)

Purchase of property end equipment
Proceeds from note receivable
Net cash used by investing activitles

Financing Activities

(12,087,414)
7,300

(12,080,114)

Proceeds from Common School Fund loan

Proceeds from other long-term debt
Principal repayments of long-term debt
Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase in cash
Cash, beginning of year
Cash, end of year

Supplementary information:
Cash payments for interest expense

See accompanying notes to financial statements,

4

582,218
12,268,882
(630,511)

12,220,589

45,488

24,723

$

$

70,211

47,669



CAREER ACADEMY OF SOUTH BEND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2012

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

General

Career Academy of South Bend, Inc. (the “School") is a public benefit not-for-profit
organization incorporated under the laws of the State of Indiana. The School operates a
public charter school established under Indiana Code 20-24 and is sponsored by Ball
State University. The School commenced operations as of August 2011.

Financial Statement Prescentation

The School repotts its financial position and activities according to three classes of asssts
ag follows:

» Unrestricted nel assets, which represent net assets that the Board of Directors has
discretionary control to use in carrying on the activities of the School in
accordance with its articles of incorporation and by-laws.

= Temporarly resiricted net assets, which represent net assets restricted by the donor,
grantor, or other outside party for a specific purpose or until the passage of time.

» Permanently restricted net assets, which represent net assets that are subject to
restriction by gift instruments requiring that the principal be invested in perpetuity
and only the income be expended, or assels donated with the provision that they
not be sold. There were no permanently restricted net assets as of June 30, 2012,

Accounting Estimales

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Actual

results could differ from those estimates.

5.



CARBER ACADEMY QF SQUTH BEND, INC,

Notes to Financial Statements

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Revenue Recognition

Revenues primarily come from resources provided under the Indiana Charter Schools
Act. Under the Act, the School receives an amount per student in relation to the
funding received by public schools in the same geographic area, Funding from the
State of Indiana is based on enrollment, and is paid in equal monthly installments in
January through December following the start of the school year. Revenue is
recognized in the year in which the educational services are rendered.

A portion of the School’s revenue is the product of cost reimbursement grants.
Accordingly, the School recognizes revenue under these grants in the amount of costs
~ and expenses at the time fhey ar¢ incurred,

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable relate primarily to nclivities funded under federal grants and
[egislation enacted by the State of Indiana. The School believes that j{ is operating in
compliance with regulatory requirements and as such no allowance for doubtful

rccounts is deemed necessary.

Contributions

Contributions received and unconditional promises to give are measured at their fair
values and are reported as an increase in net assets. The School reports gifts of cash
and other assets as restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that
fimit the use of the donated assels, or if they are designated as support for future
periods. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activilies as nel

assels released from restrictions,



CAREER ACADEMY OF SOUTH BEND, INC,

Notes to Financial Statements

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Property and Equipment

Purchases of these assets and expenditures that materially increase value or extend useful
lives are capitalized and are included in the accounts at cost. Routing maintenance and
repairs, and mitnor replacement costs are charged to expense as incurred,

Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives generally are ay follows:

Building and improvements ... 39 years
Furniture, fixtures, and cquipment ......coenenr 3 to 7 years
Taxes on Income

Career Academy of South Bend, Ino. has received a determination from the U.S. Treasury
Department stating that it qualifies under the provisions of Section 501(c)(3) of the
Intemal Revenue Code as a tax-exempt organization; however, the School would be
subject to tax on incoms unrelated to its tax-cxempt purpose. For the year ended June
30, 2012, no accounting for federal and state income taxes was required to be included

in the accompanying financial statements.

Professional standards require the School to recognize a tax liability only if it is more
likely than not the fax position would be sustained in a tax examinafion, with a {ax
examinalion being presumed to occur. The amount recognized is the largest amount of
tax liability that is greater than 50% likely of being realized on examination. For tax
positions not meeting the more-likely-than-not test, no tax liability is recorded. The
School has examined this issue and has determined that there are no material contingent

tax liabilities or quostionable tax positions,

Subsequent Bvents

The School evaluated subsequent events through June 12, 2013, the date thess financial
glatements were available to be issued. Events oceurring through that dale have been
ovaluated to determine whether a change in the financial statements or related

disclosures would be required.



CAREER ACADEMY OF SOUTH BEND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

(2) Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable for state education support as of June 30, 2012 represent amounts
due relating to the following sources:

TUIION SUPPOT wereevrrrcnerrararersinanmmiasmsssssamiinest $450,680
Special education BTant .. 54,939
TOALoren o resrasssessesiaseressasarmsnsssssnssssssimassnsissts $505.619

Tuition support is determined by state law and is dependent upon the geographic location
of the school and is indexcd to the poverty data of the enrolled students. The payment
schedule is likewisc determined by stale law, with tuition support payable in equal
monthly installments in the calendar ycar following the start of the school year. Upon
revocation or termination of the charter, the payment streams will cease and any unpaid
amounts will be applied to the unpaid balance of notes from the Indiana Common

School Fund (sce Note 4).

(3) Unconditional Promises io Give

Unconditional promises to give consisted of the following as of June 30, 2012:

Restricied (o payment of debt obligation seneens 31,250,000

Restricted for building improvements............. 100,000
Gross unconditional promises to give v $1,350,000

Amounts due in:
Less than ONE YEAT ...cuwmerwniro s $ 550,000
One 10 fIVE YEarS. .. cmursimssssssansnsssines 800,000
$1.350,000

Uncondilional promises to give have not been discounted because they cither provide for
intcrest on the unpaid balance, or are payable currently.



CAREER ACADEMY OF SOUTH BEND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

(4) Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt at June 30, 2012 consisted of the following:

Nate payable to the City of South Bend, Indiana (and The
Garatoni Family Foundation, as bond holder) relating
to the issuance of Economic Development Revenue
Bonds, payable $125,000 quarterly, plus inferest at 4% :
$ 1,250,000

per annum, secured by land and butlding ..

Unsecured note payable to The Garatoni Family Foundation, due
and payable December 31, 2015, plus interest at 1% per annum... 3,574,346

Unsecured note payable lo Larry Garatoni, du¢ and payable
December 31, 20135, phus interest at [ %6 per anMMI . coocirmrersrnens 6,320,612

Term note payable to Crescent Michiana Properties LLC, payable
$8,520 monthly, including interest at 7.25% per annuim,

maturing in October 2021, secured by land and building and

guaranteed by The Garatoni Family Foundation 691,913

............................

Note payable to the Indisna Common School Fund, payable
$14,555 semi-annually beginning July 1, 2013, plus interest at

4% per annum, maturing in July 2033, secured by unpaid
wition support digtributions (see Note 2) w.oimnmsmmsniines. 582.218
Total [0NE-TCTIM GEB..vuncivereessmesieisimis s et 12,419,089
LESS: CUITENE POTHIOIL coovuivvssrasssssissssssssssssserssbassssmmssss s s (553,840)
$11.865.249



CAREER ACADEMY OF SQUTH BEND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

{4) Long-Tetm Debt, Continued

Principal maturities of long-term debt are scheduled as follows:

Year Ending June 30:

10 5 ST YD TRRP PR STPR S SIS wee $ 553,840
DO T orveressessessesesrerssabisssasiesiraessastasn et aE s P AR AR LIRSS TR bR 0108 586,987
10} K DT TP TP PO TPT P TIPS P 10,236,284
D EG oersvrsevesenararassesatsesssarsessencsbesionent ekl s aEn O a R LTt 4R 95,989
2017 i ST PP PP PP LTI e 101,002
Thereafler o T ST PPN 844,987

$12,419.083

(5) Leases

The School leases certain items of equipment under operating leases. The equipment
leases provide for monthly lease paymenis through April 2017, Leas¢ expense under
operating leases for the year ended Junc 30, 2012 was $9,516.

Future minimum lease obligations are as follows:

Year Ended June 30:
2013 1vmrroserereeeemesessiraes reensenenne rermesee s ersasanten $7,076
0 1 S USRI PPIP P PT TS fertrriarrnirsararsatits 7,076
210} SRS O PP PPN ORI 7,076
DL evsssieeersrverssnsssbarsessesnanenrensesessesbeabiamrapaistabasebanasRe I nees 7,076
1103 ke 2R TT T T TS U UV TOP PP PSS S 1,328
(6) Commitments

‘The School operates under a charter granted by Ball State University. As the sponsoting
organization, Ball State University exercises certain oversight responsibilities. Under
this charter, the School has agreed to pay lo Ball State University an annual
administrative fee equal to 3% of state tuition support. The charter remains in effect
until June 30, 2016 and is renewable thereafter by mutual consent. Payments under this
charter agreement were $27,044 for the year ended Junc 30, 2012.

-10-



CAREER ACADEMY OF SOUTH BEND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

(1) Retirement Plan

Retirement benefits for certified teachers ere provided by the Indiana State Teachers’
Retircment Fund (“TRE"), which is a multiple-employer defined benefit retirement plan
governed by the State of Indiana and administered by the Indiana Public Retirement
System (“INPRS") Board. Contribution requirements of plan members are established
by the INPRS Board. Under the plan, the School contributes 7.5% of compensation for
al] participating personnel. Employees can opt to participate in a 401(k) plan offered
through Freedom Retirement Plan Consultants, Inc. in lieu of participating in TRF. The
School also contributes 7.5% of compensation {o the 401(k) plan. Substantially all full-
time employees are eligible to participate in either plan. Retirement plan expense under
both plans for (he year ended June 30, 2012 was $52,302. '

(8) R¢lated Party Transactions

In the year ended June 30, 2012, the School obtained financing from The Garatoni Family
Foundation and Larry Garatoni, individually (se¢ Note 4), relating to the construction of
the school facility. Larry Garatoni is the President of the School's Board of Directors
and the chief executive officer of HQ Investments Corporation, which manages the
investments of The Garatoni Family Foundation. The School also received
contributions totaling $710,000 direotly and indirectly from The Garatoni Family

Foundation in the year ended June 30, 2012.

(9) Restrictions on Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assels represent an original $1,500,000 pledge of tax increment
revenucs by the South Bend Redovelopment Commission toward the repayment of the
School’s debt obligation under the City of South Bend economic development revenue
bonds (see Notc 4). These amounts are considered to be temporarily restricied in that
they are limited as to use in future periods. The pledge is to be paid in quarterly
installments through November 2014, Payments of $250,000 were received in the year

ended June 30, 2012,

«J1-



CAREER ACADEMY QF SOUTH BEND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

(10) Risks and Uncertainties

The School provides educational instruction services to families residing in St. Joseph
and surrounding counties in Indiana, and is subject to the risks of economic and
competitive forces at work within this geographic area.

The majority of revenues relate to legislation enacted by the State of Indiana and grants
awarded under federal programs. Changes in state or federal legislation could
significantly affect the School, Additionally, thc School is subject to monitoring and
audit by state and federal agencies. Those examinations may result in additional
linbility to be imposed on the School.

Financial instruments that potentially subject the School to concentrations of credit risk

consist principally of receivables from the Stale of Indiana. At June 30, 2042,
substantially all ol the accounts receivable balance was due from the State of Indiana.

-12-
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CAREER ACADEMY OF SQUTH BEND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

(11) Functional Expense Reporting

The costs of providing the educational activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain expenses have been allocated
among the programs and services benefited. Following Is 2 summary of expenses
comprising each program and service for the year ended June 30, 2012:

Educational Education Adiini-

Instruction _Support strative
Salarics and Wages, ..ererere. ¥ 668,319 99,908 349,828
Employce benefits....uiiiiinin 157,693 25,946 118,218
Professional SErvices ....ociviinn 40,029 21,959 107,115
Staff development
and recruliment o 41,045 - .
Authorizer oversight fee....c.ovoc - - 27,044
Food eosts.,.ooveimercriceevninecene - 36,355 -
T'ravel/transporiation service....... 1,080 1,240 10,094
Equipment and rentals .ovvennean 10,595 - 24,796
Repairs and maintenance .., . - 4,399 -
Classraom, kiichen and
office supplies ooviiieervinnns 132,490 16,521 23,458
OCCUPANCY ..ovivvarmerernrerrrrrssersenies 107,816 157,275 -
Adverlising ..o, - - 58,183
Depreciation ...........ccccoocvnnninn. 234,155 - -
Interest...oieceveriemreenen e - . 162,951
INSUrANCE .vvivivinnssisermarerimrrnnm - - 5,086
107157 SRR 2214 16,101 26,930

31326036 379704 214,303



CAREER ACADEMY OF SOUTH BEND, INC.

Other Reports

Year Ended June 30, 2012

The repott presented herein was prepared in addition to another official report prepared for
the School as listed below:

Supplemental Audit Report of Career Academy of South Bend, Inc,
The Supplemental Audit Report contains the results of compliance testing required by the
Indiana State Board of Accounts under its Guidelines for the Audits of Charter Schools

Performed by Private Examiners pertaining to matters addressed in its Accounting and
Uniform Compliance Guidelines Manual for Indiana Charter Schools.

-14-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Board of Directors
Career Academy of South Bend, Inc.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Career Academy of South
Bend, Inc., which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2013 and
2012, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the years then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America, this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstalement.

An audil involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about ‘the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statemeots, The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

0245 “arth Merhdian Street. Suite 302
bilianagolis lodinn 36260
ST-REEE300 Fax 317-8 18-05055
www fitzgeraldizaaenet

Wembrr uf Amreioan Prstinte af Cortifivd Pablie dtconntunts



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Career Academy of South Bend, Inc. as of June 30, 2013
and 2012, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Jéymﬂ% /.4»/&6 ced

Indianapolis, IN
April 24, 2014
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CAREER ACADEMY OF SOUTH BEND, INC.

Statements of Financial Position

June 30
Assets 2013 2012
Current assets: '
Cash § 557,242 70,211
Accounts receivable:
State education support - 505,619
Grants 30,436 4,357
Other 188 42455
Unconditional promises to give 550,000 550,000
Prepaid expenses - 4,445
Total current asscts 1,137,866 1,177,087
Unconditional promises to give 250,000 800,000
Property and equipment:
Land 159,400 159,400
Building and improvements 11,509,803 11,193,290
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 3,141,242 918,769
Construction-in-progress - 42,719
Less: agcumulated depreciation (726,840) {234,155)
Property and equipment, net 12,083,605 12,080,023
$ 13,471,471 14,057,110
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses h3 34,129 145,969
Current portion of long-term debt 557,876 553,840
Refundable advances 51,119 -
Total current liabilities 693,124 699,809
Accrued interest on Common School Fund loans - 22,013
Long-term debt, net of current portion 12,047,178 11,865,249
Total liabilities 12,740,302 12,587,071
Net assets (deficiency):
Unrestricted (118,831) 220,039
Temporarily restricted 850,000 1,250,000
Total net assets 731,169 1,470,039
$ 13,471,471 14,057,110

See accompanying notes to financial statements,
3.




CAREER ACADEMY QF SOUTH BEND, INC.

Statement of Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2013

Temporarily

Revenue and Support Unrestricted Restricted Total
State education support $ 2,555,786 - 2,555,786
Grant revenue 720,812 - 720,812
Contributions 11,003 100,000 111,603
Student fecs 47,473 - 47,473
Rent 137,299 - 137,299
Other 29,173 - 29,173
Net assets released from restriction 500,000 (500,000} -

Total revenue and support 4,001,546 (400,000) 3,601,546
Expenses
Program services:

Educational instruction 2,858,682 - 2,858,682

Education support 391,960 - 391,960
Administrative 1,166,676 - 1,166,676

Total expenses 4,417,318 - 4,417,318

Change in net assets before

non-operating activity (415,772) (400,000) (815,772)
Non-Operating Activity
Gain due to changes in legislative

funding 76,902 - 76,902
Change in net assets (338,870) (400,000) {738,870)
Net assets, beginning of year 220,039 1,250,000 1,470,039
Net assets (deficiency), end of year $ (118,831) 850,000 731,169

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CAREER ACADEMY OF SOUTH BEND, INC.
Statement of Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Temporarily

Revenue and Support Unrestricted Restricted Total
State education support $ 1,011,239 - 1,011,239
Grant revenue 456,615 1,500,000 1,956,615
Contributions 087,176 - 987,176
Student fees 13,329 - 13,329
Rent 53,068 - 53,068
Other - 23,168 - 23,168
Net assets released from restriction 250,000 (250,000) -

Total revenue and support 2,794,595 1,250,000 4,044,595
Expenses
Program services:

Educational instruction 1,553,311 - 1,553,311

Education support 222,429 - 222,429
Administrative 914,303 - 914,303

Total expenses 2,690,043 - 2,690,043

Change in net assets 104,552 1,250,000 1,354,552
Net assets, beginning of year 115,487 - 115,487
Net assets, end of year $ 220,039 1,250,000 1,470,039

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
-5-



CAREER ACADEMY OF SOUTH BEND, INC.

Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended June 30

Operating Activities 2013 2012
Change in net assets $  (738,870) 1,354,552
Adjustment to reconcile change in net assets to
cash flows from operating activities:
Depreciation 492 685 234,155
Gain due to changes in legislative funding {76,902) -
Change in:
Accounts receivable {756,086) (1,847,231)
Prepaid expenses 4,445 (4,445)
Unconditional promises to give 550,000 -
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (22,496) 167,982
Refundable advances : 51,119 -
Net cash used by operating activitie: {496,105) (94,987)
Investing Activities
Purchase of property and equipment (496,267) (12,087.,414)
Proceeds from note receivable - 7,300
Net cash used by investing activitics (496,267) (12,080,114)
Financing Activities
Proceeds from Common School Fund loan 711,220 582,218
Proceeds from other long-term debt, net of repayments 768,183 11,638,371
Net cash provided by financing activities 1,479,403 12,220,589
et increase in cash 487,031 45,488
Cash, beginning of year 70,211 24,723
Cash, end of year $ 557,242 70,211
Supplementary information:
Cash payments for interest expense $ 209,509 47,669

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
-6-



CAREER ACADEMY OF SOUTH BEND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2013 and 2012

(1} Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

General

Career Academy of South Bend, Inc. (the "School") is a public benefit not-for-profit
organization incorporated under the laws of the State of Indiana. The School operates a
public charter school established under Indiana Code 20-24 and is sponsored by Ball
State University.

Financial Statement Presentation

The Schoot reports its financial position and activities according to three classes of asscts
as follows:

» Unsestricted net assets, which represent net assets that the Board of Directors has
discretionary control to use in carrying on the activities of the School in
accordance with its articles of incorporation and by-laws.

» Temporarily restricted net assets, which represent net assets restricted by the donor,
grantor, or other outside party for a specific purpose or until the passage of time.

* Permanently restricted net assets, which represent net assets that are subject to
restriction by gift instruments requiring that the principal be invested in perpetuity
and only the income be expended, or assets donated with the provision that they
not be sold. There were no permanently restricted net assets as of June 30, 2013
or 2012,

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.



CAREER ACADEMY OF SOUTH BEND, INC.

Notes {o Financial Statements

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Revenue Recognition

Revenues primarily come from resources provided under the Indiana Charter Schools
Act. Under the Act, the School receives an amount per student in relation to the
funding received by other public schools in the same geographic area, Funding from
the State of Indiana is based on enrollment, and is paid in equal monthly installments in
January through December following the start of the academic school year. Revenue is
recognized in the year in which the educational services are rendered.

A portion of the School's revenue is the product of cost reimbursement grants.
Accordingly, the School recognizes revenue under these grants in the amount of costs
and expenses at the time they are incurred.

Accounts Receivable’

Accounts receivable relate primarily to activities funded under federal grants and
legislation enacted by the State of Indiana. The School believes that ii is operating in
compliance with regulatory requirements and as such no allowance for doubtful
accounts is deemed necessary.

Contributions

Contributions received and unconditional promises to give arc measured at their fair
values and are reported as an increase in net assets. The School reports gifts of cash
and other assets as restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that
limit the use of the donated assets, or if they are designated as support for future
periods. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statements of activities as net
assets released from restriction,

Reclassifications

Certain figures for 2012 that were previously reported have been reclassified for
comparative purposes.



CAREER ACADEMY OF SOUTH BEND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Property and Equipment

Purchases of these assets and expenditures that materially increase value or extend useful
lives are capitalized and are included in the accounts at cost. Routine maintenance and
repairs, and minor replacement costs are charged o expense as incurred.

Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives generally are as follows:

Building and improvements ... 39 years
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment ...vveiviiarns 3 to 7 years

‘I'axes on Income

Carcer Academy of South Bend, Inc. has received a determination from the U.S. Treasury
Department stating that it qualifies under the provisions of Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code as a tax-exempt organization; however, the School would be
subject to tax on income unrelated to its tax-exempt purpose. For the year ended June
30, 2013 and 2012, no accounting for federal and state income taxes was required to be
included in the accompanying financial statements.

Professional accounting standards require the School to recognize a tax liability only if it
is more likely than not the tax position would be sustained in a lax examination, with a
{ax examination being presumed to occur. The amount recognized is the largest amount
of tax liability that is greater than 50% likely of being realized on examination. For tax
positions not meeting the more-likely-than-not test, no tax liability is recorded. The
School has examined this issue and has determined that there are no material contingent
tax liabilities or questionable tax positions. The tax year ending 2012 is open to audit
for both federal and state purposes.

Subsequeni Events

The School evaluated subsequent events through April 24, 2014, the date these financial
statements were available to be issued. Events occurring through that date have been
ovaluated to determine whether a change in the financial statements or related
disclosures would be required.



CAREER ACADEMY OF SOUTH BEND, INC.,

Notes to Financiat Statements

(2) Legislative Funding Changes

In 2013, the Indiana legislature passed amendments to the Indiana Charter Schools Act
that altered the manner in which charter schools are funded. Prior to enactment, charter
schools received funding in the calendar year following the start of the academic school
year, As such, the School followed the practice of recognizing at June 30 a receivable
for payments to be made to the School in the subsequent July through December time
period, which represented amounts due for services rendered. Effective July 1, 2013,
school funding will be paid following the State of Indiana fiscal year of July to June,
which is similar to the School’s academic year. As part of this legislative amendment,
the funding owed to the School under prior legislation for the period July to December
2013 will no longer be paid.

In the same session, the Indiana legislature appropriated funding from the Indiana general
fund to repay Indiana Common School Fund loans and accrued interest outstanding as
of June 30, 2013 on behalf of charter schools. The School has applied for and received
repayment of its indebtedness under these obligations as of June 30, 2013.

The effect of these legislative amendments has been reflected in the accompanying
statement of activities as a gain due to changes in legislative funding and is comprised
of the following:

Repayment of Common School Fund loans......c.iiiiiin $1,293,438

Repayment of accrued interest on Common School Fund loans..... 61,357
1,354,795

Elimination of School funding .......cocovrriniimiinnnseen, (1,277.893)

$_176.902



CAREER ACADEMY OF SQUTH BEND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

{3) Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable for state education support as of June 30, 2012 represented amounts
due relating to the following sources:

TUHION SUPPOLL 1rerervierriinrcrerisnriensssrsssanssiacssins $450,680
Special education grant ..., 54,939
TOtAlcrr e s $505,619

Tuition support is determined by state law and is dependent upon the geographic location
of the school and is indexed to the poverty data of the enrolled students and other
factors. The payment schedule is likewise determined by state law, with tuition support
payable in equal monthly installments in the calendar year following the start of the
academic school year, Effective July 1, 2013, tuition support will be paid in monthly
installments that coincide with the School’s fiscal year (see Note 2},

(4) Unconditional Promises to Give

Unconditional promises to give consisted of the following as of June 30, 2013 and 2012:

2013 2012
Restricted 1o payment of debt obligation ......... $750,000 1,250,000
Restricted for building improvements. ............. 50,009 100,000
Gross unconditional promises to give e $800,000 1,350,000
Amounts due in:
Less than ONE YEAT .cvvvrvuieiieesimnsssnrnse e ssianes $550,000 550,000
One 10 fIVE YEAIS.covvrmiimimririrsnesnr o esessnsnnns 250,000 800,000

$300.000 1,350,000

Unconditional promises to give have not been discounted because they either provide for
interest on the unpaid balance, or are payable currently.



CAREER ACADEMY OF SOUTH BEND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

(5) Long-Term Debt
Long-tenn debt at June 30, 2013 and 2012 consisted of the following:

013

[
o

Note payable to the City of South Bend, Indiana
(and The Garatoni Family Foundation,
as bond holder) relating to the issuance
of Economic Development Revenue Bonds,
payable $125,000 quarterly, plus interest at
4% per annum, secured by land and building ........ $750,000 1,250,000

Unsecured note payable to The Garatoni Family
Foundation, due and payable December 31,
2015, plus interest at 1% per annum .......ccoivvierens 3,552,946 3,574,346

Unsecured note payable to Larry Garatoni, due and
payable December 31, 2015, plus interest at
1% PET ANMUN ..ot eeemssss e et 7,664,035 6,320,612

Term note payable to Crescent Michiana Properties
LLC, payable $8,520 monthly, including interest
at 7.25% per annum, maturing in October 2021,
secured by land and building and guaranteed by
The Garaioni Family Foundation .........ccoevvviinencn, 638,073 691,913

Note payable to the Indiana Common School Fund,

payable $14,555 semi-annually beginning

July 1, 2013, plus interest at 4% per annum,

maturing in July 2033, secured by unpaid tuition

support distributions ..o, - 582218
Total long-term debt.......cvvvminiinesnnnen 12,605,054 12,419,089

Less: current portion (557.876) (553,840)
$12,047,178 11,865,249

-12-



CAREER ACADEMY OF SOUTH BEND, INC.,

Notes to Financial Statements

{3} Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable for state education support as of June 30, 2012 represented amounts
due relating to the following sources:

TUIION SUPPOLt .. $450,680
Special education grant ..., 54,939
TOtal i $505,619

Tuition support is determined by state law and is dependent upon the geographic location
of the school and is indexed to the poverly data of the enrolled students and other
factors. The payment schedule is likewise determined by state Jaw, with tuition support
payable in equal monthly instaliments in the calendar year following the start of the
academic school year, Effective July 1, 2013, tuition support will be paid in monthly
installments that coincide with the School’s fiscal year (see Note 2).

(4) Unconditional Promises to Give

Unconditional promises to give consisted of the following as of Junc 30, 2013 and 2012:

2013 2012

Restricted to payment of debt obligation ......... $750,000 1,250,000

Restricted for building improvements. ............. 50,000 100,000

Gross unconditional promises to give ............. $800,000 1,350,000
Amounts due in:

Less than 0ne year ..., $550,000 550,000

One 10 Ve YRAIS...coivvnimnainsnisnrmreneneien 250,000 800,000

$800,000 350,000

Unconditional promises to give have not been discounted because they either provide for
interest on the unpaid balance, or are payable currently.



CAREER ACADEMY OF SOUTH BEND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

(5) Long-Term Debt, Continued

Principal maturities of long-term debt are scheduled as follows:

Year Ending June 30:

11 ) - SO TR PR OUP PP pPTPO $ 557,876
D15 eoerriereesreesivessnrsinraassstbsatasaretessarsssirasiussssnssiasssanrnaitisnress 312,214
DOLG oeerreesrerieessrsvestsssrsesarsaesbrresass sesersantissspiasnesarnnsasssnesssens 11,283,859
L1 1 I O U U PO PP PP P PRSPPI 71,891
L1 . U U U PRT PO PUN PPN RUPIPOIYS 77,279
THETEATIET «orecveererrerrissseresssnrsreesssersinrsingsssanessvasssansbarsnassses 301,935

$12,605,054

(6} Leases

The Schoo! leases certain items of equipment under operaling leases. The equipment
leases provide for monthly lease payments through April 2017. Lease expense under
operating leases for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 was $7,076 and $9,516.

Future minimurmn lease obligations arc as follows:

Year Ended June 30:
14 ) O SO OO T OO PP PROPP PPN $7,076
DO LS reoerieeereecereerestaaresnrtsesnsesanbrsaresasbesassneissabsvan e nasE S s s R R s e 7,076
DO LG aeerrieeeestreerstrsberanstsssareassareesnas tas i n e AR RR e s g b e R E AR e e 1,076
X0 U U U OO PP PP PP 1,328

(7) Commitments

The School operates under a charter granted by Ball State University. As the sponsoring
organization, Ball State University exercises certain oversight responsibilities. Under
this charter, the School has agreed to pay to Ball State University an annual
administrative fee equal to 3% of state tuition support. The charter temains in effect
until June 30, 2016 and is renewable thereafter by mutual consent. Payments under this
charter agreement were $32,513 and $27,044 for the years ended June 30, 2013 and
2012, respectively.

-13-



CAREER ACADEMY OF SQUTH BEND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

(8) Retirement Plan

Retirement benefits for certified teachers are provided by the indiana State Teachers’
Retirement Fund (“TRF™), which is a multiple-employer defined benefit retirement plan
govemed by the State of Indiana and administered by the Indiana Public Retirement
System (“INPRS”) Board. Contribution requirements of plan members are established
by the INPRS Board. Under the plan, the School contributes 7.5% of compensation for
all participating personnel. Employees can opt to participate in a 401(k) plan offered
through Freedom Retirement Plan Consultants, Inc, in lieu of participating in TRF, The
School also contributes 7.5% of compensation to the 401{k) plan, Substantially all fuil-
time employees are eligible to participate in either plan. Retirement plan expense under
both plans for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 was $111,986 and $52,302,
respectively.

{9} Related Party Transactions

In the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the School obtained financing from The
Garatoni Family Foundation and Larry Garatoni, individually (see Note 5), relating to
the construction of the school facility, Larry Garatoni is the President of the School’s
Board of Directors and the chief executive officer of HQ Investments Corporation,
which manages the investments of The Garatoni Family Foundation, The School also
received contributions totaling $710,000 directly and indirectly from The Garatoni
Family Foundation in the year ended June 30, 2012,

(10} Restrictions on Net Assels

Temporarily restricted net assets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 were available for
the following purposes:

013 2012
. Debt obligation repayment ......cccccoceve e ceiiinsnns £750,000 1,250,000
Purchase of welding equipment. .......ccooceviineeee 100,000 -

$350,000 1,250,000

-14-



CAREER ACADEMY OF SOUTH BEND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

(10) Restrictions on Net Assets, Continued

Net asscts were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the
restricted purpose, In 2013 and 2012, the program purpose restrictions were
accomplished by the repayment of required debt obligations.

Temporarily restricted net assets for debt obligation repayment represent an original
£1,500,000 pledge of tax increment revenues by the South Bend Redevelopment
Commission toward the repayment of the School’s debt obligation under the City of
South Bend economic development revenue bonds (see Note 5). These amounts are
considered to be temporarily restricted in that they are limited as to use in future
periods. The pledge is to be paid in quarterly installments through November 2014.
Payments of $500,000 and $250,000 were received in the years ended June 30, 2013
and 2012,

(11) Risks and Uncertainties

The School provides cducational instruction services to families residing in St. Joseph
and surrounding counties in Indiana, and is subject to the risks of economic and
competitive forces at work within this geographic area.

The majority of revenues relate to legislation enacted by the State of Indiana and grants
awarded under federal programs. Changes in state or federal legislation could
significantly affect the School. Additionally, the School is subject to monitoring and
audit by state and federal agencies. Those examinations may result in additional
liability to be imposed on the School.

Financial instruments that potentially subject the School to concentrations of credit risk

consist principally of receivables from the State of Indiana. At June 30, 2013 and 2012,
substantially all of the accounts receivable balance was due from the State of Indiana.

{12) Refundable Advances

The School has been awarded grants from the Indiana Department of Education to
provide educational instruction. The grants are considered to be exchange transactions.
Accordingly, revenue is recognized when eammed and expenses are recognized as
incurred. At June 30, 2013, the School had refundable grant advances in excess of
expenditures of $51,119.

-15-



CAREER ACADEMY OF SOQUTH BEND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

{13) Functional Expense Reporting

The costs of providing the educational activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain expenses have been allocated
among the programs and services benefited. Following is a summary of expenses
comprising each program and service for the years ended June 30, 2013 aad 2012:

2013
Educational Education Admini-
Instruction  Support strative
Salaries and wages..........covvrnnen. $1,103,018 176,810 463,805
Employee benefits ........c............. 283,310 38,586 121,860
Professional services .vinvinnnne. 312,720 26,031 119,259
Staff development
and recruitment .......ococienneiine 18,213 - -
Authorizer oversight fee.............. - - 32,513
Food CosiS.niinsonns - 15,674 -
Travel/transportation service....... 12,207 16,814 14,083
Equipment and rentals ................, 14,895 - 31,077
Repairs and maintenance............. - 59,909 -
Classroom, kitchen and
office supplies...c.occivrierenne 400,828 38,032 33,614
OCCUPANCY cvvvievcircne e ievrreesens 217,116 - -
AVErtising ...oonienevseerieinins - - 84,564
Depreciation ........oceeecmvnneecennnnn, 492 685 - -
JES1E5) {1 TR - - 209,638
EPTSE) 111N - - 21,288
OheT s e 3.690 20,104 34,975

$2,858,682 391,960 1,166,676

-16-



CAREER ACADEMY OF SOUTH BEND, INC,

Notes to Financial Statemenis

{13) Functional Expense Reporting, Continued

2012
Educational Education Admini-
Instruction  Support strative
Salaries and Wages....oveevrrevrcrnirnies $ 668,319 99,908 349,828
Employee benefits covninicnne. 157,693 25,946 118,218
Professional services ....cceevrveenrnns 40,029 21,959 107,715
Staff development
and recruitment ... 41,045 - -
Authorizer oversight fee......on... - - 27,044
Food CostS...oiiniiiinnnnncninninennnnnns - 36,355 -
Travel/transportation service....... 1,680 1,240 10,094
Equipment and rentals................. 10,595 - 24,796
Repairs and maintenance............. - 4,399 -
Classroom, kitchen and
- office supplies .vvvvvivenninen, 132,490 16,521 23,458

Cecupancy e, 265,091 - -
Advertising .....cccooevivecvvcciiinininn - - 58,183
Depreciation ... 234,155 - -
IUEIESE oo s vnernreee - - 162,951
INSUFANCE Lo nssinsnr e - - 5,086
18711 SO 2,214 16,101 26,930

SLSS33IL 222429 914,303
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CAREER ACADEMY OF SOUTH BEND, INC,

Other Reports
Year Ended June 30, 2013
The report presented herein was prepared in addition to another official report prepared for
the School as listed below:
Supplemental Audit Report of Career Academy of South Bend, Inc.
The Supplemental Audit Report contains the results of compliance testing required by the
Indiana State Board of Accounts under its Guidelines for the Audits of Charter Schools

Performed by Private Examiners pertaining to matlers addressed in its dccounting and
Uniform Compliance Guidelines Manual for indiana Charter Schools.

-18-



Career Academy South Bend
January 2015 Financlal Results
Significant Items

Receipts:
1. Total recelpts were $330k, which is $51k under budget.
Outstde IT training revenue bugeted for $40k, hasn't starfed yet

Expenses:
1, Total expenses before depreciation were $397k, S116k under budget.

Significant differences from budget were:
. Employee Sataries under $74K - bonus payout budgeted for January
not patd until February
. Employee Benefits under $58k - less people on Insurance
than budgeted; and taxes on bonus payout not until February

Net Loss befere Depreciation and Amortization was $(67k), S65k under budget

Schedules Included:
1. Revenue and Expense Summary - P&L
2, Balance Sheet
3. Statement of Cash Flows
4. Loan Activity
5. Monthly Revenue and Expense Summary
6. Monthly Revenue and Expensc Defail

Significant items



Career Academy South Bend

Revenue and Expense Summary - P&L

For the Month Ending January 31, 2015

Year-to-Date

Receipts (Revenue):
Basic grants and other
Private donations
Rental income

Other misc income

Total Receipts

Expenses:

Employee salaries

Employee benefits
Prof/Tecknical/Training/Other
Facility and 1tilities
Professional & Outside Services
Textbooks

Supplies and Materials
Advertising

Other Expenses

Interest

Toial Expenses

Net Earnings (Loss) Before
Depreclation and Amortization

Pepreciation and Amorilzation
Net Earnkogs (Loss)
Memo Adjusiments -

- QZAB matching funds
- TIF Grant

Net Earnings (Loss) after adjustmer

315,405 335,360 {19,955)
10,000 - 10,000
- 1,408 {1,408)
4,695 44,400 {39,705)
330,100 381,168 {51,069)
259,479 333,439 (73,960)
37,162 95,097 (57,935
2,998 2810 158
30,921 32,404 {1,483}
21,254 18,809 245
3,457 1,007 2,450
19,194 10,841 8,353
8,659 4,375 4,284
3,8% 3371 525
10,157 10,734 (37%)
397,175 512,887 {115,712}
(67,076} (131,719) 64,643
39,549 435,409 (5.860)
(106,625) (177,128) 70,503
(106,625) (177,128) 70,503
Page 1

2,217,673 2235713 (18,040)
1.022,389 100,000 922,389
7,300 9,858 (2,058)
3539 136,264 {100,872)
3,283,254 2,481,836 301,418
1,637,918 1,619,970 17948
330,636 502,438 (171,502)
28,647 40,466 (11,318)
199,444 244,431 (44,587}
181,730 153,551 26,179
56,522 68,730 {12,207
222,191 108,440 114,350
57,305 25,250 36,055
30,459 34,002 3,513)
75,918 75,401 517
2821369 2,870,678 (49,308)
461,885 (388,342) 850,727
323,992 332,214 (8.222)
137,893 {721,050 858,940
253,750 253,750 -
391,643 (467,306) 858,949

Month & YTD



Caretr Acadenmy South Bend
Balance Sheet
June 114 Throagh Jaruary 3913

Ansehu:

Cash

Perty Cash
Tota) Cash

Ascounts Receivable
Prepadd Other
Total Short Term Assds

Preperty, Plant & Equipment « Net of Eepreviation
lend
Buling
Furnitae
Eqipment
Comprzer Hardnare & Software
Construstion-In-Process
FP&E Cout
Less: Accummlatnd Deprecistion
Total PP&E - Net

Total Assels

Lhabllithes:

Accoumts Payable

Temp Loan » Garator Family Foundation
Temp Loan - Larry Giratocd

Erployes Dednctions - Retirement

Employes Dediactions - Vol Ins & FSA Medicat
Employee Dedoctions - Oches Payment

County Propesty Tax Accrual

Curent Portion of Mortgage

Current Llblida

Unitsd Way restricted grant

Loag Ferm Debt - Morigmge

Public Finanse Autherity-QZAB Bonds
Cormmmon Scko] Loen

Folal Llablites
Net Equity

Equity change from previous period
Accurmilated charge in Equity from Jone

S17,E34
100

617,234

8534
608,600

159,403
11,516,633
568,355
514970
N3
13,050,694
(1.150,504)

(1840180

BT

36561
LAy 3l
41368202

2751

2609

62,214
8,981,165

517,933
4,000,003

13,501,148

{1,052.370)

520,173
160

$:2

(9,155
SELLIE

159,400
11,516,613
568,360
514970
438934

13,194,304
1,300,573y

11,893,731

12,404,850

56561
4,726,501
4,139,762

1338
2511

62,550
8,931,623

512,992
4,000,003

13,504,216
{1,099,356)

(45,597
(85551

343,241
109

343,30

(13519
RFEALYS

155,400
1L532.941
38,365
314,570
43772

13,218,501
(1.350.355)

TERER. 045

TR 52.80T

36,561
4608 ,42)
RSN

1,76

1,510
(W]

62,568
8,870,607

110
4,000,000

13,371,776
{75970y

(32,603)
- (127,600)

Page?

126687
100

126,787

{11,75%)
114,991

153,400
1,582,685
$58346
32,750
49,323

13287526
(1400.562)

11,886,564

12/001,944

36,561
4,607,253
£,145.776

1735
2,23%
{]

63349
8817918

501714
4,000,050

13,272,632

{1377,67D

(192,3(8)
(423,309

{13.315)
103

{13,716)

{13,685)
27.40%)

E52.400
11,581,136
363356
S3ee83
449,123

13362914
{1.445,176)
1185113

11,830,337

35,561
4,661,267
4,150,345

im
2,357
o

63,731
8,937,572

496,225
4,000,000

13,433,197

{1,603,460)

(225,783)
(551,090)

£15.832
100

175,932

{16,661}
153221

139,400
11,612,360
568166
553,203
49123

13,148,753
€1,433,834}

11,858,212

12,018,239

36561
4739015
4,153,802

1397
2549
©

64,116
2019446

450,703
4,000,000

13,510,143

{14954

111,55
139,535

125164
160

125264

26,181
(16.310)
.82

§59,400
671230
568,366
562282
H9,323
15.410.6M
(1,534,948)

11,875,658

11538 486

55561
3743056
4157317

339

1511
m

64,500
8,027,440

485,148
4,009.000

12,512,588
(554,102)

937352
493,268

21,759
160

27899

{26,111}
{16,320}
{14,533

159,500
1E745321
368,365
555347
449323
21,425

13,507,633
(1371497
193,156

11,918,655

56,561
3311354
4,160 558

PARE]
3945
[l

64,891
8099821

479,559
4,000,000

12,5733%)

1860,727)
(106,625)
391,643

Balance Sheet



Career Academy South Beand

Statement of Cash Flows
1014 - 2015

Sources of Funds

Receipts +/ {-) Expenditures {46,937} {208,103) {197,707 (225,783} {14,694) 937,502 {106,625} 137,893
Restricted Grant/QZAB maxk - 127,500 - - 126,250 - - 253,750
Add: Depreciation Expense 50,069 49,783 30,206 44,614 44,659 45,113 35,549 123,992
3,072 {30,821} {147,501) {181,169) 156,215 SE2OLS {67,076} 715,635

Operating Activities
Accounts Receivable - - - - - 26,111 . 26,11
Prepaid Other 520 4,424 {1,783} 1,889 2,617 (3$1) Y] 7,686
Accounts Payable B . - - . - . -
Employee Deductions - Ins/Retirement’Other 433 (1,479) (357 1694 278 (43) 155 703
Propery Tax Accrual - “ - - . . . .
Net Cash Provided/(Used) in Operating Activilies 45,047 (21.875) {149,641) (172,587} 159,469 1,008,643 (66,928) 750,135

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Building - {21,308) {44,745) {B,450) {21,224) {38,870) {72,591) {217,188)
Furniture . - - . - . - .
Equipment - - {12,780} (6,938} {24,6135) {2.979) {3,065) (56,377)
Computers {103,620} {2,788) {11,600} - - - - {118,005)
CIP « Elementary (21,425) (21,425)

Proceeds from Asset Dispositions - - - - - . -

Net Cash Used in Investing Aciivities (103,620) (24,096) (69,125} {15,388) (45.839) {61,849) (97.081) 416,999}

Cash Flow From Financing Aclivities

Common Schoof Loan - - . 9 (0} - . -
Garatoni Family Foundation 4,067 {123,479 3,836 54,009 77,748 (993,919} 68,258 {911,481)
Larry Garatond 3,560 3,563 3,451 3,569 3,457 3,575 3,578 24,754
Public Finznce Authonity-QZAB Bends - - . - - - B -
Mortgage {5,014} {5,045} {5.075) (5,108} {5,137} {5,168} 5,199} {35,744}
Nel Cash Used in Financing Activities 2,612 {124,961) 2212 52,472 76,068 (997,512) 66,637 {922.47)
Net Cash Provided / (Used) (96,961} {£76,932) (216,554) (140,503} 189,693 {50,718} {97,365} {582,335)
Cash @ Beginning of Period 517,234 520,273 343,341 126,787 {£3,716) 175,982 125,264 617,234
Cash /@ End of Peried 520,273 343,341 126,787 (13,16 175,982 §25,264 27,899 27,899

Page 3 Cash Flow



Career Academy South Bend

Loan Activity and Interest Expense

Loan Description

Garateni Family Foundation
Larry Garatoni
Public Finance Authority-QZAB Bonds

Crgscent Michiana Properies

Totals

memo - total interest expense

Loan Balance Loan Acerued Int/  Converted  Loan Balance Interest Exp
71,2014 Borrowed Payments Expease to Donation 1/31/2015 Loan Payment
4,722,834 315,000 {253,750} 27,269 (1,000,000) 3,811,354 -
4,136,202 - - 24,754 4,160,955 -
4,000,000 - - - 4,000,000 -
580,197 - {35,744} - 544,453 23,895
13,439,233 | 315000 (289,494 52003 cLoo0000] 12,516,762 | 23,995 |

75,918

Page 4

Loans



Career Academy Souih Bend

Monthly Revenue and Expense Summary

2014- 2015

Receipts (Revenue):

Basic grants and other
Private denations
Rental income

Other misc income

Total Receipfs

Expenses:

Employee salaries

Employes benefis
ProffTechnical/Fraining/Ciher
Facility and utilities
Professional & OQuiside Serviess
Textbooks

Supplies and materials
Advertising

Other expenses

Intezest

Total Expenses

Net Farnings Before
Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and Amortizalion
Net Earnings

Memo Adjustments -
- QZAB matching funds

« TIF Grant

Nel Eamings after adjustments

i
2
3
4

113

289,379
6250
1,300
3,981

301,410

199,011
43262
1,674
21,093
6,931
2,462
10,072
2,701
11,132

298338

3,072

50,069

46,99

(16,997}

245,184
200

L079

246,562

208,328
46,133
5,376
28,683
53,525
16,429
21,139
9,361
4351
11,059

404,883

{158,321)

49,783

208,103

127,500

{80,603)

268,557 250,935 414877 412,837 315405 2217613
5,724 - - 1,000,115 10,000 1,022,389
1,300 1,300 1,300 2,600 - 1800
3,573 1,710 6,886 13,468 4,695 35,392
279,154 253945 443,063 1,929,020 330,100 3,283,254
226,427 235212 250,868 258,592 259479 1,637,918
51,906 56,188 45,362 50,424 37,162 330,636
6,134 9,821 150 1,393 2,993 23,647
26,328 26,121 0,016 35,982 30,921 199,444
24,813 23,305 32,207 19,695 21,254 181,730
4,764 11,687 3,355 11,830 3457 56,522
55,602 46,271 28,894 49,029 19,194 222,791
14,348 10,150 1,842 2374 8,659 57,305
4,402 5,166 3,967 591 3,596 10,459
10,732 10,992 10,838 11,008 10,157 5,918
426,656 435114 413,098 M5105  39LEIS 2.3821,369
(L47,501)  (1SL,16%) 29,965 982,915  (67,076) 461,885
50,206 44,614 44,659 45,113 39,549 323,992
(197,707) _(225,783) _ {14,694} 937,502 _{106,615) 137,893
- . 126,250 - - 253,750

(9NN (225783 111,556 937,801 (106,625) 395,643

Page 5

Monthly actuzl summary



Caresr Academy South Bead
Revenue and Expense Detail - P&L
2014+ 2015

Recelpls (Revenue): From ¢ To summary

Private Donation 501 2z 6,250 300 5,724 - - 1,000,115 1,000 1,022,389
Basic Grant - Tuitica Support 50z 1 217307 217,307 217,307 217,307 405,313 368,313 273,642 1,916,493
Special Education Grant L) 1 27,877 27,877 21,8717 21877 27877 21,877 - 167,261
Speciat Education - Reimb Part B o4 1 20,330 - - - - 8,152 27,877 56,409
Title 1 Charter Funds - Reimb 505 3 24,316 - 23373 8,752 1,687 5496 13,886 77,509
Summer Schook Reimbursement 506 1 - - - . - . . .
IN Charter Schools - Grant 507 1 - . . - - - - -
Rental Income, Utility and Eabor Allocation 08 3 1300 - 1,300 1,300 1,300 2,600 - 7,800
Bus Pass - Student Fees - Books 509 4 t 190 245 65% 793 1,252 1.087 4,226
Other Misc Revenue si 4 3,980 :1:34 3328 1,051 5,094 12,26 3,608 31,166
TOTAE RECEIPTS 301,410 246,562 279154 253,945 443,063 1,429,020 330,100 3,283,254
EXPENDITURES:
Jro High: 7& 8
Salaries 1 5 17,303 45,163 49,971 57,800 54,826 51,962 $1,357 328,383
Benefits 2 ] 3,433 6,512 5314 12,203 9,452 7318 4,041 48,884
Supplies & Materials 3 1 . 1,151 5,004 11,342 6,908 4,085 1,554 30,545
Texabooks 4 10 - 16,036 4,419 7,603 3,599 3,394 2,034 38,535
Prof/Technical/Training/Qther 5 7 0 - LHEB 636 400 359 368 3,148
Professional & Qutside Services 6 9 - 1,034 1,852 2,205 79 125 625 6,560
Other ? 13 - 600 1,020 1,603 230 1,343 855 5710
Total Jr. High 20,857 70,347 68,738 93,292 75,514 71,946 60,871 461,765
Sr. High:
Salaries . i1 5 45,509 59,669 57,269 69,009 76,322 75,366 15,845 469,688
Benefits 2 & 7357 5,635 10,518 10,448 9,329 £5,328 3,144 58,769
Supplies & Matedals 13 11 1,540 12,913 36,216 23,357 9422 24,895 11,566 124,508
Texthooks 0 10 - 342 345 4,684 4,756 6,436 £,423 17,987
ProffTechnical/Training/Other t5 7 1,604 4,063 4,839 3994 350 632 2,613 18,095
Professional & Quside Senvices 16 H - 14,481 3,51% 705 79 940 e 24,973
Other 17 3 200 600 1,370 1583 255 2,493 118 3,615
TFotal Se. High 56,920 08,632 124,175 118,779 101,213 122,050 100,625 723,035

Page & P&\, Actual by Month



Career Academy South Bend
Revenue and Expense Detail - P&L
2014 - 2015

Spectal Edvcation « LIy

Salaries 21 5 3,573 22005 22,906 31,12 28,755 28,462 23,322 165,634
Benefits 22 6 1,621 2,358 2477 3383 (308) (31} 1,699 11,199
Supplies & Materials n il - - 1,642 215 2,201 365 - 4,487
ProfTechnical Training/ Other 2] 7 . 61 - - - . . 61
Professional & Qutside Services 25 9 i) 250 61t 6,480 5,760 4,300 6,825 24,766

Total Learning Drisability 3,265 24,674 21,637 41,254 36,207 33,596 372,346 206,178

Support Services « Soclal Svex / Nurse / Other

Salasies 3 5 8,265 9,210 7,191 8,580 7,38t 7,845 12,084 60,557
Benefits n 3 1,697 1,748 1,720 1,461 1,203 1375 (233) 8,970
Supplies & Matesials 33 n . . 2,250 502 145 205 - 3,143
ProffTechnical/Training/ Other 1 7 - 1,016 - 5097 . 74 - 5,187
Total Support Services 9,963 11,973 11,20t 15,640 8,729 2,500 11,851 78,857
Title 1
Safaries 41 5 16,348 4,306 222 222t 7,502 8,680 7914 49,191
Benefits 42 6 3,382 1,025 637 613 954 1,042 1,191 8,944
Supplies & Materials 43 1 - - 50 . - - - 750
Peof/Technical/Training/Other + 7 - - - - - . - -
Totat Title 1 19,730 5,331 3,667 2,334 8,49% 9,723 %106 58,385
Adnmein / Qther
Salaries 51 5 103,083 61,976 76,169 66,490 76,082 86,218 83,457 564,464
Benefits 52 & 12,309 £1,320 12,538 10,266 6474 9,853 3,844 66,540
Unemployment'SSMMedicare 53 3 13,402 16,535 18,646 18,674 18,213 18,979 23475 127,329
Advertising / Marketing 5 12 1,072 9,361 14,848 10,150 1,842 2,374 8,659 57,305
Quuside Prof Services 55 ¥ 3,509 L7 18,721 13,917 20,635 13,230 8,485 110,743
Insurance « School Gen Lia & WC 56 9 3,351 5,653 - . 5,653 . - 14,658
Professional Pevelopment 57 ? . . - - - - - .
Telephone 58 13 1,807 1,949 1,988 1,957 2,738 2,118 2,094 14,644
Travel 58 7 - 37 1 95 B ' 128 20 1,157
Supplies and Materials 60 1t 422 7,075 9,901 5,290 10,218 19,475 6,074 58,958
Water & Sewer 61 & 765 432 745 608 96T 503 588 4713
Building Cleaning, Maint , Trash Removat &2 ] 13,511 21,306 16,290 15,6503 20,603 19,955 18,73¢ 126,007

Page 6 P&L Actual by Month



Career Academy South Bend

Revenue and Expense Detail - P&L
2014+ 2015

Heating / Cooling / Lights
Rental - Carpet Runners and Printers
Other

Totzt Admin / Other

Building Depre / Equipment / Loans
Equipment Purchases

Depreciation Expense

Loan Interest

Other

Total Building Depre / Equip / Loans
Totat Expendifures
Nel Earnings
Memo Adjustments -
- Matching QZAB funds

- FIF Grant

Net Earnings after adjustments

63

&3

10k
102
103

€02

6,552
265

174,472

50,069
11,132

61,201

348,407

(46,997}

6,035

1,202

82,666

49,753
11,059

60,842

454,666

(208,103)

127,500

(80,603)

Page 6

6,529
3,264
24

179,906

50,206
10,732

60,938

476,362

{197,707}

{197,707)

BA37
1473
24

152,323

44614
16,992

55,606

472,728

{225,783)

{225,783)

2734
73
2

178,902

44,659
10,838

55,497

457,287

{14,694}

126,250

141,55

9,539
5,631
24

188,243

45,113
11,008

5617
591,218

937,502

931,802

10,554 $5,430
1,03% 13,294
1% 1,450
167,220 1,216,732
39,549 323992
10,157 75,918
49,706 199910
436,725 3,145,362
(106,625) 137,893
- 253,750
{106,625) 391,643

PAL Actual by Month



Career Academy of South Bend Change of Authorizer Application to Education One, LLC
{Trine University)

Attachment 9: Current or Past Litigation or Arbitration Proceedings

1. Indiana Department of Education, Division of Special Education No, HR-035-2015

a. Demand: request for due process hearing filed February 5, 2015 by parent of
CASB student asserting that the school failed to meet the student’s special
education needs by (i) giving insufficient consideration to evaluations of the
student prepared prior to the student’s enrollment at the school in August, 2014;
(ii) failing to provide speech therapy services and special education services for
classes other than Algebra; (iii) proposing an IEP which did not take into account
the full scope of the student’s disabilities.

b. Response: the school agreed to convene a new case conference and develop a new
1EP for the student providing for (i) special education accommodations in all
courses; (ii) daily consultation between the student and his Teacher of Record,;
(ii1) speech therapy services; (iv) reading services utilizing the Orton-Gillingham
program or an alternative if use of the OG program is not helpful.

c. Result: the parties entered into a settlement agreement 3/20/2015 and the petition
was dismissed.

2. IDOE Office of Special Education Complaint CP-041-2015/Mediation MD-023-2015

a. Demand: 3/17/2015 objection to expulsion of student for behavioral issues,

b. Response: the behavior which was the basis for expulsion was not a manifestation
of the student’s disability and expulsion was proper, but the school acknowledges
the student should receive homebound instruction until readmitted in Fall of 2015,

¢. Result: the parties entered into a mediation agreement 3/25/2015 providing for the
student to receive homebound services. The student’s IEP was not changed.

3. IDOE Office of Special Education Mediation MD 042-2015

a. Demand: parent objection to half-day scheduling for son and objection to him
being sent home for behavior. Parent states son does no work at all at school and
refuses to do any written work but he learns from listening and enjoys
socialization.

b. Response: behavioral problems cannot be consequence-free but the student will
be scheduled full-day and a case conference will be convened to modify the
student’s behavior plan and discuss accommodations.

c. Result: the parties entered into a mediation agreement 3/25/2015

4, IDOE Office of Special Education Complaint CP-091-2015

a. Demand: parent (same as #3 above) objection 5/1/2015 to son being suspended
for use of F-word to teacher, which parent states was in response to {eacher telling
an inappropriate story and was a manifestation of his disability.

b. Response: the teacher did not tell inappropriate story as alleged but school agrees
to remove three-day suspension from student’s record. School agrees all the
student’s teachers to receive briefing from student’s teacher of record on student’s
IEP and Behavior Intervention Plan plus background on Autism Spectrum
Disorder and social interactions.

¢. Result: parties entered agreement 5/11/2015 resolving complaint.
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